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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Cupr S E S

Financial highlights
Revenue

Gross profit

Profit from operation
Profit for the year

Earnings per share
(RMB cents)
— Basic
— Diluted

Dividend per share (HK cents)

— Interim dividend
— Final dividend
— Total dividend

Profitability ratios
Gross profit margin

Operating margin

Net profit margin
Return on total assets
Return on equity®
Liquidity ratios
Current ratio

Average inventory

turnover days®
Average trade and bills

receivables turnover days®

Average trade and bills
payables turnover days®

Capital ratio
Interest coverage ratio®
Net debt to equity ratio®”
Gearing ratio®
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2020
—
RMB’000
ARBT T

1,288,422
608,465
292,844
195,041

29.05
29.05

7.6
5.3
12.9
47.2%
22.7%
15.1%

8.2%

14.7%

2.4
207
148
244

15.2

Net cash FHE &
26.5%

2019
—ENF
RMB’000
AREET T

1,274,966
560,091
243,440
158,142

23.58
23.58

7.5
3.0
10.5
43.9%
19.1%
12.4%

7.1%

12.8%

1.82
196
123
231

11.3

7.1%
28.7%

Changes

%
%

+1.1%
+8.6%
+20.3%
+23.3%

+23.2%
+23.2%

+3.3
1S 7 Bh
+3.6
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+2.7
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+1.1
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Notes:

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Return on total assets equals net profit for the year divided by the
closing balance of total assets.

Return on equity equals net profit for the year divided by the
closing balance of total shareholders’ equity.

Average inventory turnover days is equal to the average of the
beginning and closing inventory balance (exclude inventories of
PPE) divided by cost of sales and multiplied by the number of
days in the year.

Average trade and bills receivables turnover days is equal to the
average of the beginning and closing trade and bills receivables
balance (exclude balances related to sales of PPE) divided by
turnover (including value-added tax) and multiplied by the number
of days in the year.

Average trade and bills payables turnover days is equal to the
average of the beginning and closing trade and bills payables
balance (exclude balances related to purchase of PPE materials)
divided by costs of sales and multiplied by the number of days in
the year.

Interest coverage ratio equals profit before interest and tax for
one period divided by interest expenses of the same period.

Net debt to equity ratio equals net debt divided by total equity
as of the end of the year. Net debt includes all borrowings net of

cash and cash equivalents.

Gearing ratio equals total debts divided by total equity.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

TO ALL SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Cabbeen Fashion Limited (the “Company”,
stock code: 2030), | herewith present the results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group” or “Cabbeen”) for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Because of the coronavirus outbreak in the first quarter
of 2020 (the “Pandemic”), most of the retail outlets
operated by the Group’s distributors were ordered to close
temporarily during February to March 2020. Accordingly,
the Group’s revenue from core fashion business for the first
quarter of 2020 dropped significantly due to temporary
store closures and poor consumer sentiment. Fortunately,
there was improvement in the Group’s core business in
the second half of 2020 when the Pandemic in the PRC
was gradually alleviated. During the Pandemic, the Group’s
e-commerce business also provided good results which
made up part of the loss of revenue from physical stores.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s
revenue from its core apparel business increased slightly
by 1.1% to RMB1,288.4 million as compared to the year
ended 31 December 2019.

On the other hand, the Group has commenced the
production and sale of medical gowns and medical facial
masks (“PPE”) since February 2020 in response to the
PRC government’s invitation to support in the midst of
the Pandemic. Revenue from production and sale of
PPE for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted
to RMB526.1 million. Nevertheless, PPE business is just
a side business and the Group has no plan to focus on
developing that business in the future.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

EE®HE (&)

During the difficult time, we were able to uphold the net
profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 at RMB195.0
million, representing an increase of 23.3% from that of the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Going forward, we believe there will be more favorable
trends for e-commerce business after the Pandemic as
more customers have switched their consumption from
offline physical stores to online platforms. We believe
this will accelerate the shift to digital and omnichannel
distribution by fashion companies. Therefore, we will
continue to invest in our digital platforms and omnichannel
capabilities to uphold our competitiveness. At the same
time, we will keep investing in our physical store network in
shopping centres with robust consumer traffic despite the
fact that we closed certain underperformed retail stores
during 2020 primarily due to our strategy to invest in digital
platforms. We believe in-store shopping experience will
remain critical for fulfilling online orders or to serve as hubs
for brand building activities. Given the rental of retail shops
in general has decreased after the Pandemic, we will take
this opportunity to invest in retail stores at good locations
in the coming year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
ERHS (H)

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my % ' AARBREXEZEFTCTRIOEHDEETH
sincere gratitude to all staff members for their dedication %N NRERL * UESARR R EERFHRN
and contribution, and to our shareholders and business  X#F o TG HEE LS HiEF AL B EKIE R
partners for their support. We will continue with our AREEIEEE -

endeavor to pursue growth of our business and create

value for our shareholders.

Chairman *E
Ziming Yang 1 EA]
8 February 2021 —E-—F—"ANH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEE WK (&)

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Fashion industry has been affected by slowing economic
growth in recent years. In the first half of 2020, the industry
was hit hard by the Pandemic. Most of our retail outlets
were ordered to close temporarily during February to
March of 2020. Though online shopping surged during
that period, it was not enough to erase the damage from
drop of revenue from physical retail stores. Fortunately,
there were signs of improvement in the market in second
half of 2020 when the Pandemic in the PRC was gradually
alleviated.

The economic are recovering but we believe the
preferences and shifts in mindset that customers have
adopted during the Pandemic will lead to permanent
changes. We believe the shift to digital and omnichannel
distribution will accelerate. Accordingly, we will continue to
invest in digital platforms to strengthen our online presence
through customization and superior online-shopping
interfaces and deliveries.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

Cabbeen is a Chinese designer brand. It offers apparel
and accessories for men, women, and children under
the Cabbeen, Cabbeen Urban, Cabbeen Love and 2AM
brands. The Group derives its revenue from sales of its
products through franchise stores and online shops. Most
of the products sold under its brand names are designed
by the Group and majority of the products sold are
manufactured by independent manufacturers in mainland
China.

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had 7 wholesale
distributors, 20 consignment distributors and 115 sub-
distributors operating a total of 810 retail shops in mainland
China and one retail shop in Cambodia. In addition, the
Group operates WeChat store and other online shops on
e-commerce platforms including T-mall, JD.com, vipshop
and sells products to other online distributors.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Retail channel performance

Performance of retail stores operated by the Group, its
distributors and sub-distributors for the year ended 31
December 2020 are summarized below.

- Total retail revenue for the year ended 31 December
2020 decreased by 1.4% as compared to 2019.
The decrease was primarily a result of the Pandemic
in the first quarter of 2020.

- Retail sales revenue and same store sales from
physical stores for the year ended 31 December
2020 decreased by 7.2% and 6.0%, respectively, as
compared to that of 2019.

- Retail revenue from online shops increased by
approximately 21.4% from RMB528.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to RMB641.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

- Cabbeen had 3.0 milion WeChat fans and members
as of 31 December 2020 (2019: 2.4 million).

- Average retail discount at physical stores for the
year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately
27.2% (2019: 25.7%).

- Up to 31 January 2021, sell-through rate of the
Group’s 2020 collections was over 66%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEBmRD (&)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENWRD T (&)

Retail network by geographical regions RiEEHE TN EERB
As of 31 December 2020 As of 31 December 2019
H2-3-RE+28=1-H HE_E-NET-A=1-H

Operation model Wholesale Consignment Total Wholesale Consignment Total
fegs HE Ré fct g f# a5t
Geographical HE

Central China Eh 168 34 202 197 33 230
Southwestemn China il 46 115 161 56 125 181
Southern China g 2 227 249 2 250 212
Eastern China ZR 5 67 7 - 70 70
Northern China £ 7 59 66 1 67 68
Northwestem China ii4 - 50 50 - 5% 5%
Northeastern China E3id - 10 10 - 10 10
Others Hf 1 - 1 1 - 1
Total @it 249 562 811 207 611 888

Retail outlets by brands %@ &85 W EE/EH

73.6%

70.8%

@ Cabbeen <&
' Cabbeen Urban F&E#H
@ Cabbeen LOVE Cabbeen LOVE 65% 0.4%

® 2AM e 3=Jk
® Multi-brands % ke 0%
2020 ‘

As of 31 December 2020 As of 31 December 2019
R-T-_ZTF+-A=+—H R=2-—hF+=-A=+—A8

% 1.8%
10.7% 0.2%

2019 ¢

Retail outlets by channel #ZRE&8 5 NWEE/EH

46.0% 33.5% 41.7% 36.7%

@ Shopping mall &%
' Department store & &2 a]
© Street shops i

2020 2019

As of 31 December 2020 As of 31 December 2019
R_F_FTF+_A=+—8H R=B-hF+=-A=+—H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEE W&
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Retail outlets by city-tiers &3 &% Bl 8| 5 W EEEH

@ Tier 1 —#R

Tier 2 k'
@ Tier3 =
® Tier4 PU4R

2020

As of 31 December 2020
R-B-_FF+-A=+—H

Omni-Channel

The Group has invested in building omni-channel
capabilities in markets with retail outlets operated by
consignment distributors. Its ERP system facilitated a
single view of inventory across channels, connecting
physical stores directly to WeChat store. The Group offers
a “reserve online, pick up in store service” to its customers
which allows customers to select in-store inventory from
WeChat platform. The Group has also started to fulfil
orders from WeChat stores by shipping products either
from logistic centre or consignment stores. It will continue
to optimize the omni-channel services for better customer
shopping experience.

Design and product development

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had four design
workshops in Guangzhou City, Hong Kong, Milan and
Paris, respectively, with a team of 73, including 49
designers (2019: 48) joining from mainland China, other
Asia countries, Hong Kong and Europe. The Group also
works with design institutes and contract designers
from around the world. It offered over 4,700 new stock-
keeping-units (SKUs) for 2020 product collections (over
4,600 SKUs for 2019 product collections).

2019

As of 31 December 2019
R=B-—NF+=A=+—R
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

THE IMPACT OF THE PANDEMIC ON
THE GROUP’S OPERATION

The outbreak of the Pandemic led to extraordinary
disruptions to business activities. The Group'’s office,
production facilities, and most of the retail stores and the
Group’s suppliers were instructed to close temporarily
during February and March of 2020. The Group’s office
and production facilities resumed operations in early March
2020 and all of the retail outlets operated by distributors
had resumed operations by the first week of April 2020.
Government mandated closures of business operations
and supply chain disruptions affected the Group’s sales
revenue and production schedule which inevitably
impacted on the Group’s financial results and liquidity
position in the first half of 2020.

Considering the market uncertainty, the Group took
preemptive actions to preserve cash and strengthen its
liquidity. The Group has cut back purchase orders for
2020 summer and autumn collections but committed to
settling payment for all finished goods and goods already
in production. In addition, the Group closed certain
underperformed retail stores and had also put opening of
new retail physical shops and other material investment on
hold. Nevertheless, the Group has kept on its investments
in digital platforms as more customers have switched their
consumption from offline physical stores to online platforms
during the Pandemic. The Group also has continued
its investments in supply chain reforms and intelligent
production facilities to enhance production costs control
and efficiency. The Group has been managing operating
expenses and reducing marketing and promotion budgets
cautiously. The Group also drawn down additional banking
facilities for possible funding needs. In addition, the Group
has been closely communicating with its distributors about
retail sales performance. Given the lower than normal
retail sales revenue in the first half of 2020, the Group has
extended credit terms to its distributors. The Group also
accepted goods return from distributors of 2019 and 2020
collections with invoiced value (net of VAT) of RMB34.3
million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEE WK (&)

The Group’s core business showed improvements in
the second half of 2020 and e-commerce business in
particular showed strong growth. The management
believes consumer sentiment will be back eventually amid
the expectation of vaccine will be available for extensive
distribution later in 2021. The Group’s will be cautious and
stay vigilant and react to the evolving situation especially
there were new COVID-19 cases in the first quarter of
2021.

On the other hand, the Group has commenced the
production and sale of PPE since February 2020 in
response to the PRC government’s invitation to support
in the midst of the Pandemic. Since late March 2020
when the Pandemic in the PRC was gradually alleviated,
the Group started to sell PPE to overseas purchasers.
Depending on the development of the Pandemic,
the volume of the Group’s sale of PPE may fluctuate
significantly from time to time. Manufacture and sale
of PPE represents the Group’s manifestation of its
commitment of social responsibility at a time when PPE is
much needed in the PRC and other parts of the world, and
will not be a focus of the Group’s future business. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue and net
income from sale of PPE amounted to RMB526.1 million
and RMB40.9 million, respectively.

PROSPECTS

The Group believes there will be more favorable trends
for e-commerce business after the Pandemic as more
customers have switched their consumption to online
platforms. The management believe e-commerce is a key
driver and will deploy more resources to develop online
channels.

Even we invest in e-commerce, we will keep investing in
our physical store network in shopping centres with good
consumer traffic. We believe in-store shopping experience
will remain critical. Physical stores are important for
sales and brand building purposes and for fulfilling online
orders or to serve as hubs for brand building activities.
Considering the rental of retail shops in general has come
down after the Pandemic, we will take this opportunity to
set up more stores in good locations in the coming year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue by sales channel

B 75 1o
Wy 28

RFEREH 7R E

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=t—HLEE

2020 2019
. —TNEF
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR¥T T ARETIT
Onlineshops  #&L/E#H | 612481 475% | 481545 37.8%
Offline shops BTG
Wholesale 3 224,560 17.5% 286,939 22.5%
~ Consignment s | 451,381 35.0% | 506,482 39.7%
| e 52.5% | 793421 622%
Net revenue S 1,288,422 100.0% 1,274,966 100.0%
Revenue by brands ZEREE D WS
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-BA=+—HILEE
2020 2019
—E-FF —TNEF
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR¥TF T ARETIT
Cabbeen 5 993,841 77.1% 1,043,175 81.8%
Cabbeen Urban REE™T 252,047 19.6% 185,764 14.6%
Cabbeen Love Cabbeen Love 17,611 1.4% 7,851 0.6%
2AM =dGE ] 16,618 1.3% 15,610 1.2%
Others L 8285 0.6% | 22,566 1.8%
1,288,422 100.0% 1,274,966 100.0%
0 —E-TEHEFR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit was RMB608.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 compared to RMB560.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Gross profit margin increased from 43.9% for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to 47.2% for the year ended 31
December 2020. The increase in gross profit margin was
attributable to better margin from e-commerce business
and a decrease in product costs relative to selling price.

Other income

Other income primarily consists of interest income from
bank deposits, government grants and net foreign
exchange differences. The increase in other income from
RMBG66.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
to RMB84.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 was mainly attributable to foreign exchange gain of
RMB9.5 million in 2020 (2019: foreign exchange loss of
RMB2.0 million) and an increase in government grants.

Net income from sale of PPE

The Group has commenced the production and sale
of PPE since February 2020 in response to the PRC
government’s invitation for support in the midst of the
Pandemic. Net income from sale of PPE for the year ended
31 December 2020 comprised of the following items.

Revenue L
Government grant income AT F B U A
Cost of production A ERAR
Sales commission HEME
Inventory write down FEMUR
Donations B

Others HAt

Net income from sale of PPE  $5E A AP &R EaFUA

%%U&%%U%
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RMB’000
ARBT T

526,091
6,660
(406,391)
(29,556)
(37,854)
(5,022)
(13,026)




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses consist of mainly
operating cost for e-commerce sales channels, advertising
and promotion, and logistics and delivery expenses. Selling
and distribution expenses for the year ended 31 December
2020 amounted to RMB201.1 million, representing a
decrease of RMB17.8 million or 8.2%, from that of the
year ended 31 December 2019. The decrease of selling
and distribution expenses for the year ended 31 December
2020 was attributable to fewer promotion activities in
2020 and fewer use of e-commerce sales channels which
charged higher handling fee.

Selling and distribution expense for the year ended 31
December 2019 and 2020 mainly comprised of the
following:

EEE W& 2T (&)

HERDHBAX

HERS AT T ZBRREENHERENLS
BRA - BEREEBARRRMNERA - #
E-T-_TF+ A=+ —HILFE  #HE
oA ABARB2011HETL  REEZ
E-NF+_A=+—BHLEFERILARK
17.8BETLH8 2%  HE_T -_TF+_H
T+ —HIEFEZHERDHEHASRDTIER
EZZ_TFMEEEHRLD - LR ERA
FRERSNEFHEREMY -

:I:—7 j—Lfﬁ& 7—755'5—1— ﬂ + El
IFFEZ#HE R HFA X T2 HIA TERK

2020 2019
—EIEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AE®EFT
Staff costs 8 TN 30,912 33,566
Advertising EERAX 89,395 90,889
Delivery and logistics & R 36,387 32,662
e-commerce platform BERFERY

expenses 32,584 38,006
Others R R 1795 23,792
201,073 218,915

Administrative and other operating expenses TR Ht&EH X

Administrative and other operating expenses mainly
comprise staff costs, design, research and development
expenses, management consulting expenses, provision
for inventories, office rental, depreciation and amortization
charges and other miscellaneous expenses. Administrative
and other operating expenses for the year ended
31 December 2020 amounted to RMB239.5 million
representing an increase of RMB75.0 million or 45.6%
from the year ended 31 December 2019. The increase in
administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December
2020 was mainly attributable to an increase in depreciation
charges, staff costs and impairment of inventories.

TBREEMEERIFTEREE TRA &
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Administrative and other operating expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and 2020 mainly comprised of
the following:

BITAA
R (B ITARARSIN)

Staff costs

Research and development
expenses, exclude
staff costs

Amortization and depreciation &4 & 1 &
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN B &
Operating lease charges KETHEER
Legal and professional fee EERBEREA
Impairment loss of trade H 5 REBGRIE R
and bills receivables EWE BRI R EEE
Inventory write-down = &MU
Donations =k
Others HAh

BE_ZT-NFR-ZF-_ZEFT_A=1+—H
EFEZTREEMEERX TEAATAE

Ak

2020 2019
RMPB’ 000 RMB’000
AR®T T AERBTT
63,334 54,999
8,608 14,839
35,047 21,828
3,467 3,657
4,643 6,598
5,155 3,771
(218) 319
85,981 37,384
10,566 201
S 22082 20917
239,465 164,513

Profit from operations

The Group recorded a profit from operations of RMB292.8
million (2019: RMB243.4 million) for the year ended 31
December 2020, representing an increase of approximately
20.3%. Operating margin increased from 19.1% for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to 22.7% for the year
ended 31 December 2020 which was mainly attributable
the improved gross profit margin of apparel business and
income contribution from PPE business.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s
finance costs amounted to RMB19.3 million (2019:
RMB21.6 million) or 1.5% (2019: 1.7%) of the Group’s
revenue. Finance costs represent primarily interest
expenses for a Hong Kong dollar bank loan of a subsidiary
operated in Hong Kong. The decrease in interest expenses
was because of a decrease in bank loan interest rate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Share of loss of an associate

The associated company is engaged in property
development, in which the Group has 33.33% (2019:
33.33%) effective equity interest. The property held by
this associated company is an office complex under
construction in Guangzhou City, the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”).

Income tax

For the year ended 31 December 2020, income tax
expenses of the Group amounted to RMB78.3 million
(2019: RMB63.6 million) and the effective tax rate was
28.7% (2019: 28.7%).

Profit for the year

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 increased
by 23.3% to RMB195.0 million from RMB158.1 million
for the year 2019. Net profit margin for the year ended 31
December 2020 was 15.1% (2019: 12.4%). Basic and
diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2020 were RMB29.05 cents (2019: RMB23.58 cents) and
RMB29.05 cents (2019: RMB23.58 cents), respectively.

Other key financial ratios

Average inventory turnover days of the Group were 207
days for the year ended 31 December 2020, as compared
to 196 days for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
increase was a result of higher inventory balance as of 31
December 2020.

Average turnover days of trade and bills receivables
increased to 148 days for the year ended 31 December
2020 as compared to 123 days for the year ended 31
December 2019, which was attributable to longer credit
term granted to distributors during the year ended 31
December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Average trade and bills payable turnover days remained
fairly stable for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2020 at 231 days and 244 days, respectively.

The Group’s gearing ratio was 26.5% as at 31 December
2020 (2019: 28.7%), being a ratio of sum of bank loans
of RMB352.1 million (2019: RMB354.7 million) to equity.
Gearing ratio decreased slightly was attributable to an
increase in equity while amount of outstanding bank loan
balances remained stable as at 31 December 2020.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, financial assets and time
deposits with initial terms of over three months totaling
RMB914.8 million (31 December 2019: RMB690.1 million).

At 31 December 2020, the Group was in net cash
position of RMB176.9 million (31 December 2019: net
debt of RMB87.7 million). Net cash or net debt equals
all borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents. The
increase in net cash as of 31 December 2020 was mainly
attributable to improved operating cash inflow while the
amount of bank borrowings remained stable.

The Group recorded net operating cash inflow of
RMB363.2 million (2019: net operating cash outflow of
RMB45.7 million) for the year ended 31 December 2020.
The improved operating cash inflow for the year ended
31 December 2020 was mainly attributable to settlement
received from customers.

Net cash generated from investing activities for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was RMB15.0 million (2019:
RMB123.2 million), which represented mainly the decrease
in pledged bank deposits and payment for purchase of
production equipment and intangible assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Net cash used in financing activities was RMB110.8 million
(2019: RMB34.0 million) for the year ended 31 December
2020. This mainly consisted of payments of dividends of
RMB63.2 million, net increase of bank loans of RMB14.7
million, payment of bank loan interests of RMB17.2 million
and investment in a non wholly owned subsidiary of
RMB43.0 million.

Long term and short term bank loans as of 31 December
2019 and 31 December 2020 were at floating interest rate
and were denominated in the following currencies.
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At 31 December

Rt+t=A=+—H
2020 2019
—EB-EE —EF-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Short term bank loans REIRITER
Hong Kong Dollar BIT 33,612 240,737
. Reaminbi ARE 60,000 114,000
93,612 354,737
Long term bank loan RERTTER
Hong Kong Dollar BT 258,532 -

On 20 December 2019, the Group accepted bank facilities
relating to a three-year term loan facilities in an aggregate
amount of HK$350,000,000 offered by a licensed bank
in Hong Kong. Pursuant to the facility, the controlling
shareholder shall maintain his equity interest and voting
rights in the Company at a certain level, and at the same
time it is subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to
certain of the Group’s financial ratios. A breach of these
undertakings would result in the drawn down facilities and
interest becoming payable on demand. The facilities were
utilized with a loan amounted to HK$350.0 million drawn
down in February 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had unutilized
banking facilities amounted to RMB400.4 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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The Group adopts a set of centralized financing and
treasury policies in order to ensure the Group’s funds are
utilized efficiently. The Group’s liquidity position remains
healthy and the Group possesses sufficient cash and
available banking facilities to meet its commitments and
working capital requirements.

The Group’s primary objectives for managing its capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to provide returns
to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder’s returns that might be possible with higher
level of borrowings and the advantages and security based
on a sound capital position, and makes adjustments
to the capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISKS

The Group mainly operates in mainland China with most
of the transactions originally denominated and settled
in RMB. However, the Group pays dividends in Hong
Kong dollars and the majority of its bank loans are also
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Accordingly, the Group
is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from Hong
dollar against RMB.

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
performing regular reviews of the Group’s net foreign
exchange exposures and to mitigate the impact on
exchange rate fluctuations by entering into currency hedge
arrangement if necessary. During the year ended 31
December 2019 and 2020, no forward foreign exchange
or hedging contracts had been entered into by the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, deposits with certain banks
of approximately RMB92.4 million (2019: RMB119.8
million) and a piece of land and certain properties thereon
located in Fujian Province of the PRC with carrying value
of RMB149.6 million (2019: Nil) were pledged as securities
for bank loans and bills payable facilities. At 31 December
2019, there were trade receivables of RMB114.0 million
pledged as securities for bank loans. The pledged bank
deposits, land and properties will be released upon the
settlement of relevant loans and bills payable.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENCIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had total capital
commitments of RMB96.7 million (2019: RMB81.5 million),
primarily related to ERP system upgrades, decoration
cost of an office in Guangzhou City and investments in
production facilities.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2020, the Group had no
material contingent liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 469 employees
(2019: 454 employees). Total staff costs, including
directors emoluments, for the period amounted to
approximately RMB94.2 million (2019: RMB88.6 million).
Annual increment and year-end performance bonus
mechanism were incorporated in the Group’s remuneration
policy to retain, reward and motivate individuals for their
contributions to the Group. Share options are granted
to eligible employees to recognise their contribution and
provide incentives to achieve better performance in coming
years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 18 March 2021 to Tuesday, 23 March
2021 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining
the shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“2021 AGM”). In order to qualify for attending and voting at
the 2021 AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificate must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar and transfer office, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 17 March
2021.

In addition, subject to the approval of the proposed final
dividend by the shareholders at the 2021 AGM on Tuesday,
23 March 2021, the register of members will be closed on
Monday, 29 March 2021 for the purpose of determining
shareholders who qualify for the proposed final dividend. In
order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificate must be
lodged with the Company’s share registrar and transfer
office, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 26 March 2021.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK5.3 cents (2019: HK3.0 cents) per ordinary share for
the financial year. Including the interim dividend paid for
the year ended 31 December 2020, total dividend payout
for the year is approximately HK$86.2 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB76.2 million) (2019: HK$70.2 million,
equivalent to approximately RMB63.9 million) or a dividend
payout ratio of 40% (2019: 40%). Subject to shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company, the final dividend will be paid in cash on
or around 13 April 2021 to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
Monday, 29 March 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration, payment and amount of dividends will
be subject to the Company’s discretion. Dividends may
be paid only out of its distributable reserves as permitted
under the relevant laws. Holders of the shares will be
entitled to receive such dividends pro rata according to
the amounts paid up or credited as paid up on the shares.
Subject to the factors described above, the Company
has adopted a general dividend policy since the financial
year ended 31 December 2018 of declaring and paying
dividends on semi-annual basis of not more than 50%
of its total net profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company. The Board would review the Company’s
dividend policy from time to time considering factors
including but not limited to debt covenants, capital
investment and business plan.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERERE

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance and business ethics in the firm belief
that they are essential for enhancing investors’ confidence
and maximizing shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews
its corporate governance practices from time to time in
order to meet the rising expectations of stakeholders,
and to comply with increasingly stringent regulatory
requirements as well as fulfill its commitment to excellence
in corporate governance.

After reviewing the Company’s corporate governance
practices and the relevant regulations of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
(the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the Board is
satisfied that save for the deviation from Code Provision
A.2.1 as disclosed below, the Company complied with
the CG Code provisions for the entire year ended 31
December 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and
responsible leadership for the Company. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith and in
the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
The Board has established four Board committees, being
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee (each a “Board Committee” and collectively
the “Board Committees”), to oversee different areas of
the Company’s affairs.

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ziming Yang, Mr. Siu Keung Ng and Mr.
Rongqin Ke and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui, Mr. Honghui Chen
and Mr. Ming Shu Leung.

Their biographical details and (where applicable) their family
relationships are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 53
to 59 in this annual report. A list of the Directors identifying
their roles and functions are available on the websites of
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Ziming Yang, the chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”) and an executive Director of the Company, is
the brother-in-law of Mr. Ronggin Ke, who is an executive
Director of the Company. Save as disclosed herein, there
are no other financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships among members of the Board.

The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and
strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and
financial performance and reviews the corporate
governance standard of the Group. It also decides
on matters such as annual and interim results, major
transactions, director appointments or re-appointments,
investment policy, dividend and accounting policies. The
Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the
daily operations of the Group’s businesses to the executive
Directors and members of senior management. The
functions and power that are so delegated are reviewed
periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing
and monitoring the policies and practices on corporate
governance and legal and regulatory compliance of the
Group, and the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management. The
Board also reviews the disclosures in the Corporate
Governance Report to ensure compliance.

All Board members have separate and independent
access to the Group’s senior management to fulfill their
duties. Independent professional advice can be sought to
assist the relevant Directors to discharge their duties at the
Group’s expense upon their request.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon
their first appointment, the directorships or other positions
they are concurrently holding at other companies or
organizations. These interests are updated on an annual
basis as and when necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TEER®RSE (&)

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by a number of committees,
including the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee. Each Board Committee has its defined and
written terms of reference approved by the Board covering
its duties, powers and functions. Their terms of reference
are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties, including access
to management or professional advice if considered
necessary.

(i) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 8
October 2013. The Audit Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui, Mr. Honghui Chen, and
Mr. Ming Shu Leung. Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui, who
has appropriate professional qualifications and
experience in accounting matters, was appointed as
the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee
are to assist the Board in providing an independent
view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management
systems, and relationship with external auditors
of the Group, overseeing the audit process and
performing other duties and such responsibilities
as assigned by the Board. The Audit Committee
meets with the Company’s external and internal
auditors, and reviews their audit plans, the internal
audit programs, the results of their examinations
as well as their evaluations of the system of risk
management and internal control.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during
the year ended 31 December 2020. Major work
completed by the Audit Committee during the year
includes:

° reviewed the Group’s annual report, interim
financial information and annual financial
statements;

o reviewed significant accounting and audit
issues;

° reviewed the external auditor’s qualifications,

independence and performance;

° reviewed the external auditor’s management
letter and the management’s response;

° reviewed annual internal audit plans;

° assisted the Board to evaluate on the
effectiveness of financial reporting procedures
and internal control system; and

o advised on material event or drawing the
attention of the management on related risks;

o reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group’s systems of internal control and
risk management;

° reviewed connected transactions entered into
by the Group or subsisting during the year
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TRERRE (F)

(ii)

4@ Cabbeen Fashion Limited ~ Annual Report 2020 @

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on
8 October 2013. The Remuneration Committee
comprises two independent non-executive Directors
and one Executive Director, namely Mr. Yung Kwok
Tsui, Mr. Ming Shu Leung and Mr. Siu Keung Ng. Mr.
Yung Kwok Tsui is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The principal responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee are to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the overall
remuneration structure and policy for all Directors
and senior management as well as the specific
remuneration packages for the executive Directors
and senior management and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent process for developing
such remuneration policy. No Director takes part
in any discussion on his own remuneration. The
Company'’s objective for its remuneration policy is
to maintain fair and competitive packages based
on business requirements and industry practice. In
order to determine the level of remuneration and
fees paid to members of the Board, market rates
and factors such as each director’s workload,
performance, responsibility, job complexity and the
Group’s performance are taken into account.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting
during the year ended 31 December 2020 and has
reviewed the remuneration policy and structure
relating to the Directors and senior management
of the Company and the Company’s share option
scheme.

(ii)

FMEES

FMEEeRN _ZET—=F+ANBK
Mo HNEBSRIEMBEIIENITE
ERABEEERRERTEUR—BH
TERERVBEL - BBR L AE
ZECERE FTHEESHNETERES
R R REE AR BRI
BERERBRARATEENSRERE
ERIH NS - Mk T b F BN R
KRV IERMEAFEHENEF - WHA
FEEREESREERZ - MEEEZ
EAEBEAGFHMAOER TR o AAA]
HEBERH B IZRIBRIBEERITS RTT
XEM BMRFNEFBELATRARS
7o RARAEMIGKE - FEENT
1EE  RI[  BE  TEEELAEH
FAERE  ETMESEXNEZNTH
NN IKFE -

HHEBRRBE 225+
= +—AIEEERRTRGH - B
EMEERAL R SHERBHHMEK
%R RAR A 2 B E -




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TREREE (H)

The remuneration of the members of the senior HE_ZT-ZTF+_HA=1+—HLFE
management of the Group by band for the year Tﬁiﬁléﬂ PG E S REIEERK B &
ended 31 December 2020 is set out below: BEIILT -
Remuneration bands Number of persons
B < &5 E AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,00087C 8
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 &7t 2 1,500,000 87T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T E 2,000,000 78 7T 1
Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration BIEEmRAMS T NEATHEENEH
and the five highest paid employees as required to ExMe kAt aTMEENE—F
be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing EEE b e DR P
Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements.
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TRERRE (F)

(iii) RBZEE®

(iii) Nomination Committee

4@ Cabbeen Fashion Limited ~ Annual Report 2020 @

The Nomination Committee was established
on 8 October 2013. It comprises one executive
Director and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ziming Yang, Mr. Honghui
Chen and Mr. Ming Shu Leung. Mr. Ziming Yang
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
The principal responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee are to review the composition of the
Board, including its structure, size and diversity
at least annually to ensure that it has a balance of
expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements of the business of the Group. It is also
responsible for considering and recommending to
the Board suitably qualified persons to become
a member of the Board, monitor the succession
planning of Directors and assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee will also give consideration
to the Board Diversity Policy (as defined below)
when identifying suitably qualified candidates to
become members of the Board, and the Board will
review the Board Diversity Policy (as defined below),
SO as to develop and review measurable objectives
for the implementing the Board Diversity Policy
(as defined below) and to monitor the progress on
achieving these objectives.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during
the year ended 31 December 2020 and reviewed
the size, diversity and composition of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

(iv) Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee was
established on 8 October 2013. It comprises
one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Siu Keung
Ng, Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui and Mr. Ming Shu
Leung. Mr. Siu Keung Ng is the chairman of the
Corporate Governance Committee. The principal
responsibilities of the Corporate Governance
Committee are to review and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance, the
training and continuous professional development of
the Company’s Directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
and to review the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

The Corporate Governance Committee held one
meeting during the year ended 31 December 2020
and has reviewed the Group’s corporate governance
policies and practices and sufficiency of training to
the Company’s Directors and senior management.

(iv)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TRERBHE (F)

BOARD MEETINGS

Board meetings are held regularly and at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. For regular Board
meetings, notices of at least 14 days are given to facilitate
maximum attendance of the Directors and agenda with
supporting papers are sent to Directors not less than 3
days before the relevant meeting is held. Directors may
propose to the Chairman or the Company Secretary to
include matters in the agenda for regular board meetings.
At the meeting, the Directors are provided with the relevant
documents to be considered and approved. Draft and
final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comments and records respectively within a reasonable
time after the board meeting is held. Minutes of Board
meetings are taken by the Company Secretary or a duly
appointed secretary of the Board meeting and are open for
inspection by any Director.

The table below sets out the attendance of each Director
at the annual general meeting (the “AGM”) and the
meetings of the Board and other Board committees held
during the year:

AGM Board
RRBEFAE EZg
Executive Directors ~ #{TE%
Mr. Ziming Yang BEREE 1A 4/4
Mr. Siu Keung Ng RO®EAE 17 4/4
Mr. Rongain Ke R 0/1 4/4
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive
Directors
Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui RRELE 11 4/4
Mr. Honghui Chen REBEE 0/1 3/4
Mr. Ming Shu Leung RRESE 0/1 4/4
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Meetings attended/held

e/ Bres
Corporate
Audit Remuneration  Nomination  governance
Committee committee committee committee
ENZEE FMZEE REZEE L¥ERZEE
N/A REf N/A NEF il N/A TER
N/A TNEF 1 N/A TiE R 11
NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER
212 11 N/A NEF 11
2/2 N/A TNE 0/1 N/A TN
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 28 October 2019, subject to his
retirement and re-election at annual general meeting in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association,
a person may be appointed as a Director either by the
shareholders in general meeting or by the Board. Any
Directors appointed by the Board as additional Directors
or to fill casual vacancies shall hold office until the next
following general meeting, and are eligible for re-election
by the shareholders. In addition, all Directors are required
to retire by rotation at least once every three years at the
annual general meeting, and are eligible for re-election by
the shareholders.

BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee shall endeavor to find
individuals of high integrity who have a solid record of
accomplishment in their chosen fields and who possess
the qualifications, qualities and skills to effectively represent
the best interests of the Group and its shareholders.
Candidates will be selected for their ability to exercise good
judgment, and to provide practical insights and diverse
perspectives. Candidates also will be assessed in the
context of the then-current composition of the Board, the
operating requirements of the Group. In conducting this
assessment, the Nomination Committee will, in connection
with its assessment and recommendation of candidates
for director, consider diversity (including, but not limited
to, gender, race, ethnicity, age, experience and skills) and
such other factors as it deems appropriate given the then
current and anticipated future needs of the Board and
the Company, and to maintain a balance of perspectives,
qualifications, qualities and skills on the Board.
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TREREE (&)

The Nomination Committee considers the following
qualifications at a minimum to be required of any Board
members in recommending to the Board potential new
board members, or the continued service of existing
members:

o the highest professional and personal ethics;

o broad experience in business;

° ability to provide insights and practical wisdom
based on their experience and expertise;

° commitment to enhancing shareholder value;

° sufficient time to effectively carry out their duties;

their service on other boards of public companies
should be limited to a reasonable number;

° compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
and
° ability to develop a good working relationship with

other Board members and contribute to the Board’s
working relationship with senior management of the
Group.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) on 8
October 2013. The Company recognizes and embraces
the benefits of diversity of Board members. While all Board
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis,
the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the needs of the Company’s business. Selection
of candidates will be based on the Company’s Board
Nomination Policy and a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The Board also aspires
to having an appropriate proportion of directors who
have direct experience in the Group’s core markets and
distribution channels.

The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board, having due regard to the benefits of diversity on the
Board and also the needs of the Board without focusing
on a single diversity aspect.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING
AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the
shareholders and have exercised their duties with care, skill
and diligence, in pursuit of the development of the Group.
All Directors are provided with monthly updates on the
Company’s performance and financial position to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties. In addition, briefings and updates on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements are provided to the
Board during Board meetings to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices. In November 2020, the Company, together with
its legal adviser, organized a training session to provide the
Directors with an update on the Listing Rules.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Until 12 March 2020, the roles of the Chairman and chief
executive officer were separate and are not performed
by the same individual as this ensures better checks
and balances and hence better corporate governance.
Mr. Ziming Yang held the position of the Chairman, who
was primarily responsible for strategic positioning. Mr.
Siu Keung Ng served as the chief executive officer, who
was primarily responsible for the operations and business
development of the Group.

Mr. Siu Keung Ng stepped down as chief executive officer
of the Group and Mr. Ziming Yang holds the positions of
Chairman and chief executive officer with effect from 12
March 2020. Mr. Ng continues to be an executive Director
of the Company. Such practice deviates from Code
Provision A.2.1 which stipulates that the roles of Chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TEER®RSE (&)

In view of Mr. Yang’s extensive experience in the industry
and deep understanding of the Group’s businesses, the
Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and
chief executive officer in Mr. Yang provides the Group with
strong and consistent leadership, allows for more effective
planning and execution of long-term business strategies
and enhances efficiency in decision-making.

As all major decisions are made in consultation with
members of the Board and relevant Board committees,
and there are independent non-executive Directors on the
Board offering independent perspectives, the Board is
therefore of the view that there are adequate safeguards
in place to ensure sufficient balance of powers within the
Board. The Board will continue to review and monitor the
practices of the Company for the purpose of complying
with the CG Code and maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices of the Company.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is
to provide independent and objective opinions to the
Board, giving adequate control and balances for the
Group to protect the overall interests of the shareholders
and the Group. They serve actively on the Board and its
committees to provide their independent and objective
views.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three independent
non-executive Directors, representing more than one-
third of the Board. One of the independent non-executive
Directors has the appropriate professional qualifications in
accounting or related financial management expertise as
required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Each independent non-executive Director has submitted
annual confirmation of his independence to the Company
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the
contents of such confirmations, the Company considers
that all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s code
of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions (the
“Securities Dealing Code”). Upon specific enquiries,
all Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the relevant provisions of the Securities Dealing Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

Senior management who, because of their office in
the Company, are likely to be in possession of inside
information, have also been requested to comply with the
provisions of the Securities Dealing Code when dealing in
the Company’s shares.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lai Wah Wong, the Company Secretary of the
Company, is a full-time employee of the Group and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. She
also serves as the secretary of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Corporate Governance Committee and other board
committees as organised by the Board from time to
time. Ms. Wong is responsible for advising the Board
through the Chairman and/or the chief executive officer on
governance matters.

During the financial year, the Company Secretary complied
with the relevant professional training requirement under
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The biographical details of
the Company Secretary is set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 53 to 59 in the annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TRERBHE (F)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board recognizes its responsibility to ensure
the Company maintains a sound and effective risk
management and internal control system. The Group’s
internal control system is designed to safeguard assets
against misappropriation and unauthorized disposition
and to manage operational risks. Review of the Group’s
internal controls covering major financial, operational
and compliance controls, as well as risk management
functions. The controls built into the risk management
system are intended to manage, not eliminate, significant
risks in the Group’s business environment.

The Group’s risk management framework includes the
following elements:

° identify significant risks in the Group’s operation
environment and evaluate the impacts of those risks
on the Group’s business;

o develop necessary measures to manage those
risks;

o monitor and review the effectiveness of such
measures.

The implementation of risk management framework of
the Group was assisted by the Group’s internal audit
department so that the Group could ensure new and
emerging risks relevant to the Group’s operation are
promptly identified by management, assess the adequacy
of action plans to manage these risks and monitor and
evaluate the effectiveness of the action plans. These are
on-going processes and our Audit Committee reviews
periodically the Group’s risk management systems.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Audit committee reported to the Board the implementation
of the Group’s risk management and internal control policy
which, among other things, included the determination
of risk factors, evaluation of risk level the Group could
take and effectiveness of risk management measures.
Based on the reports from the Group’s internal control
department and the Audit Committee, the Board considers
the Group’s risk management and internal control system
is adequate and effective and the Group has complied with
the provisions on risk management and internal controls
as set out in the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN
PREPARING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Company’s accounts which give a true and fair view of
the Group’s state of affairs, results and cash flows for the
year and in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board, and the Companies Ordinance. The
Company has selected appropriate accounting policies
and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimates. The Board considers
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
business for the foreseeable future and not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may affect the business of the Company or cast doubts on
its ability to continue as going concern.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

KPMG has been appointed as the external auditor of
the Company. The Audit Committee has been notified of
the nature and the service charges of non-audit services
performed by KPMG and considered that such services
have no adverse effect on the independence of the
external auditor.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TRERBHE (F)

During the year, the fees payable to KPMG or its affiliated
firms comprise service charges for the following:

Statutory audit ETEEZ
Review of interim results ERPEEE
Internal control review NEPES R B
Other non-audit services HAnIER TR

There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the selection and appointment of the
external auditor during the year under review.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Mr. Ziming Yang, Acute Result Holdings Limited (“Acute
Result”), Ascend Fame Limited (“Ascend Fame”), Prime
Ascend Limited (“Prime Ascend”) are the controlling
shareholders (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) of
the Company (the “Controlling Shareholders”). Each
of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the
Company that none of them is engaged in, or interested
in any business (other than the Group) which directly or
indirectly competes or may compete with the business
of the Group. To protect the Group from any potential
competition, the Controlling Shareholders have given an
irrevocable non-compete undertaking in the Group’s favour
on 8 October 2013 (the “Deed of Non-competition”).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In order to properly manage any potential or actual
conflict of interests between the Group and the
Controlling Shareholders in relation to the compliance
and enforcement of the non-compete undertaking, the
Company has adopted the following corporate governance
measures:

(@ the independent non-executive Directors will
review, on an annual basis, the compliance with the
undertaking given by the Controlling Shareholders
under the Deed of Non-competition;

(b) the Controlling Shareholders undertake to provide
all information requested by the Company which is
necessary for the annual review by the independent
non-executive Directors and the enforcement of the
Deed of Non-competition;

(© the Company will disclose decisions on matters
reviewed by the independent non-executive
Directors relating to compliance and enforcement
of the non-compete undertaking of the Controlling
Shareholders under the Deed of Non-competition in
the annual reports of the Company; and

(d) the Controlling Shareholders will make an annual
declaration on compliance with their undertaking
under the Deed of Non-competition in the annual
report of the Company.

The Directors consider that the above corporate
governance measures are sufficient to manage any
potential conflict of interests between the Controlling
Shareholders and their respective associates and the
Group and to protect the interests of the shareholders, in
particular, the minority shareholders.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the
Company that he/it has complied with the Deed of Non-
competition. The independent non-executive Directors
of the Company have reviewed the status of compliance
and enforcement of the Deed of Non-competition and
confirmed that all the undertakings thereunder have been
complied with.
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TREREE (&)

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company aims to, via its corporate governance
structure, enable all its shareholders an equal opportunity
to exercise their rights in an informed manner and allow all
shareholders to engage actively with the Company. Under
the Company’s articles of association, the shareholder
communication policy and other relevant internal
procedures of the Company, the shareholders of the
Company enjoy, among others, the following rights:

(i) Participation at general meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide
an opportunity for direct communication between
the Board and the shareholders. The Company
encourages the participation of the shareholders
through annual general meetings and other general
meetings where the shareholders meet and
exchange views with the Board, and to exercise
their right to vote at meetings. The Company shall
arrange notices of meetings and circulars containing
details on proposed resolutions to be sent to
the shareholders no less than 20 business days
before the meeting. At general meetings, separate
resolutions are proposed on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors.

(i) Enquiries and proposals to the Board

The Company encourages shareholders to attend
shareholders’ meetings and make proposals by
either directly raising questions on both operational
and governance matters to the Board and Board
Committees at the general meetings or providing
written notice of such proposals for the attention
of the Company Secretary at the registered office
of the Company in Hong Kong currently situated at
Unit A&B, 26 Floor, Billion Plaza Il, 10 Cheung Yue
Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon or via email to
ir@cabbeen.com.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

(i) Convening extraordinary general

meetings

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene
an extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary
general meetings shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the
Directors or the Company Secretary and deposited
at the registered office of the Company in Hong
Kong currently situated at Unit A&B, 26 Floor,
Billion Plaza Il, 10 Cheung Yue Street, Cheung
Sha Wan, Kowloon for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Directors for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days
of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions under the Company’s
articles of association or the Companies Law, Cap
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands regarding procedures for
shareholders to put forward proposals at general
meetings other than a proposal of a person for
election as director. Shareholders may follow
the procedures set out above to convene an
extraordinary general meeting for any business
specified in such written requisition.

(iii)
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TREREE (&)

The notice of annual general meeting together
with the accompanying circular setting out the
relevant information as required under the Listing
Rules are sent to shareholders at least 20 clear
business days prior to the meeting. Poll voting has
been adopted for decision-making at shareholders’
meetings to ensure that each share is entitled to
one vote. Details of the poll voting procedures are
set out in the circular sent to shareholders prior to
the meeting and explained at the commencement
of the meeting. Voting results are posted on the
Company'’s website on the day of the annual general
meeting.

(iv) Procedures for proposing a person for
election as a Director

Pursuant to the Article 85 of the articles of
associations of the Company, no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be
eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless a Notice (as defined therein) signed
by a Member (as defined therein) (other than the
person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given
of his intention to propose such person for election
and also a Notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the Registration
Office provided that the minimum length of the
period, during which such Notice(s) are given, shall
be at least seven (7) days and that (if the Notices
are submitted after the despatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election)
the period for lodgment of such Notice(s) shall
commence on the day after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven (7) days prior
to the date of such general meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the memorandum and articles
of association of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2020.

(iv)
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ziming Yang (#%4%8), aged 49, is the founder of
the Group. He was appointed as an executive Director of
the Company on 3 November 2011. He is the chairman
of the Board of the Company since November 2011
and has been the chief executive officer of the Company
since March 2020. Mr. Yang is primarily responsible
for overall corporate strategies, planning and business
development, and leads the Group’s design and research
and development team.

Mr. Yang first started his fashion and wholesale of apparel
business in April 1992. In October 1997, Mr. Yang began
to design and wholesale Cabbeen branded apparel.
Mr. Yang has over 20 years of experience in design. He
has been one of the most famous designers in China, who
won the award for “Best Menswear Designer’™ (£ FE %
& 5HEM) at the China International Fashion Week* (#
BREFZEIE) in 2009 and “The 14th China Fashion Design
Top Award™ (148 BIRFEERFTE2TEEE), which is the
top honor in apparel design in China in 2010. Mr. Yang
was accredited as “2010 Quanzhou Economic Figure”
(20105 & R M £E55 A %) and was the member of the 10th
China Young Entrepreneurs Association (5 +/&~ B & F
TEXRBEEE) in 2010. In 2011, he was the honorable
president of Shishi Textile & Garments Commerce
Chamber’s Council (BT ##ESREESEESZELR)
and a committee member of the 11th Committee of All-
China Youth Federation (FE2BEFFHEEE T+ —EE
E&Z8). In 2012, Mr. Yang was the first president of the
Fashion Designers’ Association of Fujian Province* (1824
ARE R TR &% — @& ) and the honorable president
of Quanzhou APEC Commerce Chamber’s Council* (&
MAPECHEBIHEHEER). In March 2013, Mr. Yang
became the consulting professor of Beijing Institute of
Fashion Technology (1t = ARZEEEFR). In April 2014, Fujian
Normal University (18R &A% appointed Mr. Yang as
a guest professor. In addition, Mr. Yang is currently the
vice president and a member of the standing committee
and the arts committee of the China Fashion Designers
Association (FEIARFERETENHE). Mr. Yang has been
the vice president of the standing committee of the China
Garment Association* ({F Bk 2 173 2) since October 2013,
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In April 2013, Mr. Yang was awarded as 2012 Innovative
person of China textile industry* (2012/F B4 47T FE
BIFT AY) by The Association of China Textile Industry*
(PR HTEBAE). In 2015, Mr. Yang was awarded
the “New China Annual Award for Artistic Innovation™ (¥t
FR R E i8I ¥4 E K 2%) by the China Fashion Designers
Association and New China Clothing Industry Innovation
& Development Fund* (¥THBIREEXZAFEREE S D).
Since August 2019, Mr. Yang has been a consultant for
the Guangdong branch of the China Fashion Designers
Association. He also participated in the design and
production of the apparel used for the civilian parade held
during the 70th anniversary of the People’s Republic of
China. In 2020, Mr. Yang was awarded as 2020 Best of
the Best Designer of the Year* (2182 i&2020[ FE &

B ), and awarded as Outstanding Individual in Nat|onal
Textile and Apparel Industry for Fighting Novel Coronavirus
Epidemic* (2BISHEITEM BT K ZITLEEA) by
China National Textile and Apparel Council* (47 Bl %7 4% T
#0444 2). In the same year, he served as the anti-drug
ambassador for Shishi city.

Mr. Yang received his EMBA in Sun Yat-Sen University
(FF LK E2) in June 2011. Mr. Yang is the brother-in-law of
Mr. Rongain Ke (fe]#54X) who is also our executive Director.

Mr. Siu Keung Ng (R43&), aged 50, is one of the
founding members of the Group and has been an
executive Director of the Company since 18 February
2013. Mr. Ng was the chief executive officer of the
Company from February 2013 to March 2020. He is
responsible for overseeing investor relations and legal
matters of the Company.

Mr. Ng has over 20 years of experience in various
aspects, including business operation, management,
sales, procurement, financial and human resource.
Mr. Ng obtained his bachelor’s degree in material
engineering majoring in forge craft and equipment from
Shanghai Jiao Tong University (_E/& 323 A2 in July 1992.
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Mr. Ronggqin Ke (f1#588), aged 46, is one of the founding
members of the Group and has been an executive Director
of the Company since 18 February 2013. Mr. Ronggin
Ke is primarily responsible for supply chain and financial
management. Mr. Ke has over 20 years of experience in
various aspects, including manufacturing, product design
and research and development and procurement.

Mr. Ke obtained his diploma certificate in business
administration from Hunan University of Technology (i#
F LK) in January 2008. Mr. Ke was accredited as
“2011-2012 Top Ten Professional Managers of Apparel
Industry in Guangdong Province™ (2011-2012FE EHE
AREEITE T ERZELIEA) in August 2012. He completed
the EMBA program at Lingnan College of Sun Yat-Sen
University ({ LA 2487 226%) in June 2013.

Mr. Rongain Ke is the brother-in-law of Mr. Ziming Yang.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui (#%&El), aged 52, is an
independent non-executive Director and was appointed
to the Board on 18 February 2013. Mr. Tsui has over
20 years of extensive experience in auditing and
accounting, including experience from corporations and
an international accounting firm. Mr. Tsui joined Ju Teng
International Holdings Limited (EEBIFRIEA AR A 7))
(stock code: 3336) in August 2004 and has been the
company'’s executive director and chief financial officer
since its listing in the Stock Exchange and served as the
company secretary from August 2004 to March 2017.

He has also respectively been an independent non-
executive director of Shenguan Holdings (Group) Limited
(1EiER (EE) BIRAR]) (stock code: 829) since
September 2009 and Intron Technology Holdings Limited
(FEBEHTIER AR A R) (stock code: 1760) since July
2018, both of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Tsui was also an independent non-executive director
of 361 Degrees International Limited (361EBERER A
Al) (stock code: 1361) from September 2012 to May 2019
and SITC International Holdings Company Limited (&%
BN BR A ) (stock code: 1308) from September
2010 to December 2020.
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Mr. Tsui obtained his bachelor’s degree of business in
accounting from Curtin University of Technology in August
1992 and his master’s degree of corporate governance
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December
2007. Mr. Tsui has been a member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since February 1997, a
member of Chartered Accountants Australia and New
Zealand since June 2000, and a member of CPA Australia
since September 1996. He has also been a member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries since
December 2007 .

Mr. Honghui Chen (FR %= 1&), aged 49, is an independent
non-executive Director and was appointed to the
Board on 18 February 2013. Mr. Chen has 27 years
of extensive experience teaching universities in the
fields of management, economics and corporate social
responsibility. From July 1993 to June 2003, Mr. Chen
worked in Wuhan University of Science and Technology,
primarily teaching management and economics. From
July 2008 till now, Mr. Chen has worked in Sun Yat-Sen
University, primarily teaching courses including strategic
management and corporate social responsibility. Mr. Chen
had been granted the title of deputy professor from April
2004 to July 2008 and has been subsequently granted the
title of professor since July 2008.

Mr. Chen was the deputy dean of Lingnan College in
Sun Yat-Sen University (1L K22Em 22T £) from
November 2007 to March 2012 and the chairman of
the Department of Economics and the Department
of Management at Lingnan College of Sun Yat-Sen
University* (FILRZEMERLHEERRZLESERE
ZE1E) from February 2008 to April 2018. Mr Chen has
been the director of the Research Center for Corporate
Social Responsibility at Lingnan College of Sun Yat-Sen
University* (FILKRZEEERMET ST EHTH L
F1F) since July 2009. From 2004 till now, Mr. Chen has
done various researches on the topics of corporate social
responsibility and strategic management and economics
efficiency, which were subsidies by the PRC or local
government. The essay written by Mr. Chen in 2007 was
accredited as the Second Prize of The Philosophy and
Society Science Outstanding Achievement in Guangdong
Province* (ER & B2 2R 2EFHR -FH).

R ER — NN ZF )\ A% Curtin University
of Technology M &5t S+ 26 - TR =F
THF+ - AERBET AENDEE BT
BA o REEB—NNEF_ARAB A
MAggs  B-TTTFNARBEMNKG
AT EtMpee B RE—NNANFNA
RARMNETAMAEEE - RITB_ZZTLF
TZRARRBEEBFIMEAEEE -

PREMESE 4958 BUIFFNITESE W=
T—=F_A+/\BHEZEMAZESE - [R5
ESHMBB T EFEREBHEERE  EBERD
EnestERNEELR - —WN=FtA
ZITT=FRA  REATERERBRKREME
B FEHYREEREE - —TT=FLAZE
S REA—BEEFILREBEH - TEHED
RECREBEERCELSEMT - REER
—EENFNAEEENFL AEREIHE
By - WiNBEe B — 2T )\ F+ ARERIR
BT -

BREENR-_ZTLF+-HAET—-F=H
LAFRILREEEERERE  RZEENEF
CAEZZE - N\FHASERILREEES
KEEHEANEAEEERERZET  IE_TTHh
FrAR—EREFRLAZEmERPETS
EEMFEFROLESL - —TTNEFEES - RELE
B ENSEAURCESREREERE
IZ AT - BRI EF RS TBRETE
B) o RAER T+ FRENAHRXEREE
REBBHGRBEEFNR S -




BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Chen has been the independent director of Guangzhou
Grandbuy Co., Ltd. (B/MNTEBARNHARALR]) (SZSE
stock code: 002187) since September 2016 and of China
National Accord Medicines Corporation Limited (2 %44 =]
—HEERD AR AR (SZSE stock code: 000028) since
April 2017, both companies are listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chen obtained the Qualification of Teacher of the PRC
in 1996. He also obtained his doctoral degree in enterprise
management from Zhejiang University in June 2003.

Mr. Ming Shu Leung (R #1&), aged 45, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 18 February
2013. Mr. Leung founded an internet private equity fund
Harmony Capital as founding partner in January 2018.
Mr. Leung has been the company secretary of China ITS
(Holdings) Co., Ltd. (PRI RERBRES(IZR)BRAF),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1900), since January 2008 and the chief financial officer
of this company from January 2008 to January 2018. He
has also been an independent non-executive director of
Comtec Solar Systems Group Limited (F#F+52 AF58E
G EEAR AR (stock code: 712) since June 2008,
Sun King Power Electronics Group Limited (stock code:
580) since March 2017, and Renrui Human Resources
Technology Holdings Limited (stock code: 6919) since
November 2019, all of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Leung has joined Glory Star New Media
Group Limited, a company listed on NASDAQ (stock code:
GSMG.US), as an independent director in February 2020.
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Mr. Leung has over 20 years of experience in the areas
of corporate finance and accounting. Mr. Leung started
his professional career at PricewaterhouseCoopers in
Hong Kong as an auditor in 1998. He then worked at
the global corporate finance division of Arthur Andersen
& Co. in Hong Kong, which subsequently merged with
PricewaterhouseCoopers, until December 2000. From
July 2001 to February 2003, Mr. Leung also worked as
a business consultant in Market Catalyst International
(Hong Kong) Limited, where he advised companies on
issues of strategy, organization and operations. Mr. Leung
then spent approximately three years from February
2003 to January 2006 at CDC Corporation, a NASDAQ-
listed company, as a senior manager in the mergers and
acquisitions department, and as the chief financial officer
of China.com Inc., a subsidiary of CDC Corporation and
a company listed on the Stock Exchange. From February
2006 to October 2006, Mr. Leung served as the chief
financial officer of Beijing Xinwei Telecom Technology
Co., Ltd., a related party of KEEERERHER AT
(Datang Telecom Technology Co., Ltd., a company listed
on The Shanghai Stock Exchange) which is engaged in
the development of telecommunication standard and
manufacture of telecommunication equipment. From
November 2006 to January 2008, he served as the chief
financial officer of Beijing Lingtu Spacecom Technology
Co., Ltd (tREEEARKARAT]), a subsidiary of
Beijing Lingtu Software Co., Ltd (It REBE A4 EMTA
R A7), a PRC digital mapping and navigation software
company.

Mr. Leung obtained his bachelor’s degree in arts with
first class honor in accountancy from The City University
of Hong Kong in June 1998 and a master’s degree in
accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in
November 2001. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants (FCCA) and a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (FCPA).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Lai Wah Wong (EE%), aged 46, is the chief
financial officer of the Group. Ms. Wong is also
the company secretary and one of the authorized
representatives of the Company. Ms. Wong joined the
group in April 2012 and is primarily responsible for overall
financial management and company secretarial affairs
and coordination of investor relations. Ms. Wong has
over 20 years of experience in auditing, tax and financial
management. Prior to joining us, she had worked in
international accounting firms and other companies listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Wong
obtained her bachelor’s degree of arts in accounting at The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1997 and master’s
degree of science in corporate finance at The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology in 2014. She is also
a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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EEEHS

The Directors are pleased to present the annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and is domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office
at Unit A&B, 26/F, Billion Plaza Il, 10 Cheung Yue Street,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Group’s
principal place of business is in the PRC.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are wholesaling and
retailing of branded apparels and related accessories in
the PRC. The principal activities and other particulars
of the subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, aggregate
sales to the Group’s largest and five largest customers of
apparel products accounted for 8.0% (2019: 9.9%) and
24.4% (2019: 35.1%), respectively, of the Group’s total
revenue for the year.

Aggregate purchases from the Group’s largest and five
largest suppliers of apparel products accounted for 5.9%
(2019: 12.4%) and 24.4% (2019: 34.2%), respectively, of
the Group’s total purchases from suppliers for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder of the Company (who or
which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest
in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the latest five financial years is set out on
page 235 of the annual report. This summary does not
form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s
affairs as at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 94 to 234 of the annual
report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the
Group are set out in note 26 to the financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately RMB48.7 million.

DIVIDEND

On 3 August 2020, the Company declared an interim
dividend of HK7.6 cents (2019: HK7.5 cents) per ordinary
share for the six months ended 30 June 2020. The
Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK5.3 cents (2019: HK3.0 cents) per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2020.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to RMB15,588,000 (2019: RMB201,000).
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Details of acquisitions and other movements of non-current
assets (including investment properties, other property,
plant and equipment, interests in leasehold land held for
own use under operating leases and intangible assets) are
set out in notes 11, 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business overview and financial
performance

The review of the Group’s business and financial
performance for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
provided in the section “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Principal risks and uncertainties

A number of factors may affect the results and business
operations of the Group, some of which are inherent to
fashion business and some are from external sources.
Major risks are summarized below.

(i)

(ii)

Fashion risk

Our success depends on our ability to define
products trends and anticipate, gauge and react to
changing consumer demands in a timely manner.
Failure to anticipate and respond timely to changing
consumer preferences could lead to lower sales
and excess inventory levels. With respect to each
design concept, it is important to have the right
volume of stocks and strike the right balance in the
mix between fashion basics and the latest trends.
To track the acceptance of our fashion concept
in the market closely, we introduce products in
different batches throughout the season and will
further shorten the product development cycle in
order to reduce the lead time between production
and delivery to customers. In addition, shopping
patterns and the length of product seasons can vary
in different parts of mainland China. Fashion designs
which are popular in one province of mainland China
at a given time may not be as popular in another
local market.

Intense competition

We compete not only with local Chinese apparel
brands, but also with other international fashion
brands. Areas of competition include product
designs, production costs, marketing programs,
customer services. If we do not respond timely to
our competitors, our costs may increase or the
consumer demand for our products may decline
and our revenue and profits would decrease.
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(iii)

(iv)
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Macroeconomic and social environment
The risk exists that negative macroeconomic
changes may result in negative changes in the
business environment. Fashion products may be
considered as discretionary items for customers.
Slower consumer spending may result in reduced
demand for our products, reduced orders from our
distributors, order cancellations, higher discounts,
increased inventories, lower revenue and margins. It
is therefore important that the Group is aware of any
such changes of economic environment and adjusts
its store opening plan, buying volume and business
plan under different market conditions.

In addition, if any event which materially and
adversely affect the social environment of the
markets where we operate arises, such as the
Pandemic, such event may cause a significant
impact on our ability to operate business in a
normal manner. Such event may cause disruptions
to our normal business activities, manufacturing
of products by us and/or our suppliers, logistics
involved in distributing our products, among other
aspects of our business. The Group’s operating
results and financial condition may be materially and
adversely affected as a result.

Supply chain

We operate manufacturing facilities in Fujian,
the PRC since November 2019 for producing
some of our core products. We still depend upon
independent manufacturers to produce majority of
our products and materials. Any disruption in the
supply of fabric, raw materials and products from
suppliers may cause problems in our supply chain.
We have no long-term contracts with any of our
suppliers and we may need to compete with other
companies for fabrics, raw materials and apparel
products. Nevertheless, we have developed long-
standing relationships with a number of our vendors
so as to minimize the impact from any supply
disruptions and ensure we can locate alternative
suppliers of comparable quality at a reasonable
price all the time. For the year ended 31 December
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2020, 24.4% (2019: 34.5%) of our products were
produced by our top five suppliers and we have at
least three years’ business relationship with these
suppliers.

Financial conditions of our distributors

We extend credit to our distributors based on as
assessments of their financial conditions, repayment
history and sales performance of the retail outlets
operated by them, generally without requiring
collateral. To assist in the scheduling of production
of our products, our customers could place orders
four to five months ahead of delivery under our
sales fair ordering system. These advance orders
may be cancelled and the risk of cancellation may
increase when dealing with distributors struggling
with financial difficulties. A slowing economy could
also adversely affect the financial conditions of our
customers, which in turn could have an adverse
effect on our results of operation. In addition,
product sales are dependent in part on an appealing
store environment to attract consumers, which
requires continuing investments by distributors.
Distributors that experience financial difficulties may
fail to make such investments and result in lower
sales and orders for our products.

Information system

We are dependent on information technology
systems and networks, including the internet and
third-party hosted services across many of our
operating activities, including sales and distribution,
ordering and purchases, sales and distribution,
inventory management in all retail outlets,
e-commerce business, customer relationship
management, digital marketing and financial
reporting. Any material disruption or slowdown of
our IT systems, including a disruption or slowdown
caused by our failure to successfully upgrade our
systems, system failures, viruses or cyber attacks
could cause a loss of data or operation interruption.
Therefore, we invest continuously in our IT and
ERP system so as to keep up with the technology
security and availability and integrity of critical
operation data.

(v)

(vi)
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Reputational risk

Cabbeen is one of the leading Chinese fashion
causal designer brands and our success depends
on our ability to maintain and enhance our brand
image and reputation. Maintaining and promoting
our brands will depend on our product design,
marketing efforts and product quality. In addition,
effect of our marketing activities depends on
our ability to adapt to the rapid changing media
environment, including social media and online
advertising campaigns. Should existing and potential
customers lose confidence in Cabbeen/or one of
its brands, or in the industry in general, because
of negative publicity, the Group’s sales would
decrease. To safeguard and manage the brand,
it is important that the Group continues to uphold
its brand value, corporate image, product safety
and maintain high business ethics. In addition,
it is also important that communication with our
shareholders, customers and other stakeholders is
accurate, transparent and reliable.

Weather

Extreme weather conditions in the areas in which
our retail stores, suppliers and customers are
located could adversely affect our operating results
and financial condition.

Key Relationships

(i)
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Employees

To remain competitive in the retail apparel industry,
we must attract, develop, and retain skilled
employees in our design, merchandising, supply
chain, marketing, and other functions.

We strive to motivate employees with a clear
career path and opportunities for advancement
and improvement of their skills. We provide
pre-employment and on-the-job training and
development opportunities to our staff members.
The training programs cover areas such as
managerial skills, sales and production, customer
services, quality control, sales fairs planning,
workplace ethics and training of other areas relevant
to the industry.
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We conduct employee engagement survey across
its Hong Kong and mainland China operations once
a year. We seriously consider all those valuable
feedback from our employees for enhancing
workplace productivity and harmony.

In addition, we offer competitive remuneration
packages to employees and have also adopted
share option schemes to recognize and reward the
contribution of the employees to the growth and
development of the Group.

Suppliers

We have developed long-standing relationships
with a number of our vendors and take great care
to ensure that they share our commitment to
quality and ethics. We carefully select our suppliers
and require them to satisfy certain assessment
criteria including track record, experience, financial
strength, reputation, ability to produce high-quality
products and quality control effectiveness. We also
require our suppliers to comply with our anti-bribery
policy.

Distributors

We sell our products to end customers through
third-party distributors. We work with our
distributors like we are business partners and
ensure we share the view for upholding our brand
value and customer services, specifically focusing
on attracting and retaining customers in order to
drive sales growth. We and our distributors reach an
agreement on retail sales target and store expansion
plan before they place their orders. We require
our distributors and sub-distributors to comply
with our retail policies, including but not limited to
nationwide product retail selling price, standard
store images, promotional activities and use of our
ERP system. We also monitor the financial condition
and repayment history of our distributors, and retail
sales performance of the stores operated by them.
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(iv) Customers

We are committed to offer a broad and diverse
range of inspiring, value-for money, good-quality
fashion with our various brands to our customers.
We also stay connected with our customers. We
maintain our VIP database and have ongoing
communications with our customers through mainly
social media. We also work with our distributors
and provide training to their key sales personnel to
provide quality and value-added customer services
at retail channel.

Environmental Policies

We are committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural
resources. We strive to minimize our environmental impact
by saving electricity and encouraging recycle of office
supplies and other materials. We also require our own
factory and factories of our suppliers to operate in strict
compliance with the relevant environmental regulations and
rules and possess all necessary permission and approval
from the relevant Chinese regulators.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries in mainland China while the
Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. Our
establishment and operations accordingly shall comply
with relevant laws and regulations in mainland China and
Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2020
and up to the date of this report, the Group has complied
with all the relevant laws and regulations in mainland China
and Hong Kong.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of
the Company as at the date of this annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2020 and at any time up to the date of this annual report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s articles of association or the laws of the
Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ziming Yang (Chairman)
Mr. Siu Keung Ng
Mr. Rongain Ke

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui
Mr. Honghui Chen
Mr. Ming Shu Leung

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 28 October 2019 subject to his
retirement and re-election at annual general meeting in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association.
The details of the remuneration of each of the Directors
are revealed on note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the Directors’ biographies have been set out on
pages 53 to 59 of the annual report. In accordance with
article 84 of the Company’s articles of association, Mr. Siu
Keung Ng and Mr. Honghui Chen will retire from the Board
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has an unexpired service contract
with the Group which is not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or in existence
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance to which the
Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director of
the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year under review.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

There had been no contract of significance between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors of the Company had any interest
in any competing business with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries during the year under review. Each of the
Controlling Shareholders has complied with the non-
compete undertaking given by them to the Company
under the Deed of Non-competition on 8 October 2013.
The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the status of compliance and enforcement
of the non-compete undertaking and confirmed that all
the undertakings thereunder have been complied with
throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company,
applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur or sustain in the execution of their duties in their
offices. Such permitted indemnity provision has been in
force throughout the year under review. The Company
has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions
of the directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Long positions in the Company RAEQXTNER
Number of
underlying
shares Approximate
Number of comprised percentage of
Name of director shares held in options® Total  shares in issue®
BIREFTS R FERTR®E
EEpE FEERHEE HERHHE® st BREAL®
Mr. Ziming Yang (e 5 5B 5 A (e 429,700,209 - 429,700,209 64.27%
Mr. Siu Keung Ng Ry@FLE 2,926,000 900,000 3,826,000 0.5722%
Mr. Rongain Ke IR E 3,850,000 700,000 4,550,000 0.6805%
1) Acute Result, Ascend Fame and Prime Ascend are wholly- (1) WK AERTEBBRALEERER RIE

owned and controlled by Mr. Ziming Yang and Mr. Ziming Yang
is therefore deemed to be interested in all the shares in which
Acute Result, Ascend Fame and Prime Ascend are interested.

2) Multiplus International Limited (“Multiplus”) is owned as to
99% by Ms. Liting Ke and 1% by Mr. Ziming Yang. By virtue of
a shareholders’ agreement dated 31 July 2012 by and between
Ms. Liting Ke and Mr. Ziming Yang in addition to the voting right
attached to the share Mr. Ziming Yang holds in Multiplus, he also
has the right to control the exercise of the voting rights attached
to all the shares in Multiplus held by Ms. Liting Ke. Accordingly,
Mr. Ziming Yang is deemed to be interested in all the shares in
which Multiplus is interested.

) Mr. Ziming Yang is the spouse of Ms. Liting Ke. Accordingly, Mr.
Yang is deemed to be interested in all the shares in which Ms.
Liting Ke is interested.

(4) These represent interest in underlying shares of the Share Option
Schemes granted (as defined below) by the Company.

5) Based on a total of 668,593,000 issued shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2020.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none
of the Directors and the chief executives of the Company
and their respective associates had any interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register of the Company required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2020, the persons or corporations
(not being a Director or chief executive of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which were required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of

Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were =tz
recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name

iR

Ms. Liting Ke!"23
EE L 1 100
Acute Result@®
SR @@
Ascend Fame®@®
HE W

)

Keen Network@®

21 0@
Prime Ascend?@®

TLE @@
Multiplus®

2o

Capacity/Nature of interest

510, HmHE

Interest in a controlled corporation/Interest of spouse
REEZEN#ER/ TBNER

Beneficial owner

EmEB A

Beneficial owner

EnlEAA

Beneficial owner

BB A

Interest in a controlled corporation

SEREFNE =N £

Beneficial owner

EmEa A

EEEHRE (A)

FTERRNERRKR

WZZE_FF+=—A=+—1" LATAi%f
BOEEEHARAEBITHRAE) REAR
HﬂﬁwaﬁﬂﬂxfﬁqﬂTzﬁmﬁdffﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂ
XV 5 2 }2 3 7 EMGSUZE M AN A R R TR sk R 8%
ﬂ&ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁiﬂwﬁl@3361%%& BATHFEE

J\A.

Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding

Shares interest®
BFIRERN

RHEE Bok®
429,700,209 64.27%
266,950,209 39.93%
52,500,000 7.85%
31,500,000 4.71%
31,500,000 4.71%
78,750,000 11.78%

Ms. Liting Ke is the spouse of Mr. Ziming Yang. Accordingly, (1) MBEZ T ABEAKLENRSE - At - WES

Ms. Liting Ke is deemed to be interested in all the shares in which
Mr. Ziming Yang is interested.

Acute Result, Ascend Fame and Prime Ascend are wholly- 2 $HAK
owned and controlled by Mr. Ziming Yang and Mr. Ziming Yang il -

is therefore deemed to be interested in all the shares in which

Acute Result, Ascend Fame and Prime Ascend are interested.
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©)) Multiplus is owned as to 99% by Ms. Liting Ke and 1% by
Mr. Ziming Yang. By virtue of a shareholders’ agreement dated
31 July 2012 by and between Ms. Liting Ke and Mr. Ziming Yang,
in addition to the voting right attached to the share Mr. Ziming
Yang holds in Multiplus, he also has the right to control the
exercise of the voting rights attached to all the shares in Multiplus
held by Ms. Liting Ke. Accordingly, Mr. Ziming Yang is deemed to
be interested in all the shares in which Multiplus is interested.

(4) Keen Network Holdings Limited (“Keen Network”) is owned
as to 44.88% by Prime Ascend, 20.02% by Dominant Success
Holdings Limited (“Dominant Success”) and 35.10% by Rosy
Connect Investments Limited (“Rosy Connect”). Prime Ascend
is directly and wholly-owned by Mr. Ziming Yang. Dominant
Success is directly and wholly-owned by Mr. Siu Keung Ng.
Rosy Connect is directly and wholly-owned by Mr. Rongqgin Ke.
Mr. Ziming Yang, Mr. Siu Keung Ng and Mr. Ronggin Ke are
executive Directors of the Company.

By virtue of a shareholders’ agreement dated 31 July 2012 by
and among the shareholders of Keen Network, in addition to the
voting rights attached to the shares in Keen Network that it holds,
Prime Ascend also has the right to control the exercise of the
voting rights attached to all the shares in Keen Network held by
other shareholders. Accordingly, Prime Ascend is deemed to be
interested in all the shares in which Keen Network is interested.

) Based on a total of 668,593,000 issued shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020,
the Directors were not aware of any other person or
corporation having an interest or short position in shares
and underlying shares of the Company which were
required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO.

@) LEMWBERLTHEAO%ER MG ERL
EHEE 1% EE - RIFWBELTHIGRALE
T EER - T —FL A=+ BHRRR
# o BHERARENSERE RN AR ERE
S WA RENITERAEELIRENEH
2RI PP IR - B - HEBAERRR
REEZFHAESND IO P EE#R -

(@) EHZERAR AR (2% ]) B TE - Dominant
Success Holdings Limited ([ Dominant
Success|) - BEKREFR AT ([RHE ) ZEH#
544.88% ~ 20.02% . 35.10% Ky #E 25 » JL B
HERALAETEESZEMEA - Dominant Success B

RUBEAEELERE - REHRTBREEER
BEEHE BERBPELE  ROBELERFHBR
EEEBERNBRITES -

RIEHEHRR BT ZBESMA T ——F L
A=+—AMBRGE - BRESENZHRRD AT
PR SRAEON - TTRE IR A R BT (0 o E b AR+
B2 BB P IR - Hut - TR
RREHF ARG DR P AR

(5) ERARRNR-_ZE_ZF+ _A=+—HM&H
668,593,000 IR EL BT IHEHE -

B EXRBEEN W _BF+-_A=+—
EI BEEU MBS RANEMATSOERRA
Nalfxn RAAERO P HEBREES LS K
BIZEXV EBEE 2 K 3 70 BRI SRR AN A B4R BR 3k
SENIRE H LB GDIZE 336 (KR EATIF
FaofeEmsoRe o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a pre-initial public offering share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
and a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
on 8 October 2013 for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
Group.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme on 8 October 2013 for the purpose of rewarding
certain eligible persons for their past contributions and
attracting and retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-going
relationships with, such eligible persons who are significant
to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to
the performance, growth or success of the Group. Options
to subscribe for an aggregate of 8,520,000 shares of the
Company (the “Pre-IPO Share Options”) were granted
on 8 October 2013. The exercise price per Share is
HK$2.024, being 80% of the initial public offering price. No
further option could be granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme after 8 October 2013. All Pre-IPO Share
Options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
may be exercised during the option period commencing
from the first anniversary of the Listing Date to the date
falling 10 years from the grant date of the Pre-IPO Share
Options and can only be exercised in the following manner:

0] 30% of each Pre-IPO Share Options may be
exercised from the first anniversary of the Listing
Date;

(ii) 60% of each Pre-IPO Share Options may be
exercised from the second anniversary of the Listing
Date; and

(iii) 100% of each Pre-IPO Share Options may be
exercised from the third anniversary of the Listing
Date.

EEeHE (F)

fBRRERT Al

ARBR—ZF—=F+A\BRABE R FHE
£ A AR AL B ([ B D BB AT B AR A 5T
B)) REERES R (AR ) - AYAS
B ERMA BB RE R R R -

BRAMBRERBRETS
RAaRZE—=F+A\BHEMNE R MHE
EREREE - EERBETEERALTIA
THER - eI REREHAEENRIR  BR
SR NBEE N HHEBEERSETEAE
Fr KRR - ERIAKNBMNHEEEATHIA
Hip A FHEFENFEBR - RNT—=
FTANE - EREAIRES 8,520,000 %
KRRz ERE(BERAHMBEAER
) o BIRIRMD Z1TEER2.024 57T © BT
HRFAEEEL0% - N_T—=F1+A/\HE
PAMRIE B R AR SR BT 811 L HAb
EARiE - FTARBE XA ARZEEREREE
FEMNERXAREBEERERER R ERERRE
(BELTHHAEEFTFEEI A AREERER
ERTBSEBHTFEER)TE - BEAIZEMNU
TAHEITE -

)  BEERAFBEREREN30% AR
EH BB ERFRITE

iy BEHIXLFAZBEAERENB60% AR
B EMAFRITE &

iy BEEXAAZESAERERN100% 7]
R ETBE=RFLITE -
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EEEHRE (A

Details of the Pre-IPO Share Options as at 31 December

2020 are as follows:

E/Q\—?—Yfﬁ—i— H —1— E%_//XZ\\ m
BB

Exercised

Outstanding during  Lapsed during Cancelled during Outstanding

asat theyearended theyearended  the yearended asat

1 January 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2020 2020 2020 2020 2020

et 23 ZRIRE ZRIRE ZRIRE b3

-f-B  tZA=t-B t+ZA=t-B tZAZt-B tZRZt-H

Name i3 WATE  LEEEAE  LEEDAM  LEECHH GENH
Directors Bz

Mr. Siu Keung Ng ROuEE 900,000 - - - 900,000

Mr. Rongain Ke FBSEE 700,000 - - - 700,000

Others 2 1,360,000 - (200,000 - 1,150,000

Total gt 2,950,000 - (200,000 - 2,750,000

The total number of shares available for issue under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is 2,750,000, representing
approximately 0.41% of the total number of Company’s
issued shares as at the date of this report, i.e. 668,593,000
shares.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 8
October 2013 for the purpose of rewarding certain eligible
persons for their past contributions and attracting and
retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-going relationships
with, such eligible persons who are significant to and/
or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
performance, growth or success of the Group. Subject
to the earlier termination of the Share Option Scheme
in accordance with the rules thereof, the Share Option
Scheme shall remain in force for a period of ten years
commencing on 28 October 2013.

BREBXARAEERBRETET FEITH
i 10 4288 & 2,750,000 A% @ 1h AR S H BIARA
FIE BT 4281 (BN 668,593,000 AZA% 1D ) #9
0.41% °

BRrEsta
$Qﬁb"$:$—£$+ﬁ)\EIT%WE%H%ZE*%
g BERBETAERALTBENER

S| R BREAREEMKRR - i*%i)ﬂiﬁ]%é%
%/ ZEBEMAR RS EHALENRE - &
RHAINE R A ERALTHIARAL T M5
B ENFERR - BEREAEIE T —=F
TAZTN\BETEHEAERBR - B
PR &I R ARIEAN & RO R RITE AT AR




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include
any proposed, full-time or part-time employees, executives
or officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; any
Directors or proposed Director (including non-executive
Director and independent non-executive Directors) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries; any direct or indirect
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and
any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
(the “Share Options”) and any other schemes of the
Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in
issue as at the Listing Date, i.e. 70,000,000 shares.

No option may be granted to any participant of the Share
Option Scheme such that the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted and to be granted to that person in any 12-month
period up to the date of the latest grant exceeds 1% of the
Company’s issued share capital from time to time.

EEeHE (F)

BRSNS ER2EEREARRRET
A AR AR - 2REGRBES - 17
BABHERBE - NRRFREATHERF]
MEIAESFRERES (BRIFNTESRE
MIFRITER)  ARRHEERMNBLRFH
EEZRIEEER « RAR R SREEAHE
NEMERBAA - BRA - HER - PR
12 o RITERIEBEE S ([BIRERT &) &
R BT B A FT 811 T 1% R T B B A
ARERITHSESBRMEE - EHANSEBN L
A EE 21TAR 1A #) 10% (170,000,000 A% A%
) °

AR & 2B ETEEREROR
A BRI 12EABERE mZE AL
B MR R B R e R AR T 2 1T oS T 3%
TR BB B AN R R 2 B ITIRANH
1% » RIS MZA A TR EAIBAGE -
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EEEHRE (A

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period
as determined by the Board and not exceeding 10 years
from the date of the grant. There is no minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised;
however, the Board may, subject to the provisions of the
Listing Rules, in its absolute discretion when offering the
grant of an Option impose any conditions, restrictions or
limitations in relation thereto in addition to those set forth
in the Share Option Scheme as it may think fit. Participants
of the Share Option Scheme are required to pay the
Company a nominal consideration in total HK$1.00 upon
acceptance of the grant on or before 30 days after the
offer date. The exercise price of the options is determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion and shall not be less
than whichever is the highest of:

(@) the nominal value of a share;

(b) the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the offer
date; and

(c) the average closing price of a share as stated in
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five Business Days (as defined in the
Listing Rules) immediately preceding the offer date.

BREINESEETNHRREERETS
MRRBERTT(E - BRI NS BERE B
HIRERT 104 - BB ART A —EHRT
FIATEE AT BRI ETARBIRE - EFS
ARRE  IERENBERREERLERERE
FERCRERT S FrEt 2 L1 hn A R RE AR AV (AT 16k
- HIRSPRF] - BEERTEI2REANELY
B A 51 30 H 3k 2 ATE 40 P & % B AR 4 s )
ARBXMNEH100BTZBENRE - B
BITEE HESFS2ENBETE - ETFE
R To&REE

(@ IPEE:

b)  REXHAHEXMEHRERMIIKD
Wi : &

© ERENEMAAEZXB(ERRL
MR BAM RS A RERMIIK
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHS(H)

Details of movements in the Share Options as at 31 R-ZE=_ZTF+=F=+—HREEREZ
December 2020 which have been granted under the Share  # HEVBERAERN S B BT
Option Scheme are as follows:

Granted Exercised Cancelled
Outstanding during the during the duringthe  Outstanding
as at year ended year ended year ended asat  Exercise
1January  31December  31December 31 December 31 December Price  Date of
Name 2020 2020 2020 2020 Mot 2020 (HKS)  grant Exercisable period
R B2 BZ B2 R
R = N —
-f-B +ZB=t-B tZA=t-R fZA=+-B tZA=t-A i@
#E HATE LEEERE LEEEGE LEEDHH BA{TE (B7) LB i)
Directors
EZ
Mr. Siu Keung Ng 400,000 - - 400,000) - 354 13June 2018 13 June 2023 - 12 June 2028
ROBRE “E-)\ERAtEE ZEC=ERATEHE
ZEC/\ERATCR
Mr. Rongain Ke 800,000 - - (800,000) - 219 3August 2017 3 Aug 2022 - 2 Aug 2027
s “B{ENAZR CF-CEN\B=RE
“2-tE\AZH
Mr. Rongain Ke 800,000 - - (800,000) - 354 13June 2018 13 June 2023 - 12 June 2028
s “E-\EAETZH ZECZEARTZRE
“BoN\ERATCR
Employees 4,000,000 - - (4,000,000) - 219 3 August 2017 3 Aug 2022 - 2 Aug 2027
€8 Z3-+E)\AZR  ZE-Z§\AZRZ
“ETtENAZA
Employees 5,400,000 - - (5,400,000) - 354 13June 2018 13 June 2023 - 12 June 2028
[E8 ZE-\ERATZE ZEI=ERATEHE
2 \ERATIR
Total 11,400,000 - - (11,400,000) -
@t
Note: In view of the range of exercise price for the share options ~ MizF: ERE_ET—+tFNA=ZAER=ZT—NF A
granted on 3 August 2017 and 13 June 2018 were significantly TZARENEREZTEEHERESNAR
higher than the then market prices of the Company’s Shares, the AIRMDER 2 TE  ZEFRRAZEARRRAIRIE
grantees requested the Company to cancel the share options IR B 2 GFGIEZERERE REAZS
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme as ﬁﬁﬂx%ﬁﬁikﬂﬁﬁﬂxﬁéﬁzﬂE’]%?’i‘}\hf \/%ﬂ
those share options can no longer serve the purpose of providing kiR B - ZREREREDGEE 822
incentives or rewards to the grantees thereof. Those share TFERNAT=B4R -

options were cancelled with effect from 13 June 2020.

0O —T-TEEH  FRRHERLT @—
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EEEHRE (A

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was
56,600,000, representing approximately 8.47% of the
Company’s issued share capital, and the remaining life
of the Share Option Scheme was about 2 years and 8
months. No share options was granted, exercised or
lapsed under the Share Option Scheme during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in “Share Option Schemes” above, at
no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any Director of the Company
or their respective spouses or minor children, or were
such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debt securities (including debentures) of the Company
or any other body corporate.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes organized by the PRC municipal and
provincial government authorities for the Group’s eligible
employees in the PRC, and operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund scheme for the employees in Hong Kong.
Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 24
to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

There were no significant events after the reporting period
of the Group.

RS BE - IRIBE AR & ] (31 TRUAR
17 #2215 56,600,000 % + HHE R AR AIE B
TR H18.47% + BB IERTEIM TR FHN A
MEZ)\[ER - BE_ZE-_TEF+_A=1+—
HIEFE - SIEEARERIEEAERT 8D -
FTES R

ESREROIEEINZH

Br b X TRERcERT 81 ) FTREEE SN - MERIE
RS - MEREANARREZTHEEEEH
FLBEORECF F AR BB BB AR R %
[RIERE MR AER - MRS ER ST
& AR HERARSETAMBARL
E2EFIVEMRRARRESEANE
AR B AT EAE B A I RAEF5RE 575 (B
TRIEHERE) MR -

EIKETE
AEBEHAEESERNTREESEL2HAPE
& R T BT 4 B AR A 0 L R FURIRTR AT
2 WARBRELH2HERHIELTESF
gl o ZERNGTEINFIBENERE BB IRE M
iE24 o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 have been audited by KPMG, who
shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
KPMG as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Ziming YANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 8 February 2021

EEEHRE (A)

B BLEm
BE_T_ZF+_A=1+—HLFENERA
MR REEEFH S MELAEZ - £
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

VR ZE (I

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report
to the shareholders of Cabbeen Fashion Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Cabbeen Fashion Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 94 to 234,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

B ZBETRE
HFERMBERIARR
(REIEF#HBFMA BRI F])

=R

BMEEZINENFEI B E234 8 RE R
BRAR(ERADREMBAR ([E£E])
MR MBEHRE  EEAMBERREBER-F
“TFE+ A=t BNEAMBARNRER
EZAULFENGE B MEMEERAE
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B HERME - BRI ESFTHEME
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements for
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

BYBRBEMERE (&)

ERNER

HMEREFEGAMAG(EEGAMA
RGN BBRECER ([ FAZECER])
EITEZ - BAIRZFENE N TELRR
& [ EZ AL F A & R & BB & (L]
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PIEZRA M B RRABHERELR - Rf1E
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B RBAIRE (F)

Revenue recognition

Wy 22 FERR

D a BRI 2 RE 149 AR @ FHHE °

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 149.

The Key Audit Matter
FAREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNERESE

Revenue principally comprises sales of apparel
goods to distributors and via consignees.
WaEF2aEMOHEEBRIERHERES

an °

Each year, the Group enters into a framework
distribution agreement or a consignment
agreement with each distributor or consignee
and manufactures and sells its products in
accordance with the terms of separate purchase
orders.
ERESFRZHHPIREE LIERD HH
AN - WIREBSRBITENRREREN
HEHREMR °

For sales to distributors, once the products are
collected from the designated warehouse by the
distributor, the control of the goods is considered
to have been transferred to the distributor and
revenue is recognised at that point.

AP HEEELHNHEENS - Em—BBDHEE
RIETRERR  EHEEmETHIRERREE
BT oiEn - WRZEEEER KR

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
revenue included the following:

BAFHE R RN B ZEFEEA N IH

o assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of management’s key
internal controls over revenue recognition;
AHEEIRER MU R B S A EPIE HI YRR
At B OB IERR

° inspecting agreements with distributors and
consignees, on a sample basis, to understand
the terms of the sales transactions including
the terms of delivery and acceptance,
applicable rebates arrangements and any sales
return arrangements to assess the Group’s
revenue recognition criteria with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;
BREAEERE HE) HE MARHEE OB - A
THHERZHNGR > BRI REX K
PO EA OB REREERE T #E
m2EZRITEHERNBRENE SEEHUK

IR |
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B RBAIRE (F)

Revenue recognition

Wy 22 FE AR

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 149.

D E ARSI 2 RE 149 AR S FHHE °

The Key Audit Matter
BAREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNEESE

For sales via consignees, once the products are
sold to end users by the consignee, the control of
the goods is considered to have been transferred
to the consignee and revenue is recognised at
that point. The Group receives confirmations
from consignees on a monthly basis of both the
transaction amounts and balances due to the
Group.

HBEEBRHEEBELNHEN S - Em—BEBR
HEETRmAPE  BAEEmOZEGIEFEAD
ERTREE  TRZEERER D . &F
EEARWRHE ARSI RENEN BEEE
TIRAERHFERE

We identified the recognition of revenue as a key
audit matter because revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the Group and because
there is an inherent risk of manipulation of the
timing of recognition of revenue by management
to meet specific targets or expectations.
BPEWRERIAEREZEE  BRKE
2 BEENBRENERZ - MEPENE
IBEREDTE B RS TREA M 55 W an HE R ]
MER R o

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether
revenue transactions recorded during the
financial year had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period by comparing the
transactions selected with relevant underlying
documentation, including goods delivery notes
or monthly confirmations from consignees and
the terms of sale as set out in the distribution or
consignment agreements;
BREAELEFBLEMER S HEBRXRFX
- BREEEIREREENEGAERER
7> 5 A B 17 o P 8 A 8 5 15K - ATAR IR A IR
FEATHNBRZZHEEEREE B EH
MR

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether
specific revenue transactions around the
financial year end had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period by comparing the
transactions selected with relevant underlying
documentation, including goods delivery notes
or monthly confirmations from consignees and
the terms of sale as set out in the distribution or
consignment agreements;
REAEEFAHEBMEXSEMBEASIFEX
- BREEEIREREENEG AERER
73 8 XA 8 15 2 P B A 8 B R - ATAR O BRI
FRERAMNENFER R ZEEENEE T
I BAFEI IR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

R E - (TESEE )

Revenue recognition

Wy 22 FERR

BEIE AR IRE N 2 B 149 HRY B AR -

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 149.

The Key Audit Matter
FAREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNERESE

assessing, on a sample basis, whether sales
rebates during the financial year had been
recognised in the appropriate financial period
by reconciling the movements in sales rebates
accruals, recalculating the sales rebates
recognised during the financial year on the
basis of the terms as set out in the distribution
or consignment agreements and comparing
sales rebates payments during the financial
year to confirmations from distributors or
consignees and other relevant underlying
documentation;
REAREEF B ARIHEQINZS - RIE
DA BT E A RREF A BRI R F
EAERRHEERH - BRI FEE AN
EEHRERE 2 HE SRR ERE &
H BB S  3  FHER MR FE AR HE
B E D REE BB I AR

identifying significant credit notes issued and
sales returns from the sales ledger after the
financial year end and inspecting relevant
underlying documentation to assess if the
related revenue had been accounted for in the
appropriate financial period in accordance with
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;
BRI B FEREEHERTAELNER
ERENHERE - WinEEA X §®
At AR S TS ERIBRITE T ERIRR
EREEOTBHARAR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BYBRBEMERE (&)

Revenue recognition

Wy 22 FE AR

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 149.

D E ARSI 2 RE 149 AR S FHHE °

The Key Audit Matter
BAREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNEESE

° inspecting significant manual adjustments
to revenue during the reporting period,
enquiring of management as to the reasons
for such adjustments and comparing details
of the adjustments with relevant underlying
documentation.
BENBERANH WS IIENEEFERHE
MEREERELERARNIER MR
=15 HEAE R S R U o
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B RBAIRE (F)

Valuation of inventories

FEME

BBEE TS IRA N T 17 RE 140 ERIEFTEUE °

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 140.

The Key Audit Matter
FAREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNERESE

Sales of inventories in the fashion industry can
be volatile with consumer demand changing
according to current fashion trends.
MIVHEE T KSR EE AR EIRBE M T e
B RETENFEHERELRKY -

The Group typically sells or disposes of off-
season inventories at a markdown from the
original price to make room for new season
inventories in its stores. Accordingly, the actual
future selling prices of some inventories may fall
below their purchase costs.
E%l—%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ*rﬁ AR ELE
WAMEEFEREHZAE - Bt - T FENER
AREEHSERETRBERR -

Management considers several factors in
determining the appropriate level of inventory
provisions, including inventory ageing, historical
rates of sales at normal price levels and at
markdown prices, and the channels available for
selling off-season inventories.
ERENETHEENFERBEKTIHERZERE
% BEEERE - mE%FﬂmﬁﬁﬁﬂEF
BROELHERARHEBRFTHFENATAR

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
inventories included the following:

BAFHEFERENEZEFEREA T IH

assessing whether the inventory provisions at
the reporting date were calculated in a manner
consistent with the Group’s inventory provision
policy by recalculating the inventory provisions
based on percentages and other parameters
in the Group’s inventory provision policy and
considering the application of the Group’s
inventory provision policy with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

BiE BEEEFERBERRNASLEREMS
YENA B FERBN2ERTETTERNR
TEZE BEXEETFERBRROER UG
RSN FERBRESKE EEERF
EREBE B AGE

assessing, on a sample basis, whether items
in the inventory ageing report were classified
within the appropriate ageing bracket by
comparing the barcode tags for the inventory
items selected with relevant purchase
documents;

BEAREEF BB MEFEHEB NIRBRE
BRI X - FHAEERERRETHIER
EI:IM:’I‘FA '_M'E"]E'E lzﬂ)ﬂjlj '

performing a retrospective review by comparing
the carrying values of inventories as at 31
December 2019 with sales prices achieved
during the current year, to assess the reliability
of management’s write-down and provisioning
processx
FRBE_E-NFT+_A=+T—BZEE
@ﬁ$$ﬁ2ﬁ1Lﬂmf ﬁmL%Mﬂu
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B RBAIRE (F)

Valuation of inventories

FEME

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 140.

BRJrE IS HA N 5T 17 R 140 ERIEFTHE °

The Key Audit Matter
BAREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNEESE

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key
audit matter because of the significant judgement
exercised by management in determining the
appropriate levels of inventory provisions which
involves predicting the amounts of inventories
which will be unsold at the end of each season
and the markdowns necessary to sell such off-
season inventories on a discounted basis through
outlets and other channels in future years. Both
of these factors can be inherently uncertain and
could be subject to management bias.

BPEFEREINREAREZEE  AREEE
EETEENGTERBEKERITEERAE - m
ERENBARNSEFTERAENTEHRE LR
AR FFEBIHERHEMRERELELFE
FEEMBIELNF - ZFREHFEEB T
M WAREXEIRERIAAR -

° evaluating the Group’s inventory provision
policy by comparing management’s expectation
of the amounts of inventories which are unlikely
to be sold in the foreseeable future at current
prices and the corresponding expectation of
markdowns with historical sales amounts and
markdown data for the current and prior years
provided by management; and
BB E R BE N KRAI BN ] R RKIZE A
EREENTFERENTENLAE RN TEL
HEIREMEHANBRIBEFENELHE
BELRTNEE - Mt EEENTEERER
® M

° enquiring of the management and senior
members of the sales team about any expected
changes in plans for markdowns or disposals
of off-season inventories and comparing the
carrying value of inventories to actual prices for
sales transactions subsequent to the reporting
date on a sample basis.
AEREREEEGNRREEASRABEH
IR BFF R EINEAERES - I
BREARENRFEIRAERRS A RRIHE
RBNBRER o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

R E - (TESEE )

INFORMATION OTHER THAN

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

SREVBRRUMEMER KR
1m0 bt 3% H BV 2 B 3R

BEEAHHEMERAREE - Rt ENBEF
BHABENMBER  ETREREMBR
R MIRPIBLL B AR BRED IR o

BPEERE M BRRIELHNER L ARE BEAM
B - BT EMERER TN ANZE
i

A
aff ©

REZEAMBRAMS - RENETEMNE
HibER - kmEBEMENEE BEE T
BRIBMEFZBRTEINERFEEX
PR KUFFEERERRAL -

HERPMERE TR THERSEMBER LR
EAHRBRA - HAIAREUL—FEF - R
S B IRE FIA -

EERGAMBRRAEXENEE

EXEARERBERRSIHEREEERHNE
PREA S s 2R B R BB A ARG KB R E R
HEAEBEMARMIRAFHREVHRE - X
BEEERAREGEMBREMUFNEH
AERIESI - AREREG A M RRARE T FE
R IEF Sk E R MG E M B A SRR IR

EREGEVBERERE  EFAARNE B
SEBERENRN  TRERFBLLERH
MER(ER) - RIFEZAER BESEE
B ST LB - SR Z INE R A B R AT
THPE - BRIBRARANSERLE RER

V& -




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

BYBRBEMERE (&)
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B R RS ()
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’'s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ng Yu Hei.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

8 February 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEREakHMEEEKER

for the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 = F —FF 1+ =-A=+—HI F)ZF
(Expressed in Renminbij) (WA B #5177 )

2020 2019
—ECEF —ET-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B AR¥T T AREFIT
Revenue g 2 1,288,422 1,274,966
Cost of sales SHE A (679,957) (714,875)
Gross profit EF 608,465 560,091
Personal protective (YN 3
equipment revenue 3 526,091 -
Personal protective (EUNGE23 1%
equipment cost 3 (485,189) -
Other income HA A 5 84,015 66,777
Selling and distribution HE R A
expenses (201,073) (218,915)
Administrative and other TR EMEERY
operating expenses (239,465) (164,513)
Profit from operations K RF 292,844 243,440
Finance costs BB 6(a) (19,307) (21,608)
Share of loss of an associate 7k — & A 7 2 E518 (154) (46)
Profit before taxation BREL A F 6 273,383 221,786
Income tax expense FrS i 7(a) (78,342) (63,644)
Profit for the year F Nz F 195,041 158,142
Attributable to: U&7 :
Equity shareholders of AN £l
the Company 194,209 157,644
Non-controlling interests FEEAR S 832 498
Profit for the year F Az F 195,041 158,142
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)
FeRERAEMEZERER (&)

for the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —F —FF+—-A=+—HI F)ZF
(Expressed in Renminbj) (AN E#51R)

2020 2019
—EBCEF —E-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BEE ARET T ARETT
Other comprehensive FREMZEKE
income for the year
ltem that may be reclassified RJREREEEF DA
subsequently to profit or loss:  F|Ez=HIER :
— Exchange differences on — B R E ARSI
translation of the financial XX RE
statements of operations HIPE X =58
outside the mainland
China (477) 710
Total comprehensive FRZHWHEEEE
income for the year 194,564 158,852
Attributable to: LUN& 5 B
Equity shareholders of RARERRR
the Company 193,732 158,354
Non-controlling interests FEERR A A 832 498
Total comprehensive FRE2EWGZELE
income for the year 194,564 158,852
Earnings per share BEREN(ARES) 10
(RMB cents)
Basic HAK 29.05 23.58
Diluted e 29.05 23.58

The notes on pages 101 to 234 form part of these 5101 2234 &M s AZ ST IS RAR AKX
financial statements. Detalils of dividends payable to equity 289 ° AR AR SIS R A IR BB
shareholders of the Company are set out in note 26(b). HKIEE26(0) °

o —ET-TEEH  FERHERAT @*



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SEMBMRR K

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A #5177 )

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bi3E AR¥T T ARETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties wEYHE 11 103,012 128,753
Other property, plant and Hns - BB R&E
equipment 12 205,123 176,016
Intangible assets EBEEE 13 38,295 33,299
Prepayments for acquisition — UREBRE M 3845 2
of plant and equipment TR FIE 40,213 8,460
Interest in an associate R—REsE AR 14 49,149 49,303
Deferred tax assets BIETIEE E 16(b) 40,562 32,455
R NUS. 476,354 | 428,286
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 17 388,293 383,716
Trade and other receivables & 5 & H b U FIE 18 613,346 738,863
Deposits with banks with REISEBE=1EA
original maturity date HIERTTIF 3K
over three months 293,357 303,254
Pledged bank deposits BEHEPRITFERK 19 92,397 119,824
Cash and cash equivalents  IR&RIREEHEY 20 529,037 266,992
R BUT 1,916,430 | 1,812,649
Current liabilities REBAE
Bank borrowings IRITRER 21 93,612 354,737
Trade and other payables B5 MkEMEMNFIE 22 651,785 591,510
Current taxation BN ERTHIE 16(a) 49,494 46,673
Lease Liabilities HEaRE 23 2,903 1,380
) 797,794 | 994,300
_Netcurrentassets nEBEE®E | 1,118,636 | 818,349
Total assets less current EEAERGBAERS
liabilities 1,594,990 1,246,635
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank borrowings RITIER 21 258,532 -
Lease liabilities HERE 23 6,663 6,937
Deferred tax liabilities BIETIRAE 16(b) 63 3,876
265,258 10,813
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
REMBRRE (E)

(Expressed in Renminbj) (XA E#57)

2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B AR®T ARETTT
NET ASSETS BEEFE 1,329,732 1,235,822
CAPITAL AND RESERVES E&#&Kf#E 26
Share capital &N 5,214 5,214
Reserves i 1,316,421 1,199,527
Total equity attributable AARIEHEBRR
to equity shareholders PE(L 4R E
of the Company 1,321,635 1,204,741
Non-controlling interests  FFiERRER 8,097 31,081
TOTAL EQUITY MR 1,329,732 1,235,822

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of RKEZGR_-_T=—F_A/\BHEREET

directors on 8 February 2021. % o
Mr. Ziming Yang Mr. Rongqin Ke
BERELE MR EE
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director Executive Director
TTBABHAFHTEE HITEE

The notes on pages 101 to 234 form part of these financial 55101 &£ 234 B &M A SRR AK
statements. B o

o —ET-TEEH  FERHERAT @*



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERRER

for the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 = F —FF+=-A=+—HI F)Z
(Expressed in Renminbi) (WA B #5177 )

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FARERRES
Capital Non-
Share  Share redemption  Capital  Statutory Exchange Retained controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserves  reseve  reseve  profits Total interests Total
&% #ER
Ba  RiEE REGRE E5RE EiffE A2EH & B &

Note RMB'000  RMB0O0  RMB'000  RMBIOOD  RW RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB000
i ARETT ARETT ARETn ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETH
As at 1 January 2019 A-E-75-F-R 5214 91% B 4049 49706 (3394 1015803 11797 55799 1173756
Changes in equity RoE-nE
for 2019: NERSH:
Profi for e year ERigH| - - - - - - 1hTPM 15764 9 158142
Other comprehensive EREMRENG
income for the year - - - - - 70 - 710 - 70
Totd comprehensive EMREMALE
__ ncomeforthevesr S TI0.__ToToM 19834 48 158852
Diiend decare EEJiS 80 - - - - - - BN B Y
Tanslerbetweenresenes BT - - - (t41) - = 1 - - =
Eouity-setted sharebesed ~~ EREEMR
fransacions BERNRS ) - - - 18 - - - 1R - 1R
Appropriaton o BRETRE
statutory reserves N - - - - 3,863 - (388 = = =
Captal rediced by FERERTRNAR
non-contraling interests - - - - - - - - (%26 (25216
AsatdiDecember 2019 H=E-AF+=A=t-R
and 1 January 2020 k-E-%%-F-R 5214 9,195 /4 42208 53569  (2684) 1006825 1204741 31,081 1,235,822
Changes in equity W-5-8k
for 2020: WEsAD:
Proft for the year EREH - - - - - - 104200 194200 82 195,041
Other comprefiensive ERER2ENE
income for the year - - - - - (4m - (41 - (41
Totd comprefensive EMREMGEE
__ ncomeforthevesr Tttomoomo e 1ea29 198732 82 194564
Dividend declared EEW&E 260) - - - - - - (63229 (63229 (63,229)
Tanslerbetweenresenes GEEMEE (8,961) s - B = s
Eoulty-setfed share-based. &R
ransactons BERIRS ) 5575 - - - 55 - 555
Appropriafon to #niTh
statutory resnves - - - - 2196 - (21,966) - - -
Aequistionofnon-controling —~ HE-FERFH
interests na subsidary HihEs - - - (19184 - - - (19184 (23816 (43000
Asat31 December 020 H-B=FETZAZt-A 54 915 B4 0068 755 (3161) 1204400 1321635 8097 1,320,732

The notes on pages 101 to 234 form part of these financial 55 101 £ 234 BT & it A% ST SRR A
statements. o o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
REHETRER

for the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —F —FF+—-A=+—HI F)ZF
(Expressed in Renminbj) (AN E#51R)

2020 2019
—EBCEF —ZT-hF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BEE ARET T ARBTT
Operating activities KETH
Cash generated from operations 48 & /& EFT15IR & 20(b) 453,605 6,019
Income tax paid BT ATIEH
— PRC income tax paid - REIE PSR (90,384) (51,682)
Net cash generated from/ R&EEFTS,
(used in) from operating (FTA) FRE
activities 363,221 (45,663)
Investing activities REEH
Payment for the purchase of EEIREWE - ¥z -
investment property, R K S A 1 3R
other property,
plant and equipment (30,734) (204,997)
Payment for the purchase BEELEEMNK
of intangible assets (11,550) (2,261)
Proceeds from disposal of HEMZE - BER
property, plant and BRABPTIS A
equipment 1,140 962
Net decrease of deposits REHHBE=EA
with banks with original HIERTTIF X
maturity date over A EER
three months 4,888 140,690
Net decrease in pledged EEBIRITIER
bank deposits AEER 27,427 120,661
Proceeds from disposal HESMEEFTSHIE
of financial assets - 60,000
Loans repaid by an associate F—[E#E A RI{EENER 10,000 -
Loans to an associate m—fEEE AR REER - (10,000)
Interest received A 13,865 18,113
Net cash generated from REZEFEEFES
investing activities 15,036 123,168

o —T-BHEEHR  FERHEARALT @7



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

GeHeRER (H)

for the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 = F —FF+=-A=+—HI F)Z

(Expressed in Renminbi) (WA B #5177 )

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BEE ARET T ARETT
Financing activities mEEE
Proceeds from bank RITIEKFIEEIE
borrowings 20(c) 128,666 194,000
Repayment of bank EERITEN
borrowings 20(c) (114,000) (132,916)
Dividends paid EfRRE 26(b) (63,229) (73,200)
Interest paid EAFE (17,181) (19,834)
Payment for acquisition of U EEHT B A A
non-controlling interests FEIE IR 2R Y K
of subsidiaries (43,000) -
Capital element of lease ENEENERETD
rentals paid (1,591) (1,916)
Interest element of lease ENEeSHF S D
rentals paid (427) (162)
Net cash used in 7l & 5E B i
financing activities FRE (110,762) (34,028)
Netincreaseincashand REREESZEEY
cash equivalents EFEEE 267,495 43,477
Cash and cash equivalents A—BA—BWRE&R
at 1 January REZEY 266,992 220,484
Effect of foreign exchange HNETE R E B
rate changes (5,450) 3,031
Cash and cash equivalents A+=H=+—H
at 31 December NWRERASEEY 20(a) 529,037 266,992

The notes on pages 101 to 234 form part of these financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). These
financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“SEHK?”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments
to IFRSs that are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current
accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 E=E

(a)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)
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R B 765 3 o 2 B (T BB B 755 3%
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B PR 53 A R 8l B R B 7S R e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

4@ Cabbeen Fashion Limited  Annual Report 2020 @

Basis of preparation of the
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2020 comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) and the Group's
interest in an associate.

These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), rounded to the nearest
thousand, as the Group’s principal activities
were carried out in the PRC. RMB is the
functional currency for the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the mainland
China. The functional currency of the
Company and the Company’s subsidiaries
outside the mainland China are Hong Kong
dollars.

These financial statements are prepared
on the historical cost basis except that
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss which are stated at their fair value as
explained in the accounting policies below
(note 1(g)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the
financial statements (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant
effect on the financial statements and
major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 30.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S ot ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 77885 Z )

1

F UAREST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c)
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Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following
amendment to IFRSs issued by the IASB
to these financial statements for the current
accounting period:

° Amendment to IFRS 16, Covid-19-
Related Rent Concessions

Other than the Amendment to IFRS 16, the
Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period. Impacts of
the adoption of amendment to IFRS 16 are
discussed below:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

Amendment to IFRS 16, Covid-19-
Related Rent Concessions

The amendment provides a practical
expedient that allows a lessee to by-pass the
need to evaluate whether certain qualifying
rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
(“COVID-19-related rent concessions”) are
lease modifications and, instead, account for
those rent concessions as if they were not
lease modifications.

The Group has elected to early adopt the
amendments and applies the practical
expedient to qualifying COVID-19-related
rent concession granted to the Group during
the year. Consequently, rent concessions
received have been accounted for as negative
variable lease payments recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers those payments
occurred (see note 12(b)). There is no impact
on the opening balance of equity at 1 January
2020.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S ot ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)
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Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interest, but
no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

In the Company's statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (note

1))
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e)
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Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group
or Company has significant influence, but not
control or joint control, over its management,
including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under
the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair
values of the investee’s identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investment (if any). The
cost of the investment includes purchase
price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct
investment into the associate that forms part
of the Group’s equity investment. Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post
acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see note 1(l)
(ii). Any acquisition date excess over cost,
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the year are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

0] the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree; over

(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination and
is tested annually for impairment (see note

1))

On disposal of a cash generating unit
during the year, any attributable amount
of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9)
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Other investments in debt and
equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investments
in subsidiaries and an associate, are set out
below.

Investments in debt and equity securities
are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investment. The investments are initially
stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those
investments measured at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL) for which transaction
costs are recognised directly in profit or
loss. For an explanation of how the Group
determines fair value of financial instruments,
see note 27(e). These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification.

Investments other than equity
investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is
held for the collection of contractual
cash flows which represent solely
payments of principal and interest.
Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest
method (see note 1(v)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Other investments in debt and
equity securities (Continued)

Investments other than equity

investments (Continued)

= fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) - recycling, if
the contractual cash flows of the
investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash
flows and sale. Changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition in
profit or loss of expected credit losses,
interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When
the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled
from equity to profit or loss.

- fair value at profit or loss (FVPL) if the
investment does not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost
or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the
fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9)
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Other investments in debt and
equity securities (Continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVPL unless the equity investment is
not held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group
makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Investment property

Investment properties are buildings and land
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest (see note 1(k)) to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. These include
land held for a currently undetermined future
use and property that is being constructed
or developed for future use as investment
property.

Investment properties are measured initially
at cost. The cost of purchased investment
properties comprises their purchases price
and any direct attributable expenditures.
Investment properties are accounted for
using the cost model and stated in the
statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment
loss (see note 1(l)(ii)). The cost of investment
properties, less their estimated residual
value and accumulated impairment loss, is
depreciated using the straight-line method
over its estimated useful life as follow:

° Interests in remaining term
leasehold land of the lease
° Buildings 20 years

Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 1(v)(v).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S ot ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESTEHXR®)
POLICIES (Continued)
(i) Other property, plant and (i) HtWzE- BERRE
equipment
The following items of property, plant ATY% - BRE R EREBIE R &K
and equipment are stated at cost less OB ERETHTE RO EE B (K
accumulated depreciation and impairment 5 1()(ii)) BIER -

losses (note 1(1)(ii)):

- buildings, including buildings held - BF (eEsEERZETF
for own use which are situated on (RHEELH ) REA
leasehold land and right-of-use assets BAEBEZEFHHEENEA
arising from leases of underlying EEE(RWE1) » &

building (see note 1(l); and

— other items of plant and equipment. - HEMmEREEEE -

The cost of self-constructed items of BEWE - KEMKFHEEE K
property, plant and equipment includes the REEMEKAE  BEESTK
cost of materials, direct labour, the initial N RWER - MIFEETIRE &
estimate, where relevant, of the costs of WBIE B A RIRETE B FTE /R
dismantling and removing the items and MEK AR - LARGEE H ey A 2
restoring the site on which they are located, KEERRERNAFEE1X) o

and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (note 1(x)).

No depreciation is provided in respect of BB AR TR EATE -
construction in progress.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Other property, plant and
equipment (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years after the date of

completion.

- Leasehold Remaining term
land and buildings of the lease

- Leasehold Shorter of 3 - 5 years
improvements or remaining term

of the lease

- Plant and machinery 5-10 years
- Motor vehicles 4 -5 years
- Furniture, fixtures 3 -5 years

and equipment

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S ot ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESTEHXR®)

POLICIES (Continued)

() Intangible assets () EEEE
Intangible assets that are acquired by the REEE AR EERKAR
Group are stated at cost less accumulated 2t (R ERFHE
amortisation (where the estimated useful life BR) R E B8 (B =E 1)) 51
is finite) and impairment losses (note 1(I)(ii)). AR o
Amortisation of intangible assets with finite A A HI A IR 89 R T2 & 2 4 8
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a REENGET I ERAFHANLE
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated BEBER - TYRAIFERE
useful lives. The following intangible assets HERMNEFNEESENHER
with finite useful lives are amortised from H AR TH S R E AR ET AT 52 AR
the date they are available for use and their FHT -

estimated useful lives are as follows:

Computer software 5-10 years EEE 5Z& 104
Distribution network 7 SEARES
and trademark 20 years M 204F
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

@)

(k)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Both the period and method of amortisation
are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to
determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support the indefinite useful life
assessment for that asset. If they do not,
the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation
of intangible assets with finite lives as set out
above.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group
assesses whether the contract is, or contains,
a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the
right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.

R R M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B3 R B (4R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESTEHXR®)
POLICIES (Continued)
(k) Leased assets (Continued) (k) HEEE#E)
() Asalessee (i) {EAREBEA
At the lease commencement date, the REERBBAE  A5H
Group recognises a right-of-use asset BRAERAEEERHEESR
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and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low-
value assets which, for the Group are
primarily laptops and office furniture.
When the Group enters into a lease
in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.
The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the
lease liability is initially recognised
at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, using a
relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability
is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable
lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability
and hence are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised
when a lease is capitalised is initially
measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the
right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted
to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see notes 1(i) and

1))
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S ot ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESHEBXR®)
POLICIES (Continued)
(k) Leased assets (Continued) (k) HEEE#E)
(i) As alessee (Continued) () EREAMBEAE)
The lease liability is remeasured when Mg FEXEBEH K
there is a change in future lease KEENTEE  siAE
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payments arising from a change
in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the Group’s estimate of
the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee,
or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the

BEHARERGEEE
REMNGTSEAE
IREFFEARERS
HAEBETERE T
HISKAR (LR 2 o AR &2
B AMEHAEHEAR
& MAELFBERTER

Group will be reasonably certain to HEREAE AEYE
exercise a purchase, extension or BEEEMRMEEMERE
termination option. When the lease R S MEAEEER
liability is remeasured in this way, a FEEDSARES - B8

corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

FERBENEBE AR -




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured
when there is a change in the scope of
a lease or the consideration for a lease
that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract (“lease modification”)
that is not accounted for as a separate
lease. In this case the lease liability
is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using
a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification. The only
exceptions are any rent concessions
which arose as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and which
satisfied the conditions set out in
paragraph 46B of IFRS 16 Leases. In
such cases, the Group took advantage
of the practical expedient set out
in paragraph 46A of IFRS 16 and
recognised the change in consideration
as if it were not a lease modification.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S ot ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESTBXR®)
POLICIES (Continued)
(k) Leased assets (Continued) (k) HEEE#E)
(i) As alessee (Continued) (i) EBEBEAE)
In the consolidated statement of EHREMBMRAKT K
financial position, the current portion of HEEaEMNBIE E
long-term lease liabilities is determined ERANRERE T @
as the present value of contractual RAWBEZEHNFIRE -

payments that are due to be settled
within twelve months after the
reporting period.

(i) Asalessor (i) ERLHBEA
When the Group acts as a lessor, it EAREBAEHEANEBER
determines at lease inception whether T AEERHEERBE
each lease is a finance lease or an ETSEHEBNREE
operating lease. A lease is classified Sl E o (TS
as a finance lease if it transfers @RS WEREEE
substantially all the risks and rewards P A R A e K [B]
incidental to the ownership of an HTEAME A B fE AR
underlying assets to the lessee. If this BHE - My 3Eat - Al
is not the case, the lease is classified BHEHESBRKEHE -

as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of
assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (ECLs) on
the following items:

- financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash
and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables and loans to
associates);

- debt securities measured at
FVOCI (recycling); and

- lease receivables.

Other financial assets measured at fair
value, including units in bond funds,
equity securities measured at FVPL,
equity securities designated at FVOCI
(non-recycling) and derivative financial
assets, are not subject to the ECL
assessment.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S ot ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESTEHXR®)
POLICIES (Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of () GFEFEREEREE)
assets (Continued)

() Credit losses from financial ) 2@MIAR - EHNEER
instruments, contract assets HEEWREZEES
and lease receivables (Continued) BE)

Measurement of ECLs REMEE BB E

ECLs are a probability-weighted TEHAE B & 18 Th LABE = N
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses BHFTHNEEEE - 8
are measured as the present value of EBLAPTA TEEIR & R iR
all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the (BMRBE RN TASE
difference between the cash flows due WIReMmE MR K B A
to the Group in accordance with the WHnEERECHANE
contract and the cash flows that the ) RPRERTE ©

Group expects to receive).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (Continued)
The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following
discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets,
trade and other receivables
and contract assets: effective
interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation
thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets:
current effective interest rate;

- lease receivables: discount rate
used in the measurement of the
lease receivable.

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

BB M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BB MYt ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)
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Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (Continued)
In measuring ECLs, the Group
takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or
effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are
losses that are expected to
result from possible default
events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.

1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (Continued)
Loss allowances for trade receivables,
lease receivables and contract assets
are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments
(including loan commitments issued),
the Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in
credit risk of the financial instrument
since initial recognition, in which case
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S ot ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESTEHXR®)
POLICIES (Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of () GFEFEREEREE)
assets (Continued)

() Credit losses from financial i) &WMIE  GHEER
instruments, contract assets HERRREBZEERE
and lease receivables (Continued) BE)

Significant increases in credit risk EERBRAE
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In assessing whether the credit risk

A e R T A (BREE UK

of a financial instrument (including ) MEERR B KR ER
a loan commitment) has increased MPKEEKTFEEJ:%% ZiN
significantly since initial recognition, SEehERREAHK
the Group compares the risk of RAaHER B B A e

default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting

BTEZHEZONER -
{”Eu”jEZE%ﬁuHEHT RE

date with that assessed at the date l R W) B RATK
of initial recognition. In making this EZKEEEL/%&%ET%
reassessment, the Group considers “fﬁﬁ?ﬁa(ﬁﬂ?—rﬁ)

that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such

@JE’JI /RTF?$EI§F?§O’I
STHEEEAE S)®
BMEED@HE180H - A
BAEENENH - AKEE

as realising security (if any is held); ZEAEAENEENE
or (i) the financial asset is 180 days MER BEATLRK
past due. The Group considers both EEFNEHBZHARE

quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (Continued)
In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of
principal or interest on their
contractually due date;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes
in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment
that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S ot ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESTEHXR®)
POLICIES (Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of () GFEFEREEREE)
assets (Continued)

() Credit losses from financial ) 2@MIAR - EHNEER

instruments, contract assets HEEWREZEES
and lease receivables (Continued) BE)
Depending on the nature of the ARG ITANEE -
financial instruments, the assessment EE R AE AR
of a significant increase in credit risk Th¥g {5l E A 5 2k [R) B 245
is performed on either an individual LT M A AEARE
basis or a collective basis. When BT BT AR
the assessment is performed on [ml 9= & B fa ek (ansg B
a collective basis, the financial AR REE R TR ) ETT
instruments are grouped based on oA o

shared credit risk characteristics, such
as past due status and credit risk
ratings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (Continued)
ECLs are remeasured at each
reporting date to reflect changes in
the financial instrument’s credit risk
since initial recognition. Any change in
the ECL amount is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment
to their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account, except for
investments in debt securities that are
measured at FVOCI (recycling), for
which the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve
(recycling).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BB MYt ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)
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Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (Continued)
Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in
accordance with note 1(v)(ii) is
calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is
calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset
is credit-impaired. A financial asset
is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (Continued)
Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following
observable events:

significant financial difficulties of
the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

it becoming probable that
the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have
an adverse effect on the debtor;
or

the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties of the issuer.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BB MYt ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

4@ Cabbeen Fashion Limited  Annual Report 2020 @

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (Continued)
Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, lease receivable or
contract asset is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset
that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S i et ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BSTHHES - UARBIT)
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESTEHER®)
POLICIES (Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of ) GFESEREEREE)
assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other non- (i) HMFERBEERE

current assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets
may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

investment property;

= other property, plant and

AEEERNZTREHPER
R A & R AR K2 o1 B0 & 3R
R AREE T EERR
RAE (BERRIN) - SBE
BROREBEEES TH
FaESELRD

- REWE:

- HEWE -BER

equipment, including right-of- wiE(BEEAESR
use assets; E):

- intangible assets; - BEEE

- goodwill; and - E &

— investments in subsidiaries and - QB AR R &
associate in the Company’s HTRWEBRR R
statement of financial position. BN AR E -

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

W EE A ARS8l

recoverable amount is estimated. In SHFAEEMNAIKE S
addition, for goodwill, intangible assets o Uboh BEEE - KA
that are not yet available for use and FRNELEEKA{FA
intangible assets that have indefinite FHABRRNELEEM
useful lives, the recoverable amount T THwRERGFEEEMR
is estimated annually whether or not BEINR - He2EFMHH
there is any indication of impairment. AR & o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BB MYt ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(ii)
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Impairment of other non-
current assets (Continued)
Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S i et ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESTEHXR®)
POLICIES (Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of ) GFESEREEREE)
assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other non- (i) HMFERBEERE
current assets (Continued) (%)
- Recognition of impairment - R EEE
losses

An impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BB MYt ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-
current assets (Continued)
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Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S i et ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESTEHXR®)
POLICIES (Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of ) GFESEREEREE)
assets (Continued)
(i) Interim financial reporting and (i) SPEAMKHRERBEE
impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with IAS 34,
Interim financial reporting, in respect of
the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see note 1(/)(i)).

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill
are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no
loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim
period relates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S ot ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m)
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Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises all costs
of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised as
an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue (see
note 1(v)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In
such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 1(0)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group
has an unconditional right to receive
consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration
is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less
allowance for credit losses (see note 1(|)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S ot ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(q)

(r)
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Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured
initially at fair value less transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 1(x)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
expected credit losses (ECL) in accordance,
with policy set out in note 1())(i).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short-term employee benefits
and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid
annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Contributions to appropriate local
defined contribution retirement
schemes pursuant to the relevant
labour rules and regulations in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as incurred.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted
to employees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the binomial option
pricing model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B3 R B (4R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESTHABEXR®
POLICIES (Continued)
(s) Employee benefits (Continued) (s) EETHN =)
(i) Share-based payments i) URGAEBRNSRE)
(Continued)
During the vesting period, the number REBEA  AAAER
of share options that is expected = TE R BT R A R R R B
to vest is reviewed. Any resulting B MERNBEFER
adjustment to the cumulative fair REFTAFENEMARE
value recognised in prior years is ThE A ABBREF
charged/credited to the profit or loss ErER - BRIERENE
for the year of the review, unless the BYHMEERBEEN
original employee expenses qualify BRMmEANHEIELBRE
for recognition as an asset, with a FAEAER GG NEB
corresponding adjustment to the B ARRIABERE—
capital reserve. On vesting date, the HX HE AR - ARMER
amount recognised as an expense is BHERERESE GER
adjusted to reflect the actual number of BARENARERE)  1E
options that vest (with a corresponding fiol )2 W {2 B R GEBURAR R
adjustment to the capital reserve) AN TMEEENES
except where forfeiture is only due i BIBR A1 o ARAERER TD
to not achieving vesting conditions REXRFETER BEE
that relate to the market price of the BRI (BHE AR
Company’s shares. The equity amount BEEITRMDARIRAERE
is recognised in the capital reserve until SEAR ) SEERERE W (B
either the option is exercised (when it HEZFELEREBENE)
is included in the amount recognised in Rk o
share capital for the shares issued) or
the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).
(i) Termination benefits (iii) BERETBF
Termination benefits are recognised BEREAMIIRUAT ZRE
at the earlier of when the Group can EWRR: BEAEETHA]
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no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on
the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period, and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B3 R B (4R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(t)
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Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal
of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset
is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B3 R B (4R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESTTEHEX®
POLICIES (Continued)
() Income tax (Continued) b FBHE
Current tax balances and deferred tax BIEARA 18 45 6k R IEFR B & 50 &
balances, and movements therein, are H@gHeosmM@ilr TR

i - BHATIRE ELAH AR
{8 PANGEERE IR B B BR AR
REEREEAKEBAETH
TTHER LABN AR TR & A= 4K 3K B HA
BIREE - WHERS I
HHIERT - A R EAREH

presented separately from each other and
are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if
the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and - MEBHNHMEBEBEEKRE

liabilities, the Group intends either & AEEFIRFEE
to settle on a net basis, or to realise B KFRRERZE
the asset and settle the liability EREEZBE X
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and - WEBELEHEEENKSE
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which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

liabilities, if they relate to income taxes & ZEEKBEREN
levied by the same taxation authority R IEHEE R A T E AR —
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

v)

Provisions and contingent
liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when the
Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods, the
provision of services or the use by others of
Group's assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S ot ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 77885 Z )

1

F UAREST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

v)
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Revenue and other income
(Continued)

Revenue is recognised when control over
a product or service is transferred to the
customers, or the lessee has the right to
use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and
other income recognition polices are as
follows:

(i) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the
customer accepts and takes the
control of the products. Revenue
represented the sales value of goods
sold less returns, discounts, rebates
and value added tax (“VAT”).

(i) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest
method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling)
that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset.
For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see note 1()(i)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Revenue and other income

(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

E-commerce service income
E-commerce service income is
recognised when the consigned
goods from distributors sold through
the Group’s online shops are took
possession and accepted by end
customers.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised
in the statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised
as revenue in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same year
in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for
the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised
in profit or loss over the useful lives
of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BB MYt ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

v)

Revenue and other income
(Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Rental income from
operating leases

Rental income receivable under
operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use
of the leased asset.

Personal protective
equipment revenue

Revenue is recognised when the
customer accepts and takes the
control of the products. Revenue
represented the sales value of
goods sold less returns, discounts,
rebates and value added tax
(“VAT”).

(w) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during
the year are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are

translated at the foreign exchange rates

ruling at the end of reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B3 R B = (4R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B-ZB77158Z 51 - YA REZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESTHTEHXR®)
POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Translation of foreign currencies

(w) SNEBRE (2

(Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is the
date on which the Group initially recognises
such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated, of
fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling of dates, the fair value
was measured.

The results of operations outside mainland
China are translated into Renminbi at the
average exchange rates for the year which
approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are
translated into Renminbi at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity
in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside mainland
China, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

(v)

4@ Cabbeen Fashion Limited  Annual Report 2020 @

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production
of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of
the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

Research and development

Expenditure on research activities is
recognised as an expense in the year
in which it is incurred. Expenditure on
development activities is capitalised if
the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to
complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the cost of materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Other development expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the year which it
is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(z) Related parties

@)

A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group
if that person:

M

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over
the Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

()

(i)

(i)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same Group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or
joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures
of the same third party.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 77885 Z )

F UAREST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(z) Related parties (Continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:
(Continued)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified
in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

The entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group
or to the Group’s parent.

Close family members of an individual are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that
individual in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S i et ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESTEE @)
POLICIES (Continued)

(aa) Segment reporting (aa) D EBFRE

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
statements provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of the Group’s
business lines.

Individually material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar
in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S ot ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are the sale
of apparel and related accessories in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). Revenue represents
the sales value of goods sold less returns, discounts
and value added taxes.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers within the scope of IFRS 15 by sales
channels is as follows:

Iy 2
AEEZERERHA/NPEARLME
(IR B ]) sH & AR AR RE A an - Was R
EmHEBERERE - B IEE
i o

RS B R 5 MO BB T R 25 2
15K BENES S M

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—HLFE

2020 2019

—ECEF —T—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARKEFIT

Online shops MR R4 612,481 481,545
Offline shops BTG

Wholesales 2% 224,560 286,939

Consignment (A% 7=! 451,381 506,482

1,288,422 1,274,966

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no
single customer contributed to 10% or more
of the Group's revenue (2019: nil). Details of
concentrations of credit risk arising from these
customers are set out in note 27(a).

BHE 2 ZTF+_A=+—HIHF
B HEE P hEAEEKE10%
FUE(ZF—NF : B) BEZER
FREANSHEERRFBEHNHT
27(a) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PERSONAL PROTECTIVE
EQUIPMENT REVENUE AND COST

Local authorities in Shishi City, Fujian Province,
invited the Group to join forces with other entities
in the area to produce medical gowns and medical
facial masks (“PPE”) for the COVID-19 Pandemic
(“COVID-19").

Then, the Group has started to manufacture and
supply PPE to hospitals and other organizations in
need in the PRC since mid-February 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue
of PPE is amounted to RMB526,091,000 and the
related cost is amounted to RMB485,189,000.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions,
which are organised by business lines. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the
Group has identified two reportable segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form
the following reportable segments:

o Apparel and accessories: this segment
manufactures, purchases and sells apparel
and accessories.

° Personal protective equipment: this segment
manufactures and sells personal protective
equipment.

BB M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

18 A B fE 2 5 W I AR

BREAAMMM T EREEAEEHR
ZwENEMCEBFAE BEY
COVID-19%& & ([COVID-19]) £ E &
SMBREROS ([EARERE] -

BEEAEEE T -_TF - AT aEH
IRBGE R HEEA ERE TP ENE
Be M LA T B HYARA o

HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HILF
E-EAAMEREHREZRARK
526,091,000 7T * MK AR B AR
485,189,000 7T °

al-iie
AREEEBHEBFHITEKN D HE R
HER - REAAKERSTHERRE
HERDENERBFENB2HRER —
B A AEEBR T MER 2%
78 o WA HHEE D BEIAMEKIA T A2
HoEL -

. ARE R BCHh - D aPEE - BBE
Ko B RS M AL o

. EARTEER : %D 2BR
EREARERR

K it

i

o —ET-TEEH  FERHERAT @*



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a)
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Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results,
assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible,
intangible assets and current assets with the
exception of interest in an associate, deferred
tax assets, bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include trade and other
payable and lease liabilities attributable to
the manufacturing and sales activities of the
individual segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to
the reportable segments with reference to
sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation
or amortisation of assets attributable to those
segments.

To arrive at reportable segment profit, the
Group’s are further adjusted for items not
specifically attributed to individual segments,
such as share of loss of an associate, finance
costs and other head office or corporate
administration costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers by business lines, as
well as information regarding the Group’s
reportable segments as provided to the
Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and

4
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assessment of segment performance for the o
year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 is
set out below.
Personal
Apparel and accessories protective equipment Total
Rk REH EWNGE 4 @t
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
RIRE | CENF | CBCBE | CT0F | 2BCBE | ST
RMB’000 [ RMB'O00 [ RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000
AT | ARBTL | ARBTR | ARETL | AR%TR | ARETR
Revenue from contracts  FEEIBR B &4 8
with customers within -~ %155 EER
thescope of RS 15 EF&AMME 1,288,422 | 1074966 | 526,001 - | 1814513 | 1,274,966
Reportable segment profit A2 HAF&F 269,606 251,173 40,902 - 310,508 251,173
Depreciation and ERTERER
amortisation for the year 1,056 109 9,492 - 10,548 109
Impairment losses ontrade 3 EUFE
receivables HAESE (218) 319 - - (218) 319
As at 31 December AtZA=1-A
Reportable segment assets  (IZHAHEE 1,378,420 | 1,469,107 9,862 - | 1,388,282 | 1469,107
Reportable segment iabilties A2 HAHEE 640,198 599,827 21,153 - 661,351 599,827
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S ot ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

4 DIHE®E)

AE/RSHME - B - &

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
(b) Reconciliations of reportable (b)

segment revenue, profit or loss, EREENEHR
assets and liabilities
2020 2019
—EB-SF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Revenue from contracts TE PR B M 3R 5 2E
with customers within F15EER
the scope of IFRS 15 EFEHMKE
Reportable segment revenue 7] 2 7 2P 1,814,513 1,274,966
Personal protective equipment & A [ 2 I 25
revenue (526,091) -
Consolidated revenue e W 1,288,422 1,274,966
2020 2019
—E-SHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Profit pig il
Reportable segment profit BEZ o v 310,508 251,173
Share of loss of an associate 74 —fEHE & A RIAYES 18 (154) (46)
Finance costs BhE A (19,307) (21,608)
Unallocated head office ROBLBIMERE &
and corporate expenses NAIFZ (17,664) (7,733)
Consolidated profit before RE BRI ANR
taxation 273,383 221,786
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BB M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

B & (')

Reconciliations of reportable (b) TEFoHU=E B &
segment revenue, profit or loss, EREENEIRE)
assets and liabilities (Continued)
2020 2019
—EB-SF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETFIT
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets ~ A 2WmHILEE 1,388,282 1,469,107
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReFEY 529,037 266,992
Deposits with banks with REERE=1EA
original maturity date HERITER
over three months 293,357 303,254
Pledged bank deposits BEEFRITHER 92,397 119,824
Interest in an associate R—EE QR ER 49,149 49,303
Deferred tax assets FIEFIAE B 40,562 32,455
Consolidated total assets e BERR 2,392,784 2,240,935
2020 2019
—E-EHF —F-NF
$°000 $000
FExT FHET
Liabilities =L
Reportable segment liabilities A 2{kHIFEE 661,351 599,827
Bank borrowings RITEN 352,144 354,737
Current tax liabilities ARt IR B & 49,494 46,673
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBEE 63 3,876
Consolidated total liabilities IRERERE 1,063,052 1,005,113
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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OTHER INCOME 5 HlA
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFIT
Interest income FEHBA 14,326 17,968
Government grants (i) BT B (i) 51,041 45,340
Rental income from investment ¥ ¥ < WA (i)
property (ii) 8,490 7,501
Depreciation of investment SEMETE
property (9,796) (8,563)
Net gain on sale of HEHERETR
promotion and display materials ~ #FH)F U 5 1,490 814
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss)  4MEURES, (E518) F5E 9,514 (1,995)
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of HEME - BREKEE
property, plant and equipment AR EMIERENEER
and other non-current assets (B518) WaiF58 (618) 81
Net fair value gain on financial BATER AB=EL
assets at fair value through TREEMNATE
profit or loss S - 621
Others Efb 9,568 5,010
84,015 66,777
Notes: KiaE -

(i) Government grants in the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019 represented unconditional cash awards
granted by government authorities.

(ii) The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 5 years, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually adjusted every year to reflect
market rentals. None of the leases includes variable lease
payments.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in place at the reporting date will be
receivable by the Group in future periods as follows:

(i)

RBE_T_TFR_FT-NF+_-A
=+— R FE R B R BT R FIE
TROBIGIF RS 20 -

AEERBLLHERLREDX - HE
—RYIF BB ESF - WA EBHEA
AR A MSEERE - BEMNR—
REFRABARRTISZES - BIEHEE
ERAIEBEEN K -

ARG EHER T ARRIRBEE N
A ER B LA T AR ER IR

2020 2019

—g-%F e

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T REEFTT

within 1 year —FR 3,585 3,494
After 1 year but with 5 years —FRERAFK 4,259 5,755
After 5 years A& - =
7,844 9,249




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 BRBIANEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BRBLATRFE 0B (T A)
(crediting):
2020 2019
—_ ? —_ qﬁ Aij_LrEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREETFIT
(a) Finance costs & A
Interest on bank RITIEARFE R
borrowings and RITHEN ZIRRIR
discounting of
bank acceptance bills 18,880 21,446
Interest on lease liabilties ~ FAE&EFE 427 162
19,307 21,608
2020 2019
RMPB’ 000 RMB’000
AR%T ARETT
(b) Staff costs BIRA
Salaries, wages and other ~ ¥& + TE RHMEF
benefits 85,397 77,368
Contributions to defined AERFERIRET S
contribution retirement MR (Ff5E24)
plans (note 24) 989 5,834
Termination benefits ;&ﬁ. %IJ 2,285 3,733
Equity settled share-based $ EREE ARG A
payment expenses ERe R
(note 25) (FF5E25) 5,575 1,630
94,246 88,565

0O —T-TEEH  FRRHERLT @—



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BB MYt ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

BRBLADRER ()

BEAnaEMER,(GEA)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

(c) Otheritems Hitig g
Amortisation B
— intangible assets - B AE
Depreciation e
— owned property, - BEYE - BEAHRE
plant and equipment
— investment property - REYE
— right of use asset - EREEE
(Reversal of)/provision BIEEE (BE) B
of impairment loss
— trade and - B 5 R HA W KRIE
other receivables
Inventory write-down FEMR (3 17(0))
(note 17(b))
— apparel and accessories - ARZE K B &ff
- the PPE — B AR EE
Auditors’ remuneration ZERN &
Research and TR EE RS (i)
development cost (i)
Cost of inventories FERA

2020 2019
— —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
6,524 6,355
18,984 12,677
9,796 8,563
3,368 2,896
(218) 319
85,981 37,384
37,854 -
3,467 3,567
19,191 26,737
1,251,127 752,259

Notes:

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2020, research and
development costs include staff costs of employees in
the design, research and development department of
RMB10,583,000 (2019: RMB11,898,000) which are
included in the staff costs as disclosed in note 6(b).

Mt

BE_Z-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE "
R A R BIERET - 8 R FZERR
EERE KA AR 10,583,000 (=
T—NF: AR¥11,898,0007T) © BE
SEERT AMIEE 6(0) T FE 8 TAAR ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INCOME TAX IN THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(a)

BB M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

meBEEkEtAZEKERT
K FR S8

Income tax in the consolidated (a) HZEeBEEREMEZENKER
statement of profit or loss and RH TSRS
other comprehensive income
represents:
2020 2019
—ECEF —ET-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Current tax BIEA® 18
PRC Corporate HR B FTISH (v)
Income Tax (iv) 83,981 54,978
Over-provision BEFENRME
in respect of prior years FBEE (256) (101)
Hong Kong Profits Tax (ii)i) & 78 FI45 A% (ii) (i) 2,466 4,722
PRC withholding tax A TR
— dividend (v) — BAW) 3,000 2,500
— others - Efth 1,071 1,035
90,262 63,134
Deferred tax ELEBLE
Origination and reversal =4 N3 B B 5 14
of temporary Z &8 (fizE16(0))
differences (note 16(b)) (11,920) 510
78,342 63,644
Notes: KiaE -

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, the provision for Hong Kong Profits
Tax was calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for the year.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2020
is taken into account a reduction granted by the
Hong Kong SAR Government of 75% of the tax
payable for the year of assessment 2019-20
subject to a maximum reduction of $20,000 for
each business (2019: same as 2020).

0 BRERSHERABERLES
((HBEZES ] WRR A
B AEBEHAGRNFESESE M
RBELZRSNERPTEH o

(ii) HE_T_TFR-_T—NF
+TZA=1+—RHIEFE  &EF
1S BB IR FF Nl 5 IERR B s A
M 16.5% T & °

(ii) T EEFBNEHBHETR
EEBEREBRA® —ZE—NAE_F
AHREEEENRE  SHA
EEMNRENTS% SRR
20,000 T (ZF—NF: H=
TEFH) -

O —ToBFFHR  FERHARAF



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S ot ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

7 INCOME TAXIN THE 7
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

(@) Income tax in the consolidated (a)
statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income
represents: (Continued)

GeEakEtEZERKERS
M ATE 8 (&)

meBEsEkEAREKER
RERRERE - (8

Notes: (Continued)

Hiet - (&)

(iv) The statutory income tax rate applicable to the (iv) H=z—_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—H
Company’s subsidiaries in the mainland China IEFEERARARAMEARZ
is 25% for the year ended 31 December 2020 H B RREEE TSR R £25% (=
(2019: 25%). ZT—h4F : 25%) °

) According to the Corporate Income Tax Law and v) RIESFERSERE R EE 4

4@ Cabbeen Fashion Limited  Annual Report 2020 @

its implementation rules, dividends receivable
by non-PRC corporate residents from PRC
enterprises are subject to withholding tax at
a rate of 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties
or arrangements, for profits earned since 1
January 2008. In addition, under the Sino-Hong
Kong Double Tax Arrangement and its relevant
regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax resident
will be liable for withholding tax at the rate of 5%
for dividend income derived from the PRC if the
Hong Kong tax resident is the “beneficial owner”
and holds 25% or more of the equity interests of
the PRC company. Deferred tax liabilities have
been provided for in this regard based on the
expected dividends to be distributed from these
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future in respect
of the profits generated since 1 January 2008.
The Group adopted 5% withholding tax rate for
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Dividend withholding tax represents tax
charged by the PRC tax authority and dividend
distributed by the Group and subsidiary in the
mainland China during the year.

8 SEREREEREE-ST
NEFE— B — B #BE 4 /% F FE UK
R B EE AR B B 1R 10% BV E =
BANTEINE - BRI T U5 E Bk
ZHEHIR © LEAh - IRIB AR
BREEERTLREREBEE
B MEANBERAE [ Enlk
BALLFH P ERE H25% 5K
A ERIRHE - R EBHEBT
BERGAGRNRTFBEEENRE
WA IR 5% B B R AN TE A0 FY
EREZSMNBARRKE=ZZZ
NE—B— BREAREFRA
T8 R ARKH TR TEHR S F 1t
STREEHIEAERE - ASEER
BHE_ZT_ZTFER=_ZT—NF
T A=+ —BLEFEFRM%
BTEIOFL -

P B FEMBHE P R B SRR A
KB R B A RS A R
A IRA AR SHBR VB




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INCOME TAX IN THE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax

BB M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

GeEakEtEZERKERT
AT B8 (&)

(b) HHEFMXERBERARRGE

expense and accounting profit at WEHEFEER
applicable tax rates:
2020 2019
—ECEF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Profit before taxation R A& 273,383 221,786
Notional tax on profit REARESHBER

before taxation, BEBXGERN

calculated at the BR 75 AT A1 AY

standard tax rates HEHIA

applicable to the

respective tax

jurisdictions 71,338 58,046
Effect of non-deductible ~ NAIFNFBA S Y /22

expenses 8,768 2,982
Effect of non-taxable BAGRMBANE

income (1,544) (692)
Effect of tax losses not RERTIEEBBENTE

recognised 604 864
Over-provision BEFER

in prior years B EmEE (256) (101)
PRC dividend A B AR B TR0

withholding tax (PI5E 16(0))

(Note 16(0)) (439) 1,971
Other withholding tax H A B 1,071 1,035
Others HAh (1,200) (461)
Actual tax expense ERBIERX 78,342 63,644

o —T-BEEH

FRRMERAF @—



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S ot ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8 E=Hm
The details of directors’ emoluments are disclosed EEHMFIBHRENAT
as follows:
Salaries, Equity-settled
allowances Retirement share-based
Directors’”  and henefits scheme payments 2020
fee inkind  contributions Sub-total (note i Totel
e B E
BER R GEAY  -3-%
EEZ0ES B 5 Nt (Ryz) it

RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RVBOO0  RMBIOOO
AERTL  ARKTR  ARBTT  ARBTR  ARETn  ARRTR

Executive directors YiEs

M. Ziming Yang BERLE 1,161 1,161 3 2,353 - 2,353
M. Siu Keung Ng ROBEE 327 - 17 344 3 375
Mr. Rongain Ke ML 174 145 7 32 9 424
Independent BUkHTES

non-executive directors

M. Yung Kiwok Toui RAELE 312 - - 312 - 312
Mr. Honghui Chen REBEE 312 - - 312 - 312
M. Ming Shu Leung A ik 312 - - 312 - 312
Total gt 2,598 1,306 55 3,959 129 4,088
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME e it ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8 EEFHMw
(Continued)
Salaries, Equity-settled
allowances  Retirement share-based
Directors’  and henefits scheme payments 2019
fee inkind contributions Sub-total (note i) Total
HRGA
#e ERmRE
R RN RENR B0
- £20k BNER 3 NGt (RzE1) fct

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRTR  ARMTR  ARRTR  ARETR  ARRTR  ARMTR

Executive directors HES

Mr. Ziming Yang EC 720 728 26 1,474 - 1,474
Mr. Siu Keung Ng RbBLE 249 550 36 835 70 905
Mr. Rongain Ke MBgEE 167 156 2 346 222 568
Independent BUFHAES

non-executive directors

M. Yung Kiwok Teui BAREE 318 - - 318 - 318
Mr. Honghui Chen BREBEE 318 - - 318 - 318
Mr. Ming Shu Leung s i 318 - - 318 - 318
Total s 2,090 1,434 85 3,609 292 3901

Notes: Hiat -

0] These represent the estimated value of share options 0] ZECHIERBEAQ R ZEBRETEIRE
granted to the directors under the Company’s share ERNNBERENGEER - 2FTERE
option schemes. The value of these share options is FE B ORI BT 5 1 (s)(il) T3k AN 52 & 5 LA
measured according to the Group’s accounting policies RN BERNRR SO ETEE M E ©

for share based payment transactions as set out in note

1(s)(i-

The details of these benefits in kind, including the ZEBMENFE  BEEERARME
principal terms and number of options granted, are HERESEREEWRE [ BBARETE
disclosed under the paragraph “Share Option Schemes” —BR R 25 1R EE -

in Report of The Directors and note 25.

0O —T-TEEH  FRRHERLT @—



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B s iyt ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

9 INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST 9 EeFMAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, IEGEaTMATHEEREES(Z
two (2019: two) are directors whose emoluments T-NF:MA) BEOFHR LEX
are disclosed in note 8 above. The aggregate of the MIFE8IREE - A N ERBIA THF B A2%E
emoluments in respect of the remaining individuals T

are as follows:

2020 2019
—_ 7 —= E'E :%:‘iij—béﬁ
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARET T

Salaries and other emoluments ¥4 Kz 4t 5 A 3,012 3,034
Contributions to retirement RIREFF B
benefit scheme 34 65
Equity settled share-based VAR B BT B0 A i
payments HEAR 250 567
3,296 3,666
The emoluments of the three (2019: three) —H(ZE-NEF  ZR)meFTMALT
individuals with the highest emoluments are within HIFT BT T AIEE -

the following bands:

2020 2019

—EIEF —E-NF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AH AE

HK$500,000 to HK$1,000,000 500,000/ 7T £ 1,000,000/ 7T 1 -

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,000/ 7T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £ 2,000,000 7T
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10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BB M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per
share is based on the profit attributable
to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB194,209,000 (2019:
RMB157,644,000) and the weighted average
number of 668,593,000 ordinary shares
(2019: 668,593,000) in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

10 BRER
(a)

BRERER
ERERBITIARNA R LB
BafRBAELRINARKE
194,209,0007L( = & — L F ¢
A R #157,644,0007C ) & £
B 897 & @A N T35 &
668,593,000 ( = & — J1 &F :
668,593,000 1% ) & E %5+ & 10
o

EERMETIE

2020 2019
—E-EE —T—NF
’000 000
T T
Issued ordinary shares at H—H—BMEETEER
1 January 668,593 668,593
Effect of share options IR ERENTE
exercised (note 26(c)(ii)) (Bt 5F 26(c)(i)) - -
Weighted average number A+—=A=+—HH
of ordinary shares TR 19 81
at 31 December 668,593 668,593

o —ET-TEEH  FERHERAT @*



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BB MYt ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 10 SRER @)

(b) Diluted earnings per share (b)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share
is based on the profit attributable to ordinary
equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB194,209,000 (2019: RMB157,644,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 668,593,000 shares (2019:
668,593,000), calculated as follows:

BRE#BEER
EREBERFNTIARNRR LB
REFBEAEGEENARK
194,209,000 L (ZE—I4F : A
R ¥ 157,644,000 7T ) K& & i@ A%
DA 15 £668,593,000 % ( ==
— L5 : 668,593,000 % ) A E A
SHEMT

Weighted average number of ordinary EERINEFEYH (EE)
shares (diluted)
2020 2019
—ECEF —T-NF
’000 ‘000
TR TR
Weighted average number A+ —-A=+—H
of ordinary shares B3 38 R N 5 E
at 31 December 668,593 668,593
Effect of deemed issue of 1R 1ERIBEA R BB HERT 2]
shares under the NERBEITRODHTZE
Company’s share option  (Ffiz¥25)
scheme for nil
consideration (note 25) - -
Weighted average number ®A+—=A=+—H
of ordinary shares Y AR I 1T EX
(diluted) at 31 December  (##) 668,593 668,593
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S i et ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 11 BREYE
RMB’000
ARBTIT
Cost: B
At 1 January 2019 RN—E—NF—H—H 42,990
Addition NE 97,709
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RN_E—-—NF+HA=+—H
. rR=ZF=%F—-A—H 140,699
Reclassification from other property, plant BEMYIE BERSHBEEFHHE
and equipment \ 512
Disposals HeE (1,303)
Reclassification to other property, plant and equipment E¥ D EZ HEtW% - BENZE (16,911)
_At31December2020 R=F=FFT_A=1T—H 122997
Accumulated depreciation: HEHE
At 1 January 2019 R-_ZE—NF—HA—H 3,383
Charge for the year FRHMkR 8,563
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZZE-NF+—A=1+—H
MN_T_ZTF—H—H 11,946
Charge for the year FRkR 9,796
Reclassification from other property, plant BEMYIZE - KEAEE
and equipment Rk 31
Written back on disposals &L (239)
Reclassification to other property, plant and equipment EFi D EE HibW % - MEMRE  (1,549)
(At81December2020 R=F=_FFT=-A=t"H 19,985
Net book value: IREFHE :
At 31 December 2020 R_ZE_TF+_A=+—H 103,012
At 31 December 2019 W_ZE-—hF+_A=+—H 128,753
Investment properties of the Group are situated in REENREMELARFE -
the PRC.
Assets leased out under operating KREHEETNHENEE
leases
The Group leases out investment properties under Zl—‘%iﬁ?ﬁ”‘%fﬂ%fﬂﬁ&é%% Gic|
operating leases. The lease typically runs for an Eﬁﬂ”\]%ﬂﬁéﬁaﬁﬂﬁaﬁ BERBIESF  H
initial period of 1 to 5 year, with an option to renew BALNERIFEIEA - ERAEGREE
the lease after that date at which time all terms are i c MEW M BRESRES -
renegotiated. The leases do not include contingent
rentals.
All properties held under operating leases that REEMEE NERNMBMERITHN
would otherwise meet the definition of investment EREMNEEREDERIREME -

properties are classified as investment properties.

The carrying amount of the investment properties RZE_ZTEF+_A=+T—BK=F
was not materially different from its fair value as at —NWF+ZA=+—8 ' BREVENER
31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019. EEAEEQNFERALTEEAESR -

O —B-TEHEFH  FERHERLT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S ot ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

12 OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND 12 Htt¥= - BEKRR®H
EQUIPMENT
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (@) PFREEXER
Ownership
interests
in land and other
properties held
for own use Furniture,
carriedat  Leasehold  Plantand Motor fixturesand Construction
cost improvements  machinery vehicles  equipment  in progress Total
GLIN
KEERzH
REfNEL G- %8

RARRE RENRKE HERER nE BB ERIE it
RMBOOO  RMBOO  AMBODO  RVBOOO  RWBO  RMBODD  RVBOO
NERTR  ARBTR  ARRTR ARRTR ARBTR  ARETR  ARRTR

Cost: HA

At1 Jenuary 2019 R_2-N5-A-H U8 /A6 U WO 8 M3 13
Addtions BE 31,051 88 576% 3,660 2847 13488 109579
Disposals bE = = (£26) (1.371) (851) - 2,649)
Tensler £ - 13079 - - (138 -
Exchange adjustment EHEE - 5 - 7 % - i
At 31 December 2019 WZE-NETZA=T-BR
adtdnay20 SRR 059 %8 10632 1638 316% 14102 2084
Addiions e 3,121 219 6,728 1563 6357 1747 37369
Reclassfcaton from investment  ERENZEHAR

properties - - 16,911 - - - 16,911
Disposals it - - 27 1 741 - (1100
Tensfer g - - 7,187 - - e -
Redlassficationto imestment ~ EMARERANZ

properties ) (12) - - - = = (12
Exchange adjustment EfE - = - 16) (125) - (341)
_ A3fDecemoer2020 - RBRRIZAZTR L 11 A L R O 2 AL
Accumulated depreciation: i i :

At 1 January 2019 W=5-F-A-A 108 28% 182 010 5301 -
Charge for the year L 2.8% 2,953 5,607 152 2403 - 15473
Witten back on cisposals HERE - - B371) (621) ) - (1,767)
Exchange adjustment EHEE - 5 - % 2 - 51
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NETZRA=T-BR
ey BEAR W9 BT® T 0B BM0 - T
Charge for the year L . 3,368 1453 13,801 1730 2000 - 2,352
Reclassfcaton from investment  ERANZEHAR

properties = = 1,549 = = = 1,649
Witten back on disposals ERm = = {010) 0 7022 - (10%)
Reclassfcatonto nestment ~~ EMARERENZ

properties ) (31) = = = = = 1)
Exchange adjustment Ef 8 = - - (%) (121) - (14
A3t December 2020 RBZBEASTR 16T 188 fefTt 2087 - G
Net book value: RERE -

At 31 December 2020 RZEBETZR=1-A 50872 205 1133% 5,062 8,39 U2 0510
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NETZR=1-A 51,600 21% 98,124 5,360 4.6% 14102 176016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BB M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

12 OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND 12 Hb¥%  BERRE @
EQUIPMENT (Continued)
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) FREEHIRE)
(Continued)
The aggregated net book value of property, RZZE_FTF+ZA=+—
plant and equipment pledged to secure the B REmFEAGXZARK
Group's banking facilities for issuing bills 149,571,000 Tt I M % - 5 &
payable and short-term bank borrowing REEEMR - EATNEERRE
amounted to RMB149,571,000 as at TRERNZEREBRRITERZ
31 December 2020 (2019: Nil). RITHENER(ZZE—NF:
/) o
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) ERAEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of- EEBEERRNE D 2 EAESR
use assets by class of underlying asset is as EREFEINET
follows:
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
+ZA=+—-H| t+t=ZA=+-—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B & ARBTR AR T
Ownership interests in RKIEBRZ
leasehold land held HELHZ
for own use, carried at R
the depreciated cost (RITERAAR) ) 41,712 43,258
Other properties leased MEEBRAZ
for own use, carried at Hipz (RingE
the depreciated cost XANER) (i) 9,160 8,342
50,872 51,600
Note: (i) Ownership interests in leasehold land held for Mz : ((FEERACHEELHEERE
own use M
Ownership interests in leasehold land held for BEERcHELT o R ERE
own use represented the Group’s land use rights RSB AT BRMNEE M
on leasehold land located in the PRC. Lump B bR FARE - R E T E
sum payments were made upfront to acquire R e —IRIERFK o
these land use rights.
(iiy Other properties leased for own use (W EEEB M EMYZE
The Group has obtained the right to use other AEBEEBHERZESER
properties as its warehouses and office through HthMEIERE BERIFAEHIHE
tenancy agreements. The leases typically run for M- ZEE—RVFLRH2ES
an initial period of 2 to 5 years. Lease payments FoHENEREFFEMUR
are usually increased every year to reflect market MmisEHEe -
rentals.
O —EZ_ZFEFHR FEREFERAA

W



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BB MYt ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

12 OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND 12 Hi¥Y%¥ - BERRE @)
EQUIPMENT (Continued)
(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (b) FHEEE®)

4@ Cabbeen Fashion Limited  Annual Report 2020 @

The analysis of expense items in relation
to leases recognised in profit or loss is as
follows:

HEN R RN HERBENRX
HENHTWT

2020 2019
—ECEFE —E-hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Depreciation charge of REEEERREINH
right-of-use assets by EREEEREXL :
class of underlying asset:
Ownership interests BIEERZHET
in leasehold land e EER
held for own use 1,065 868
Other properties leased for FHE1EE AR HALYIZE
own use 2,303 2,028
Interest on lease liabilites A& & &S (H:E6())
(note 6(a)) 427 162
Expense relating to HFBRER T —NF
short-term leases and +=—A=+—H=Z
other leases with ATfE M2 AR E &
remaining lease term HitniASEEMA
ending on or before
31 December 2019 4,643 6,394
Expense relating to leases HEEEEEHEE
of low-value assets, (TEREREEEE
excluding short-term B HATE &) AR R X
leases of low-value
assets - 204
COVID-19-related rent EJEELCOVID-19
concessions received MRS RE L 110 —




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

12 OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

During the year, additions to right-of-
use assets were primarily related to the
capitalised lease payments payable under
new tenancy agreements and newly acquired
leasehold land.

Details of total cash outflow for leases, the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities and the
future cash outflows arising from leases that
are not yet commenced are set out in notes
20(d), 23, 27(b) and 28 respectively.

As disclosed in the note 1(c), the Group
has early adopted the Amendment to
IFRS16,Leases,Covid-19-related Rent
Concessions, and applies the practical
expedient introduced by the Amendment to
all eligible rent concessions received by the
Group during the period.

BB M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

12 Hi¥% - BERSKE @

(b)

EHEEE®)

TR EREEENAETRHE
REFHEHREN 2EELH
ENREFHWEHEEL AR

ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ% i//lbﬁ,ﬁ%'%ﬁ Tﬂht::é\
EEIE A DT R e RFBHEE
EEZ?&X%@&M&Z%F B3

7 Bl 2 B Bt 5:20(d) * 23 ~ 27(b)
K28 o

B 1) T EE - AEEE
RERMNBEIR G B HREERSE

165 ] A& - # & - COVID-19
1B E - WEZIEE] 5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S ot ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13 EBREEE
Computer

software Others Total

E e Hith st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT ARETIT

Cost: KA :
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—A—H 62,761 9,050 71,811
Additions NE 2,261 - 2,261
At 31 December 2019 R=ZT—HF
and 1 January 2020 +TZA=+—HK
—E-ZTF—HF—H 65,022 9,050 74,072
Additions NE 11,550 — 11,550
Disposals HeE (205) — (205)
At 31 December 2020 MN-ZT_TF
+=—A=+—8 76,367 9,050 85,417
Accumulated Rt .
amortisation:
At 1 January 2019 RZFT—nF—H—H 32,181 2,237 34,418
Charge for the year FRMkR 6,355 - 6,355

At 31 December 2019 RZZT—h4F
and 1 January 2020 +=—A=+—HK

—E-FF—H—H 38,536 2,237 40,773
Charge for the year FRMER 6,524 - 6,524
Written back on HE &L
disposals (175) - (179)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZT_TF
+=-—A=+—H 44,885 2,237 47,122
Net book value: BREDFE
At 31 December 2020 RZZT_TF
+—A=+—H 31,482 6,813 38,295
At 31 December 2019 RZ=ZT—h&F
+—-—A=+—H 26,486 6,813 33,299
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, other RZEZZEFRZF-NF+A
intangible assets include golf and yacht club =+—8" ﬁ{ﬁﬂﬁ/ﬁﬁ’lﬂ%mﬁﬁ%
membership totally amounted to RMB6,813,000. ke meis £t AR%6,813,000
The Group considers that the useful lives of above T ASERA LA EEIEFEAF
memberships are infinite. R o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The Group considers that there is no impairment
indication of the intangible assets with infinite useful
lives, as the fair value of such assets exceeded
their carrying amount as at 31 December 2020 and
31 December 2019.

The amortisation charge of intangible assets for
the year is included in “administrative and other
operating expenses” and “selling and distribution
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

Particulars of the associate which is an unlisted
domestic enterprise incorporated and with business
in the PRC whose quoted market price is not
available:

Particulars of

issued and paid

Name of associate up capital
EBTRE

NG HRERIE
Guangzhou Huazhi Investments Co., Ltd. RMB100,000,000
(*Huazhi Investments’)* AR 100,000,0007C

ENEERERRAA ([FERE )

13

14

BB M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

BILERE (@)
R_E_FTFF+_A=1+—HBEKZZ
—NEF+_A=+—H8 BRAFERF
HAERNENEEN A FEBAERE
HE  HASEREEHEEEWE LR
BERR °

FRETEERHER T AKRA RS
MEMEE R RE N [TTEREEM
SERx ] M [HERDHFAX]

R —EHE A R ER
AT (8 — R B
EITRBMIELTENLE - EPIBH
BYTAE) BT -

Proportion of ownership interest

ERERRLA

Group’s

effective Held by the Held by a

interest Company subsidiary Principal activity

AL it

ERER  ADEFEE AAfRE EEE

38% - 33% Properties construction

xR

*

The English translation of the Company name is for
reference only. The official name of the Company is in
Chinese.

The associate is accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.
Summarised financial information of the associate,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies,
and reconciled to the carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
below:

Y ARBERRXEEERRE - ERANET
NRBREAHI

ZHE R R EREREERE MW
RAALR - ZBE R R I I E R E
REREM SR ERFAE - WHER
B BRRNREEETHREREN
o

o —ET-TEEH  FERHERAT @*



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S ot ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

14 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 14 R—REEE ATINER (&

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
Gross amounts of the associate BN\ BIME S5
Current assets MENEE 497,889 413,661
Non-current assets EMBEE 8 6
Current liabilities MEEE (163,088) (162,591)
Non-current liabilities FERBALE (219,000) (134,800)
Equity T 115,809 116,276
Revenue Wz - -
Loss for the year FAEE (467) (138
Total comprehensive income FHEINEEEEE (467) (138)
Reconciled to the Group’s R E OB A RIAY
interests in the associate R HR
Gross amounts of net assets BENAEEFEERE
of the associate 115,809 116,276
Group’s effective interest AEENERER 33% 33%
Group’s share of net assets AEEEEHEAREEFE
of the associate 38,217 38,371
Goodwill BES 10,932 10,932
Carrying amount in the iR ik AR RREE
consolidated financial
statements 49,149 49,303
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S i et ()

15 RIELRNKRE

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results,
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares
held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

enterprises in the PRC.

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

TRESIHAKEFRE  EEXEE
BEARZENMBARFE - KREiE
ST

BASN »

Proportion of ownership interest

The English translation of the companies’ names is for
reference only. The official names of these companies are

in Chinese.

O

RRRRRLA
Place of Particulars of Group’s
incorporation issued and effective Held by the Held by the
Name of company and business  paid up capital interest Company subsidiaries Principal activities
a7 A0 EBTR AREN QT HEAT
AL eSS HEEAGHE ERER fikg fisE  ITER
Cabbegn Clothing China PRC HK$50,000,000 100% - 100% Wholesale of apparel
Co., Ltd.* ) il 5000000047 ik e
(‘Cabbegn China’)
~ERH(hE)BRAR ()
([+&E )
Guangzhou Cabbeen Clothing PRC HK$20,000,000 100% = 100% Wholesale of apparel
Co., Ltd* () el 20,000,000 77 &R
BMm+ERESARAA ()
Quanzhou Mijie Electronic PRC Nil 100% - 100% Wholesale of apparel
Commerce Co, Ltd* o S R
SMmEREFARERAT
Guangzhou Zixi Enterprise PRC HK$8,000,000 100% = 100% Trademark holding and
Management Co., Ltd. * () G 8,000,007 retal of apparel
BMmREEEERARAR() BRRRRREZE
Guangzhou Cabbeen Clothing PRC RVB6,000,000 100% - 100% Online sales of apparel
Trading Co., Ltd.* i ABRH6,000,0007C EHREHE
BMRERSGEZERAR
Guangzhou Huazhi PRC RMB65,000,000 96.27% - 96.27% Real estate development
Development Co., Lid.* i ARE65,000,0007C FHERE
BMEEEXERARAA
Shishi City Junyuan Development ~ PRC RMB6,616,385 100% - 100% Properties holding
Co, Ltd* i NEH 6,616,857 VEGL
ARTERRERARAT
Note: (i) The subsidiaries are wholly foreign-owned HEE - () ZEMBRARATRIIEEEDR

E

ZERRMRGEREHZE - ZE QT
MR XBEAE A -

—ECBTER FEREFRA A



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S ot ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B-ZB7T158Z 51 - UAREZT)

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15 RKIEBATMNKRE (&)
(Continued)

TREJIEHEENETEXRERARD
AI(TEERR]) (AREHEEEAIFE
PetEm 2 B AR) 2B R o T
BB Z IR A R RIE L R < &

The following table lists out the information relating
to Guangzhou Huazhi Development Co., Ltd.
(“Huazhi Development”), the subsidiary of the Group
which have material non—controlling interest (NCI).

The summarised financial information presented
below represents the amounts before any inter—

company elimination.

#

o

Huazhi Development: EEER -
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETIT
NCI percentage EIERER A D 3.73% 39.4%
Current assets MENEE 17,968 51,552
Non-current assets EMBNEE 49,610 49,765
Current liabilities MENEE (1) (34,261)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE - -
Net assets BEFE 67,577 67,056
Carrying amount of NCI FEFERR SR B 2,521 26,420
Revenue Wiz - -
Profit for the year F R A 521 1,265
Total comprehensive FEKEBER
income 521 1,265
Profit allocated to NCI D E IR E R if‘?’lﬂ 19 498
Dividend paid to NCI A T IR R 5 2 IR - -
Cash flows from operating KreEESRERE
activities (4) 12
Cash flows from investing KREZHRER=
activities - -
Cash flows from financing BMEESHRSNE
activities - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INCOME TAX IN THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

BB M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

16

REVBRRRANFES

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

(a) Current taxation in the (a) #HEMBARRTAKENEH
consolidated statement of IH1E ¢
financial position represents:
2020 2019
—B-%%F| =—B-hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
PRC Corporate Income Tax Bl AT{SHL 42,561 41,140
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBMFH 6,933 5,533
49,494 46,673
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b) EERINELHEEERE
recognised: =
() Movement of each component of (i) EZEHEEEREREN
deferred tax assets and liabilities BE4H B B0 = F)
The components of deferred tax MBI R ERH
assets/(liabilities) recognised in the EERBEE,/ (BRE)
consolidated statement of financial B 48 A% 2B > N B A S B
position and the movements during T
the year are as follows:
PRC dividend
withholding tax
relating to the
undistributed
profits of the
Inventory  Allowances for Accrued Unrealised ~ Company's PRC
Deferred tax arising from: provision  doubtful debts expenses profits subsidiaries Total
REALNE
MEREAR
AR
ITEBHELRERE: FERE RERE Eiffx FERRN  PERSENA a3t
RVB000 RVBO0) RVBO00 000 RMB000 RVBO00O
ARETTL ARETT ARBTT ARETT NREFT NRETT
At 31 December 2018 R-B-NET-A=1-8
and 1 January 2019 R=3-n%-A-H 15899 165 748 9,53 (3968) 29,089
Orected/(cebited foproft 5T/ (1) &
orloss note ) (3t 7) 1276 Gl 4873 [7.269) 5% 510)
At 31 December 2019 R-E-NETZA=1-A
and 1 January 2020 k2-5%-5-H 17175 P 12,331 227 (3439 285719
Crdfed{oebtedtopoft )/ () Bt
orloss note 7). (M) 14,113 ) (4949 (633 34% 11,90
At 31 December 2020 RT-BET-A=1-8 31,288 191 7.3% 1634 40499
O —E-ETFEFH  FERNERLT @—



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BB MYt ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

16 INCOME TAX IN THE

16 SREVBARRRANAEHR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF (&)
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b) ERANEZEHREEERE
recognised: (Continued) &:#)
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated (i) “HREMBERREKLER
statement of financial position
2020 2019
—E-BHF —ZE-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT
Net deferred tax asset RERE MR R
recognised in the R IR
consolidated statement HIBEEFR
of financial position 40,562 32,455
Net deferred tax liability RERE IR
recognised in the R IR
consolidated statement HIEAaEEHE
of financial position (63) (3,876)
40,499 28,579

4@ Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2020 @



16

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INCOME TAX IN THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax assets not
recognised

The Group did not recognise deferred tax
assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
certain PRC subsidiaries of RMB6,205,000
(2019: RMB15,329,000), which will expire in
five years under the current tax legislation.
The tax effect on such tax losses has not
been recognised as it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant
tax jurisdiction and entity.

Deferred tax liabilities not
recognised

Deferred tax liabilities in respect of the PRC
dividend withholding tax relating to certain
undistributed profits of the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries were not recognised as the
Company controls the dividend policy of
these subsidiaries. Based on the assessment
made by management as at the end of each
reporting period, it was determined that the
undistributed profits of RMB1,088,524,000
(2019: RMB1,007,387,000) of the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries would not be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

16

R R M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

g'_?— A
wh 9
(4
NG

(c)

(d)

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

PR R AR PSR

AERNELEREAEE

AEBWEER GBS T M
BRAAMNARABEEBEBEARY
6,205,000 L( —E— L EFE: A
R # 15,329,000 7T ) H) I RE 5 18
BE EEBROREZETNKERA
Fielam - BRHAERBRET
R R]BER AR BT 75 7 [ B BE AR LA
HHEENER RN - iy &

REBZENEEBEENNBE R

AEZNELEREAER

W ERER L AR B R B A
K& TR R &) A B8 B
BREAHRMELERIESE  RE
BARNFIESHIZENE QAR
BHE - IRBEEBN S REH
HEREFELHOFTE  EREARR
7]/ BB A AlAY & 2K s FA
R #1,088,524,000 7t (—Z— N
& AR#1,007,387,000 7T) #%
“ERA] RS RDIR

o —T-BHEEHR  FERHEARALT @7



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S ot ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

17 INVENTORIES 17 =FE&
(@) Inventories in the consolidated (@) HZHEMBERRERNEFEESR
statement of financial position ¥
comprise:
2020 2019
—ECRF —E-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
Raw materials JRATE 19,586 27,016
Work in progress ERS 4,209 3,861
Finished goods IRk 364,498 352,839
388,293 383,716
(b) The analysis of the amount of (b) BRABEZIAFTABRNE
inventories recognised as an ESBELFWMTE :
expense and included in profit or
loss is as follows:
2020 2019
—ECERF —E-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Carrying amount of EHEFEMNREE
inventory sold
— apparel and accessories — AREE [ B £ 679,957 714,875
— the PPE - BAF &R 447,335 -
Inventory write-down FEMR,
— apparel and accessories — ARZE N Bi & 85,981 37,384
—the PPE - BART &R 37,854 -
1,251,127 752,259
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BB M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 EZ & HMEUFIE

2020 2019

—E-FHF —E-hE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREETIT

Trade receivables =) 6O 434,040 609,597

Bills receivable JEU =R 114,000 25,000

Less: Loss allowance R EE (762) (980)

Trade and bills receivables B 5 WA & W ZE i 547,278 633,617

Prepayments to suppliers M FE R TR~ 5RI8 1,766 233
Other deposits, prepayments Hipiz e - EARIEK

and receivables (Note) FEWRIE (BI3E) 64,302 105,013

613,346 738,863

Note:

Included in other deposits, prepayment and receivable,
as at 31 December 2020:

Short-term loans with total face value of RMB15,840,000
(2019: RMB57,840,000) were lent to Huazhi Investments,
an associated company of the Group, among which
RMB15,840,000 (2019: RMB25,840,000) bears an
interest at 30% above The People’s Bank of China
(“PBOC”) base interest rate. The loans were recorded at
amortized cost as at 31 December 2020.

By the time short-term loan with face value of
RMB32,000,000 at 31 December 2019 became due,
the Group signed an agreement with Huazhi Investments
in March 2020. It is stipulated that the loan and
accumulated interest are converted into the advance
payment for the real estate developed by Huazhi
Investments and recorded as prepayment for acquisition
of plant and equipment accordingly as at 31 December
2020 (note 29(a)).

All of the current trade and other receivables are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense
within one year, except for the Group’s deposits of
RMB2,381,000 (2019: RMB2,520,000), which are
expected to be recovered after more than one year.

Wi

RITE_ZTF+_A=+—HNEME
& BNFAREYGARLE

MELKRE (AEEMNEE QR &R
HAE A AR 15,840,000 TR E
F(ZZ—NF - AR¥ES7,840,0007T) -
Hh e 3E AR 15,840,00070 (ZF—H
& AR¥25,840,00070) R B ARR
THBARIEIT]) EEFE EF30%
PR REERIR_ZT_ZTF+=-A
=+ — BB HRAAR -

ER—_T-NEt+-_A=+—HE@EEA
AR 32,000,0007T 855 B E 51 B EAR -
NEBR T -_THF= AHEETREAR]
—O R o ZREREERRRFEE
B S MR IR A AT B ERN AR
B AR -ZE-_EF+=-A=+—
B ABR AU B MRS K 5% S A TR A 308 (B
F$29(@)) °

FTERNERE 5 & H fih FE UL IB TR BB 10
—FAKEXERAERT - HEBEHS
RBB—FRELBMAEBRIZE AR
#2,381,000L(ZE—NF: ARK
2,520,000 7T ) R4 ©

O

—ECBTER FERSHRAE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S ot ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

18
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 E 5 Kk HfhEWIE (4)
(Continued)
The Group accepts bank acceptance bills from AEERGEEESEEEMTREEER
major banks in the PRC for settlement of trade THRITRAHLER - BEEBRERRZER
debts. The management considered that the risk BHRRFZEHEEERREH - At
of these bills relates substantially to credit risk. EREEREBURAEEEER &
Accordingly, when these bills were transferred ERIERACRMEE -
by either discounting or endorsement, they were
derecognised as a financial asset.
At 31 December 2020, the Group transferred bank RZEZZEF+A=+—H ' &%
acceptance bills totaling RMB181,046,000 (2019: EoEEATE R AR 181,046,000 7T
RMB158,468,000), and derecognised as financial —FT—NF : AR®158,468,0007T)
assets. These bank acceptance bills will mature six MIRITERREEE  TRIIERAREHRE
months from the date of issue. E o RERITALEEREBEITAERE
ETNEARE -
(a) Ageing analysis (@) BREEDIT
Ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables RIEZZFR_ZF-NF+=
based on invoice date and net of loss RA=1T—H®E S EWIEKE
allowance as at 31 December 2020 and WEBEMREEREEREER
2019 are as follows: AHARRREC AT AN T
2020 2019
—EF-FF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
Within 3 months ={E A AR 408,572 295,176
More than 3 months but ~ =1E A A E7XME A AR
within 6 months 103,538 307,278
More than 6 months but 7B A LA E—5F AR
within 1 year 35,168 31,163
547,278 633,617

Trade and bills receivables are due within
180-270 days from the date of billing. Further
details on the Group’s credit policy are set
out in note 27(a).

BoRWRIBEREREERNHARE
HER#EET180 =270 B W EIH -
B SEEEBRNE — 5T
BEHIEE27(a) °




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S i et ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 H 5 N HEUWFIE (%)

(Continued)
(b) Impairment of trade and bills (b) ESZEKUREREVREEN
receivables R AE
The movement in the loss allowance for FRZE SRR EREZ
trade receivables during the year, including BF(BREENTERFERERE
components measured individually and using EEEREBERBEKE D) I
the expected credit loss provision matrix, is 5 &
as follows:
2020 2019
—EEF —E-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREFTT
At 1 January R—H—H 980 661
Impairment loss (B@) TR EERE
(reversed)/recognised (218) 319
At 31 December RTZH=1T—8H 762 980
19 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 19 EBEFBTERK
Bank deposits have been pledged mainly as security RITEAREEERMIEARNERE (K
for bills payable (note 22) and banking facilities. The F22) RIBTTIRIEMNER - BIEIERTT
pledged bank deposits will be released upon the FREREEEBRENEZENIETRE
settlement of relevant bills payable and expiration of I HR1B RS o

banking facilities.

O —T-BEFH  FRBHERAT @—



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BB MYt ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 RERBEEEEY
(@) Cash and cash equivalents (@ RERRSZEYWERE
comprise:
2020 2019
— ? — ﬂi :ﬁ_ﬂﬂi
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREETFIT
Cash at bank and on hand #HRITFR K& FEERE 524,589 256,493
Other deposit Hh 7R 4,448 10,499
Cash and cash equivalents R4R& BTSN LZ&RHY
in the consolidated He MBS EEY
financial position 529,037 266,992
At 31 December 2020, cash and cash N—_E-_TEEF+_A=+—H -

equivalents placed with banks in mainland
China amounted to RMB506,723,000 (2019: EEMRARKES06,723,000 7T
RMB251,300,000). Remittance of funds out (Z=—h%F : AR¥251,300,000
of mainland China is subject to the relevant JT) c BFREAMIE A E S /EE

rules and regulations of foreign exchange ST R B (B AT 28 1 Y SINEE B I B AR
control promulgated by the PRC government. AR R SERR o

FERPEAMRITHIRE MR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S i et ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBTTIEAES - UA RS T)
20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 RERREZEW @)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before (b) BRBIEDZAIBALETHME
taxation to cash generated from REWHER :
operations:
2020 2019
—ECEF “T-hF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B s ARET T ARBTIT
Profit before taxation BREE AR 273,383 221,786
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation e 6(c) 32,148 24,036
Amortisation of B A EEH
intangible assets 6(c) 6,524 6,355
Share of loss of DGRk E QA
an associate B 154 46
Finance costs AR 6(a) 19,307 21,608
COVID-19-related B COVID-19
rent concessions AR LSRR
received (110) -
Net foreign exchange SNE (Uezs) /BB
(gain)/loss FEE (8,351) 2,110
Interest income HBHA 5 (14,326) (17,968)
Net loss/(gain) HENE - HFE
on disposal of RAEA R E
property, plant FERBEEN
and equipment B8/ ()
and other b=l
non-current assets 5 618 (81)
Net fair value gain on BATERARR
financial assets at fair E’J%ﬁﬁ‘lﬁﬁ )
value through profit or loss DNFEF W 5 - (621)
Equity settled share-based  #E=EE ARG A
payment expenses EMONAFRASZ  6b) 5,575 1,630
Changes in working capital: ~ &E& £ &%) :
Increase in inventories FEEM (4,577) (138)
Decrease/(increase) in trade & 5 M E A EUR
and other receivables IR, (38 0) 83,122 (247,022)
Increase/(decrease) in trade & 5 R E A ER
and other payables FOEE I, CRd) 60,138 (5,722)
Cash generated from KEEEMEERS
operations 453,605 6,019
° —B-BEEH

FRRMERAF @—



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S ot ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B-ZB7T158Z 51 - UAREZT)

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 BERREEEW @)
(Continued)

BMEEEMELRE YR

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising (c)
from financing activities

The table below details changes in the
Group’s liabilities from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future REAEBGAERERERT R
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s ARMERBEAZRERENE
consolidated cash flow statement as cash & °

flows from financing activities.

NERBIMERDEEAKHE
BEZEHFE  BRRENMIF
R8s MELIBELECAR
ERERECHRKRETER

Bank Loans
and other Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
RITEMK HERE st
Hiti B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR AR%TR AR%TR
At 1 January 2019 R=E-hF-A-H 287,452 497 287,949
Changes from financing HEREREZED
cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans ~ #TR{TEF 2 FIE5E 194,000 - 194,000
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (132,916) - (132,916)
Capital element of BN EASH
lease rentals paid - (1,916) (1,916)
Interest element of BfEEHEHD
lease rentals paid = (162) (162)
Total changes from MERENEZEDNHE
___fnancing cashflows 61084 (org 59,006
Exchange adjustments B AR 4,451 - 4,451
Other changes: Hit25
Amortization on EAEEARES: £
other borrowings cost 1,750 - 1,750
Interest expenses FIEHX - 162 162
Increase in lease liabilites ~ HRRETLHRE
from entering into new ZHBEEEEM
leases during the period - 9,736 9,736
_Total otherchanges ~ EHft®#@@&® = 6201 98®8 16,099 _
At 31 December 2019 R=Z-h%
+=B=1-H 354,787 8,317 363,054
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
f 85 s Myt ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 BERREESEW @)
(Continued)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising (c) MEETHFIELEEZHE
from financing activities (Continued) (#&)
Other
payable for
acaquisition of
Bank loans non-controlling
and other Lease Interests  Dividends interests in
borrowings liabilities payable payable asubsidiary Total
WEER-4
KEARN
RIEHR FERER
Hites  HERE  BANE  EGRE HiEAmE &t
RMB$'000 RMBS'000 RMB$'000 RMBS'000 RMBS'000  RMBS'000
ARETRT  ARMTn ARETR ARMTn  ARETR  ARETR
£t 31 December 2019 and RZE-N4E
1 January 2020 +=A=1-Hk
“Z2-ZE-f-H 354,737 8317 - - - 33,054
Changes from financing RERETEZEY:
cash flows:
Procegds from new bank loans MRTENLMEHE 128,666 - - - - 128,666
Repayment of bank loans BRBRITER (114,000) - = = - (114000
Capltal element of lease BfE AR
fentals paid - (1591) - - - (1,591)
Interest element of lease: BfifgFESS
rentals paid = (427) = = - (427)
Interests paid BRFE - - (17,181) - - (17,181)
Dividends paid ERRE - - - (63229) - (63,229)
Payment of acquistion of W —RHE AR
non-controling interests EZ ¢ SaWARE S
in a subsicliary - - - - (43,000) (43,000)
Total changes from financing BERSME BDEE
cash flows 14,666 (2018) (17,181) (63,229) (43,000) (110,762)
Exchange adjustments EnHE (18,570) - - - - (18,570)
Other changes: Hit2E:
Amortization on other YRR N
borrowings cost 1,311 - - - - 1,311
Interest expense MERZ - 47 17,619 - - 18,046
Increase In lease liabiltes from HARAAHEE
entering info new leases JHEAEEN
during the period - 2,950 - - = 2,950
COVID-19-related rent EJEHICOVID-19
conessions received RERLES
(Note 12(0) (P 12(0)) - (110 - - - (110)
Addtion on dividends payable FErRaEm - - - 63,22 - 63,229
Adation on investment R—EHBARM
ina subsidiary REE - - - - 43,000 43,000
Totlotherchanges RESBEE | s s 69 @29 800 184%
At 31 December 2020 R-B-8E
+-A=1-H 362,144 9,566 438 - - 362,148
O ZEEZHFHFR FEREFRA @7



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S ot ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Continued)

(d)

4@ Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2020 @

Total cash outflow for leases
Amounts included in the cash flow statement

20 REeRBEEEY @)

(d)

FEHEERS RN

RHEAARSRERZHAE

for leases comprise the following: N5 EIE
2020 2019
bt 222 —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREFIT
Within operating cash flows R&E &R S RER (4,643) (7,765)
Within investing cash flows R&EEREREN - (21,315)
Within financing cash flows REIEIREREN (2,018) (2,078)
(6,661) (81,158)
These amounts relate to the following: ZEE T EIBEH -
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETTT
Lease rentals paid ENHEERES (6,661) (9,843)
Purchase of leasehold BEHEYE
properties - (21,315)
(6,661) (81,158)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BB M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBTTIEAES - UA RS T)
BANK BORROWINGS 21 SRITER
Bank borrowings are repayable as follows: IRITERIIRUA T RNER
2020 2019
— 7 —_ ﬂi :ﬁ_hﬂz_
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFIT
Withinoneyear R®N 93612 354737
After 1 year but within 2 years K1 ERER2FNR 258,532 —
352,144 354,737
Bank borrowings as of 31 December 2020 and RZEZ_ZETF+_A=+—HERZZE

31 December 2019 were carried at amortized cost.

As at 31 December 2020, none of bank borrowings
was pledged with the Group’s trade receivables (2019:
RMB114,000,000).

As at 31 December 2020, bank borrowings of
RMB352,144,000 (2019: RMB240,737,000) were
unsecured, and drawn down under two loan facilities
of RMB352,144,000 (2019: RMB312,235,000).

At 31 December 2020, the banking facilities of the
Group were amounted to RMB952,837,000 (2019:
RMB712,235,000). The facilities were utilised to the
extent of RMB552,357,000 (2019: RMB354,737,000).
All of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s
financial ratios, and at the same time, one of them
further requires the controlling shareholder to maintain
his equity interest and voting rights in the Company
at certain level. A breach of these undertakings would
result that the drawn down facilities and interest would
become payable on demand. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants. As at
31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, none of
the covenants relating to the drawn down facilities had
been breached.

—NF+ZA=1+—RHZRITERIE
ﬁﬁﬁ$u‘|’i °

%:;:?¢+—ﬂ_+—5 R
TEFAREE 2 E 5 R R FRIE KT
<_$ HE - AR#114,000,0007T) °

RZEZEF+_A=+—H " 17
ERAR 352,144,000t (= FE—Hh
F: A R #240,737,0007T ) A& £ X
- WEREREERRERDNARE
352,144,000 (= —hF : ARK
312,235,000 7T) °

RZZE-EF+-_A=+—H ' ~5£H
ZIRITREE E AR 952,837,000 7T( =
T—NF : ARKET712,235,0007T) ° #%
EmECEHA AR 552,357,000 70(=
T—NhF: AR¥354,737,0007T) °

FIEASEZIRITREIAE #ﬁxﬁ
EETHBLEBFR 2% - R -

$—Eﬁ WERY kh%%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ

NEZBRERIEERES TKFE -

Mv%ﬁk%ﬁEkHZEQ&ﬂéﬁ
RIBEEREER - AEESTHERZS
LA ZBTER - RZZEZTF+=A
—t+—BRER_E—hAFE+_A=1+—
B BEENERE 7 ZATEEER -

O —B-TEHEFH  FERHERLT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BB MYt ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22 EBFRHMESFIE

At At

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

R-B-ZE R-Z—hEF

+=A=+—-H| +=ZA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT

Trade payables EC AN 187,647 298,743

Bills payable (note (a)) P24 (FiEE (o) 283,973 137,040
Trade and bills payables (note (b)) BIENFIER

eI (F3E (b)) 471,620 435,783

Contract liabilities aHaE 47,575 61,168

Other payables and accruals HAhEFIE R ETE A 132,590 94,559

651,785 591,510

All of the trade and other payables are expected to
be settled or recognized as income within one year
or are repayable on demand.

(@ Bills payable as at 31 December 2020
were secured by pledged bank deposits of
RMB85,721,000 (2019: RMB89,824,000)
and land use rights and properties of
RMB149,571,000 (2019: Nil) (notes 12 and
19).

FrAE 5 M E BN FORTB IR —F
N ER RBATIRERERE -

(@)

—E_EF+-A=1+—HHE
HEBEUBEFRITERARE
85,721,0007c( =& — N F : A
R ¥ 89,824,000 7T ) JA & + b {5
AR E AR 149,571,000
TL(ZE—NF : E) 1ERF (I

12 K% 19) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME e it ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22 BZRHMENKIE R

(Continued)

(b)  An ageing analysis of the trade and bills b) EIZENFRBRENEEBRRBERE
payables based on the invoice date is as ZEHHARROTOT ¢
follows:

2020 2019
—ECEF —EB-hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥TF T
Within 3 months =EAKRA 293,553 324,309
More than 3 months but = 1E A A _E7X{E A AR
within 6 months 173,280 105,598
More than 6 months but ~ 7~ELH A E—F AR
within 1 year 2,201 4,667
More than 1 year —FE 2,586 1,209
471,620 435,783
23 LEASE LIABILITIES 23 HEESE
At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R-ZBZEHF RZZE—NF
+=B=+—H +=—A=+—8H
Present Present
value of the value of the
minimum minimum
lease lease
payments payments
BRIEHE RIEHE
HBEE HRIRE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Within 1 year —FR 2,903 1,380
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMEAR 2,817 1,509
After 2 years but within 5 years WERERFA 3,846 5,428
9,566 8,317
—EoBEEE FERGERAD @—



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S ot ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

24
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT
BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plans

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in
defined contribution retirement benefit schemes (the
“Schemes”) organised by the PRC municipal and
provincial government authorities whereby the PRC
subsidiaries are required to make contributions at
the rate of 14% to 16% of the eligible employees’
salaries to the Schemes. The Group has accrued for
the required contributions which are remitted to the
respective local government authorities when the
contributions become due. The local government
authorities are responsible for the pension
obligations payable to the retired employees
covered under the Schemes.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group's contributions to the defined
contribution plans are expensed as incurred and
not reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the plans prior to vesting fully
in the contributions.

The Group has no other material obligation for
the payment of pension benefits beyond the
contributions described above.

24

EERIKEFN

RE SRS
AEENTENBAR2ERFETR
Ko AR BT HERE AT B S B SR (R FGR AR
@AM EI(T5H 81 )) - it B
BRARIANGEREEHFEMNI4%E
16% HYEL R A 3% 5T & E R » AR
EREZABER - RERBIRSENS T
E3t0 77 BT o 377 IR A A st (R0 2%
AEREN RN EE XN RREAER
£

AEBTTRIBERABRH MRS S
7 BRBBEBIEDIE T BLEERE
ArEERMATIERTESEE (M8
EEaTEl]) - BIESF S AHBILRE
ANEEHFE HFORIRETE] - RIBRIE
T8 BEREEBSBARSIH
R HREREEERKRARGSY. - H
TSHiB & A HEREY A 30,000 78 TH) £
BR o [AIFTEIVEH R HRENR SR8

REE [F15% % E B A RET I F H AR
HEARE - MiESRERS2HMH
AR S Mo W s T~ e A
TEFIREZ K o

Bk EXPATRAESRON - AEERRARERE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has two share option schemes
namely, the Pre-IPO Employee Share Option
Scheme (the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme) and
the Share Option Scheme, which were adopted on
8 October 2013.

(a)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 8 October 2013, the Company granted
options to subscribe for an aggregate
of 8,520,000 shares of the Company to
its directors, employees and one of its
distributors, under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme at an exercise price of HK$2.024,
being 80% of the initial public offering price.
No further option could be granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme after 8
October 2013. Options granted had vesting
periods of 1 to 3 years commencing from 28
October 2013, being the date of the listing of
the Company on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Each option gives the holders the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in
the Company.

Pursuant to the rules of the share option
scheme, options will lapse when the grantee
ceases to be an employee of the Group
for reasons other than death, permanent
disability, retirement and transfer of
employment to related parties, or terminates
the business with the Group.

25

R R M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

EaEEUARNAERNRKS

ZN/N

AIRAMIBELERTE - BIERA

P ERIE B B 8 (AR A%
ERIE R ) MEAER S %%
AER-E—=F1+AN\B&EH -

(a)

BXRAMBRERBRESTS
RZE—=F+AN\H ' ARF
BIEERAREESRIBREE
MEZES - EERESERZ—
% 7] R B8 A& ££8,520,000 A& A&
NARD 2 ERE ITHEER
2024 BT (BB X AHABEEBZ
80%)  R=—ZE—=F+AHN\H
BAAREBEE A AREERER
REFTEIRH A iERE - ER W
BREsZBHAEE T —=
+ A=+ N\B(BIARREREER
FIER EMBE) BET1 234 -
BHBRER TI5E AEFRE
— RN EEBA -

RIFEBET SRR - fHAR
ABEFH - KARE - BRIK K
BERB T AN RE MBS
AEEE B S H& AR B
X755 - QIR SRR -

o —T-BHEEHR  FERHEARALT @7



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BB MYt ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 @

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (&)
(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (a)
(Continued)

The number of pre-IPO share options

outstanding and exercisable as at year end
dates are as follows:

FEEURMDAEENRS

BXARRERNBRESTE
(%)
RELEB RMARITE LA TITEZ
BRAAFREEABRESRE W
T

2020 2019
—_ 7 —= ﬂE iiji*jli
Outstanding as R—A—BERTE
at 1 January 2,950,000 3,150,000
Lapsed during the year FRBE LXK (200,000) (200,000)
Outstanding as R+ZA=+—BRHRTE
at 31 December 2,750,000 2,950,000
Exercisable as R+Z—A=+—B0 F{7{E
at 31 December 2,750,000 2,950,000

The share options outstanding at
31 December 2020 had a weighted average

remaining contractual life of 2.8 years (2019:
3.8 years).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Share Option Scheme

(i)

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme,
the directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to
invite eligible participants, including
employees and directors of any
company in the Group, to take up
options at a nominal consideration
of HK$1 to subscribe for shares
of the Company to a maximum of
70,000,000 shares.

Pursuant to the rules of the share
option scheme, options will lapse when
the grantee ceases to be an employee
of the Group for reasons other than
death, permanent disability, retirement
and transfer of employment to related
parties, or terminates the business
with the Group.

The Company did not grant any
options under the Share Option
Scheme during the year ended
31 December 2020 and 31 December
2019.

25

BB M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

EaEHURGAERNRS

=

~

e

(b) HERREESHE
(i) REBRESTE - X278
EFERENBREEE
BH2EE  BIEAEE
FRARNEERES
B1IBTHEEREEMN
R EARIBA QA 2 R
19+ & % 470,000,000 fi%

B o

RIRRE AT SIm R A -
AR ARF R - KA
= RK R B E R
SN R T N B AR SR
BREBHEZIEEAEE
RS - RIRSAIEAS &
R o

RRARRBE_ZT-FTF
+tZA=+—BER=F
—NF+=-A=+—H1t
FREIBIBEBRE S
K EATIEARAE o
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(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

/|

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 REREEURGCAEENRKS

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (&)
(b) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (b) EERESTE(2)
() (Continued) M @&
Details of movements in the share EIRBEERE SR L/
options which have been granted BREZFHFEH M
under the Share Option Scheme are ™
as follows:
Options granted  Options granted
on 3 August 2017  on 13 June 2018
with exercise with exercise
price of HK$2.19 price of HK$3.54 Total
R-Z—tf R-B-N\E
NA=ZAREN ARAT=ARLEH
IEER219%8 T THEEARS3S54ETT
i)t iR IR @t
Outstanding at RZE-NF
1 January 2019 —H—H
mARITIE 5,600,000 7,400,000 13,000,000
Lapsed RENE (800,000) (800,000) (1,600,000)
Outstanding at RZE-NF
31 December 2019  +=-A=+—H
and 1 January 2020 R-ZT-TF
—RA—RRATRE 4,800,000 6,600,000 11,400,000
Cancelled [ (4,800,000) (6,600,000) (11,400,000)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

There were 11,400,000 share options
outstanding and none of which was
exercisable as at 31 December 2019.
The share options outstanding at
31 December 2019 had a weighted
average remaining contractual life of
8.1 years.

In view of the range of exercise price
for the share options granted on
3 August 2017 and 13 June 2018
were significantly higher than the
then market prices of the Company’s
Shares, the grantees requested the
Company to cancel the share options
in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme as those
share options can no longer serve
the purpose of providing incentives
or rewards to the grantees thereof.
11,400,000 share options were
cancelled accordingly with effect from
13 June 2020.
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BB M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

EaEHURGAERNRS
=]

=

~

e

(b) EEREFEI(2)

i &)
R—ZZE—NhF+=A
=+—H7 % 11,400,000
M RARITEBRE - K
WEA TITEE - RZF
—NFE+ZA=+—HH
) A 17 158 B AR |9 0 4 S
BFIBEHNFER/8F -

ERE—_Z—+tFNA=
BE_ZE—NFEXAT=
AEERNEREZTE
BEHEEESNAR AR
MERZME  ZFEE
ABEA R BRI B AR A
B 2 GRS SRR
- FRAZZERER
L ED AEREE A
AR AR RE KRR
B #9 ° 11,400,000 17 B A%
EEMEETUEE 8=
E_TFEXAT=AER-

o —ET-TEEH  FERHERAT @*



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BB MYt ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND

26 EX - @mERKRE

DIVIDENDS
(a) Movements in components of (a) HEZBoEE
equity
The reconciliation between the opening and REBGEEREBAONFI KR
closing balances of each component of the FREARNERENGaERE
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the K o AR AIERERIH D NF
consolidated statement of changes in equity. MEFEOEEFIFHIN AT ¢
Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:
Capital
Share Share  redemption Capital  Exchange Retained
Company capital premium reserves reserves reserve profits Total
&X
NG Bh RGRE  EERE  EREE  EXGE  REEH 3t
Note  RMB'0O0 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB' JCU RMB'000
B ARSTR ABMTT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMTR  ARMTR
Balance at1January 2019 M=Z-hE
-f-RfEs 5214 9,1% 364 3,69 (1,742) 88,754 105,500
Changes in equity for 2019: ~ =F—AEH
EngE:
Tota comprehensive income.~~ ERZENGAE
forthe year - - - - 1813 3,182 36,9%
Transfer between reserves BlEfEEE = = = @) - 441 -
Equity settled share-based EREENRAA
fransactions RN - - - 1,630 - - 1630
Diviclends declared EERRE 26(0) - - - - - (73,200 (73,200
Balance at 31 December 2019 W=Z-AF+=A
and 1 January 2020 =t-8R
3
-A-RigH 3 5,214 9,19 384 4,884 71 51,177 7095
Changes in equity for 2020:  —F=FEH
Eif9:
Tota comprehensive income.~~ ERZENELE
for the year 31 - - - - (2,062) 43,037 40985
Shares issued under share REEREE
option scheme Rl - - - - - - =
Transfer between reserves AR - - - (8.561) = 8561 =
Eouiy settied share-based EREENRAE
transactions ERNRS - - - 5575 - - 5575
Diviclends declared EERRE 260b) - - - - - 63,229) (63,229)
Balance at 31 December 200 R=Z-FF+=f
=T-AGH 31 5214 9,19 384 1,898 (1,981) 39,546 54,266
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(b) Dividends

BB M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

26 EX - #ERKRE @)

b) BE
() Dividends payable to equity (i) FERAFE RN
shareholders of the Company Rz AR R AR B,
attributable to the year
2020 2019
—EEF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARET T
Interim dividend declared BEERRE XA
and paid of HK$0.076 7Y EARR B
per ordinary share BRE @R
(2019: HK$0.075 per 0.07678 7T
ordinary share) (ZZE—hF:
0.075#7T) 44,802 45,672
Final dividend proposed MRS B RZ
after the end of the ¥R AR ERRR B
reporting period of BARE @A
HK$0.053 per 0.053 87T
ordinary share —E-NF:
(2019: HK$0.03 per BARE @A
ordinary share) 0.0387T) 30,474 18,427
75,276 64,099

The final dividend proposed after the
end of the reporting period has not
been recognised as a liability at the

end of the reporting period.

R E B RIZ R AR
HRR B 7 3R 5 B R B

O —T-BEFH  FRBHERAT @—
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(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(b) Dividends (Continued)

26 EX - #ERKRE @)

(b)

(ii) Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the

RE (&)
FEN E—FVBEFEREER
A EHE A FORAS & FE A
ARQ B BRAIBLS

(i)

year
2020 2019
—ECRHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
Final dividend in respect of M E—ETHRFE
the previous financial year, BB RRRF AR
approved and paid r R AR BB AR
during the year, of HK$0.03  E3@A%0.03787T
per ordinary share (ZE—N&F:
(2019: HK$0.048 per BRI R
ordinary share) 0.0487%7T) 18,427 27,528
(c) Share capital (c) B=
() Authorised and issued share (i) ZEERSBTERA
capital
2020 2019
BCEF ZF-h
No.ofshares  HK$'000  RMB'000 No.ofshares ~ HK$'000  RMB'000
RAEE TEn ARETn O Tir ARETn
Authorised: R
Ordlnary shares of BREGN AL
HK$0.01 each LEk 10,000,000 100,000 79,208 | 10,000,000,000 100,000 79,208
Ordinary shares, issued ~ BRTHREZER :
and fully paid:
At 1 January and R=B-Ak
31 December T-R=1-H 668,593,000 6,686 5214 668,593,000 6,686 5214
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Authorised and issued share
capital (Continued)

The equity shareholders are entitled
to receive dividends as declared from
time to time and are entitled to one
vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

Shares issued under share
option scheme

There was no share options granted
or exercised during the year ended
31 December 2020 and 31 December
2019.

BB M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 26 EX - #ekRE @
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (d) REAUEERAZR
() Share premium i) BHHE

Under the Companies Law of the BERSHESARE &
Cayman Islands, the funds in the RAIEHEER ENES
Company’s share premium account Aok THRE AIIRA
are distributable to the shareholders ZEEBREREERZ
provided that immediately following the % ARaBgHESE
date on which the dividend is proposed BB ERIEXE -
to be distributed, the Company will be
in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the course of business.

(i) Capital reserve (i) EXFEE
Capital reserves comprise the BERNFEBEATIER :
followings:
2020 2019
g S 53 —E-hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
The Group rEE
Equity settled share-based #mAis & ARG &
transactions (Note 25) AR5 (KI3E25) 1,759 4,745
Arising from reorganisation BEEHEL
(notes (i) and (ii)) (BHEE () B (i) 37,493 37,493
Arising from acquisition U FEIE B 2
of non-controlling 72 A (BREE (i)
interests (noteiii) (19,184) -
20,068 42,038
The Company ¥/
Equity settled share-based #mAis & ARG &
transactions (Note 25) AR5 (KI7E25) 1,759 4,745
Avrising from reorganisation 482 4 (B & (i)
(note (i) 139 139
1,898 4,884
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S i et ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 26 BX - fmEkiRE 0
DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (d) RBENHEERARE)
(Continued)
(i) Capital reserve (Continued) (i) EXFFHEE)
Notes: Kt -
On 18 May 2009, the controlling :? RERATN
shareholder sold his entire equity CERBRESEN R
interest in Cabbeen China to Cabbeen ﬁ‘:F' 02 EPARAE B
China Investments Limited (“Cabbeen FREFBHREEFRA
Investments”), so that Cabbeen A(RERE]D  #HK
Investments became the holding EREK A/ REFREK

company of Cabbeen China. The
consideration for the transaction was
RMB11,200,000. The difference of
RMB37,354,000 between the initial
cash consideration and the capital of
Cabbeen China was recorded as a
capital reserve.

On 31 July 2012, the Company issued
and allotted 100 shares with par value
of HK$0.01 each as a consideration to
purchase the entire issued share capital
of Grandfull International Holdings
Limited (“Grandfull International”) and
Cabbeen International Holdings Limited
from the controlling shareholder. The
difference of RMB139,000 between
the purchase consideration and the
share capital of Grandfull International
and Cabbeen International Holdings
Limited was recorded as an increase
of shareholder’s contribution in capital
reserve.

On 23 November 2020, Cabbeen China
acquired 35.67% of non-controlling
interest in Huazhi Development with a
total carrying value of RMB23,816,000
at a consideration of RMB43,000,000.

ERAR ZX BN
& & A R % 11,200,000
T mRASRERFE
EREEAEMEEA
R # 37,354,000 7T 5T A
B ERS -

RZTE—=ZFtA=+
— B AARBEITRE
E1000% & B @ fE0.01
BITHIRG - R MIE
R EE A = B R E
BERAATE=ZH
B R REBEBRERS
BARZIEFHITRA
WRE - BERERSE
BB &R E TR
BRARKBRAZEN
=58 AR #139,000 T
BEARFEBERERRKREL
BRIEINAL

RZTEZZTF+—A
—+=Z8: FEFTH
NEEERAEARE
23,816,000 & A #
B % R 35.67%IF 1 I
Em REAARKE
43,000,000 7T ©

—BEFEHR  FERGARAF @—



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 26 B - #HEERRKRE (@)

DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (d) REAUEERAZRE)
(Continued)
(i) Capital redemption reserve (i) EBARBEEFE

Capital redemption reserve represents
the nominal amount of the shares
repurchased.

BRE DR E RO
ZEfE -

(iv) Statutory reserve (iv) EERE
As stipulated by regulations in the R BEEREE AR
PRC, the Company’s subsidiaries AR B (R M AR T N 2 E
established and operated in the SOl NGRS R 7=l
mainland China are required to TR A MR ET AR
appropriate 10% of their after-tax- Fii&mF (R ET F 18
profit (after offsetting prior year losses) %) BK10% B AETER
as determined in accordance with the WwEE BEEfEEEGE
PRC accounting rules and regulations, M E AR 50% & 1E o B
to the statutory surplus reserve until ATz E AR R R
the reserve balance reaches 50% of DK m A BTHETT o
the registered capital. The transfer
to this reserve must be made before
distribution of profits to parent
companies.
The statutory reserve can be utilised, EE B AR E L
upon approval by the relevant AT AN REER
authorities, to offset accumulated I B AR E A
losses or to increase capital of the HEREBFERENGESRT
subsidiary, provided that the balance HERE G EZARH25% ©
after such issue is not less than 25%
of its registered capital.

(vy Exchange reserve (v) ERFEE
The exchange reserve comprises all EH HERERBREF
foreign exchange differences arising A 1 38 A 3E 75 B 1S SR 3R

4@ Cabbeen Fashion Limited  Annual Report 2020 @

from the translation of the financial
statements of operations outside
mainland China which are dealt with
in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 1(w).

EAERMANELE I
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

(v) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2020, the aggregate
amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of
the Company was RMB48,658,000
(2019: RMB65,327,000). After the end
of the reporting period the directors
propose a final dividend of HK$0.053
(2019: HK$0.03) per ordinary share
(note 26(b)).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for its equity shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products commensurately with the level of
risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain
a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

R R M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)
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(d)

(e)

RENEERBAR @)

(v) fREENDIKED
RNR—ZZE_ZTF+ A
=+—H: ' gHSIERFAE
ARAETBREDREHEE
% B A R ¥48,658,000
T(ZE—NF: AR%
65,327,0007T ) - AR &
HERIE - EFEBRN
RNEARR BB AR E @A 0.053
BIL(ZE—NF : 0.0378
70) (M5 26(0)) °

EXEE

AEEEREANEZBREAR
EREERFELENES BB
R e LB 7K - A E e TE (B A J2 DA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(e)

4@ Cabbeen Fashion Limited  Annual Report 2020 @

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure with
reference to its debt position. The Group’s
strategy is to maintain the equity and debt
in a balanced position and ensure there are
adequate working capital to service its debt
obligations. The Group’s debt to asset ratio,
being the Group’s total liabilities over its total
assets, at 31 December 2020 was 44%
(2019: 45%).

The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-assets
ratio at the end of the current and previous
reporting periods were as follows:

Current liabilities mBEE
Non-current liabilities ERBEIE
Current assets MENEE
Non-current assets FnBEE
Debt to asset ratio BHEEL*

26 EX - #ERKRE @)

(e)

EXREE(#)
AEBLRBREBHKBREREARN
R o REBAKESRIFEDS
HEBHNEETE  BREEH
EEESIMNER RZT=F
F+-_A=1+—8 AEENE
BEELR(ANAEENREE
BRIABREEFSLLE) B44% (=
T—NF :45%) °

7 52 [ 5 A 4 A R T B 1 3
SHRRNE AR EBREEF
bz

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

—t —2-NEF
+=ZA=+—H +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
797,794 994,300
265,258 10,813
1,916,430 1,812,649
476,354 428,286

44% 45%

Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed
capital requirements.

RABREEFMBEBARBIZ
SIS N B AR TE PR i -




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to these
risks and the financial risk management policies and
practices used by the Group to manage these risks
are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a
counterparty will default on its contractual
obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to trade and other receivables
and deposits with banks. Management has
a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

(i)

Trade and other receivables
Credit evaluations are performed on
customers requiring credit terms. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s
history of making payments and current
abilities to pay and take into account
information specific to the customer as
well as to the economic environment.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk
is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer and
therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. As at 31
December 2020, 16% (2019: 19%)
of the total trade and bills receivables
were concentrated in one customer,
and 57% (2019: 60%) of the total
trade and bills receivables were
concentrated in five customers of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27 SRITANSREREERA

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL FE (&)

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued) (@ EERKE)

() Trade and other receivables (i) ESZkHMEKRIR

(Continued) (&)
The maximum exposure to credit risk is E={EEREIELSHNRE
represented by the carrying amount of AR E R AR E BB
each financial asset in the consolidated MEANE R Eﬁ BEMRE
statement of financial position after B -RZZE_EF+A
deducting any impairment allowance. =+—H &K lﬂi%ﬂ
As at 31 December 2020, the Group BEAEEAZEFEER
does not provide any guarantees B (AT HELR ©
which would expose the Group to
credit risk.
The Group measures loss allowances AEEZERRE/EA XK
for trade receivables at an amount HWBHEESEN SR
equal to lifetime ECLs, which is AAEEHRKFIAZ EE
calculated using a provision matrix. B HEREYERE
As the Group’s historical credit HETHE - HRAKER
loss experience does not indicate AREEEBEEY RS
significantly different loss patterns for EPOHBTENTRE
different customer segments, the loss BRI EREHMED
allowance based on past due status is EEBEISE—TIRAE
not further distinguished between the SETRAREFPER 2 HE
Group’s different customer bases. —F@m e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BRI ()
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27 SRITANSREREERA
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL FE (&)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (@) EERKE)
() Trade and other receivables (i) EBSZkHEHMEKRRE
(Continued) (%)
The following table provides information TREINR-_Z_ZTF
about the Group’s exposure to credit +-A=+—HBAX&KEA
risk and ECLs for trade and bills iR s B R ki 0 &) & k&
receivables as at 31 December 2020: B 5 WA K RN R B
REHEENTBBREERER
# -
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
2020 loss rate amount allowance
—ECEF EHEEE KRELE BERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Current (not past due) BIER (R ER) 0.05% 497,641 (249)
1-90 days past due #E1 290 H 1.00% 50,380 (504)
91-180 days past due #HI91 £ 180 H 50.00% 19 9)

More than 180 days past due #EEA/180H  100.00% - -

548,040 (762)

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
2019 loss rate amount allowance
—E-NEF RHEEX RERE - BERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARMTR
Current (not past due) BIER (R@ HA) 0.05% 633,865 317
1-90 days past due #HI1 =00 H 1.00% 732 7)
91-180 days past due #HEI91 =180 H 50.00% - -

More than 180 days past due mEABIE180E  100.00% - -

634,597 (324)

0O —T-TEEH  FRRHERLT @—



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

4@ Cabbeen Fashion Limited  Annual Report 2020 @

Trade and other receivables
(Continued)

Expected loss rates are based on
actual loss experience over the past
2 years. These rates are adjusted to
reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which
the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s
view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

Further quantitative disclosures in
respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 18.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group
had transferred bank acceptance bills
totalling RMB181,046,000 (2019:
RMB158,468,000), which were
derecognised as financial asset. The
transferees have recourse right to the
Group in case of default by the issuing
banks. In such cases, the Group
would have to repurchase these bank
acceptance bill at face value. These
bank acceptance bills mature six
months from respective dates of issue
and the Group’s maximum loss in case
of default are RMB181,046,000 (2019:
RMB158,468,000) as at 31 December
2020.

27
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(@) EERB#E)
(i) ESZkHMEKRIR
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TEHEE R YRR
FHERBREREE -
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7 42 [ %4 8 g 2K 7 7 R
FET i 465 75 A SR B 8 B o 2
H o

ERASEMEAIKREE
5 R E A EURIRNEE
R - T EERRHR
BzE18 °

RZZTEZZEF+-_A=
+—H AEEE#EE
RITERAEBEEHARK
181,046,000t( = & —
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T0) ' RERITARERE
RIBRAESREE - ¥
BRBIRITED  REAY
AEEFERE - TIIF
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AEBRZERITEALE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Trade and other receivables
(Continued)

The Group considers that the credit
risk associated with bank acceptance
bills issued by major banks in the PRC
to be insignificant.

As 31 December 2020, the Group
lent a short-term loan with face
value of RMB15,840,000 to Huazhi
Investments, an associated company
of the Group, which are repayable
by February 2021. Based on the
financial position and the economic
environment the associate operates,
the Group considers that the credit
risk associate with above loans to be
insignificant.

Deposits with banks

The Group mitigates its exposure to
credit risk by placing deposits with
financial institutions with established
credit rating. Given the high credit
ratings of the banks, management
does not expect any counterparty to
fail to meet its obligations.

BB M ()
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

4@ Cabbeen Fashion Limited  Annual Report 2020 @

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the
Group are responsible for their own cash
management, including the short-term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the management and
directors when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, if any, to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

All non-interest bearing financial liabilities
and discounted bills of the Group are carried
at amount not materially different from their
contractual undiscounted cash flow as all the
financial liabilities are with maturities within
one year or repayable on demand at the end
of the reporting period.
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27 e@MITENESREREERA

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL FE (&)

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REEESREEZ)
The contractual undiscounted cash flow and RBERR - SMBENELOR
carrying amount of financial liabilities as at IR 2R E REREEH 5 0
the end of the reporting period are set out as N
follows:

Contractual undiscounted cash flow
ANARERRERE
More than  More than
Within  1yearbut 2 year but

Carrying iyearoron lessthan  lessthan More than

31 December 2020 amount Total demand 2 year 5years 5years
-Fps  —-FUE WENE

“ECEF+ZA=t-H REE @t EZX ®ENA  BEENR RENE

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARMTR AREBTR AR%TR ARMTR ARETR

Bank borrowings FITIER 352,144 380,624 95098 285,526 - -
Trade and bills BHRATER

payables ERZE 471,620 471,620 471,620 - - -
Other payables AthENTIER

and accruals ihg & 132500 132500 132,590 - - -
Lease liabilities HEBE 9,566 10,421 3,292 3,067 4,062 -

965920 995255 702,600 288,593 4,062 -

BoBEER  FERGERLT @7
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

27 sRMIENESHEREERA

FAE (&)
(b) REBESEKE)

Contractual undiscounted cash flow
AZ”}’{@E %EE/\ H.i

More than ~ More than

Within -~ 1yearbut 2 year but

Carrying 1 year or on less than lessthan ~ More than
31 December 2019 amount Total demand 2 year 5 years 5 years
—FRg% —ENE  MENE

“E-NF+-A=t-H REE &5t EEk  MENA  "FENR RENE

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR

Bank borrowings FITIER 354,737 356,822 356,822 - - -
Trade and bills BAERTER

payables ARES 435783 435783 435783 - - -
Other payables HEMFER

and accruals ETER 94559 94,559 94,559 - - -

Lease liabilities BEAR 8,317 9,421 1,747 1,806 5,368 -

893,396 896,585 888,911 1,806 5,868 -

(c) Interest rate risk (c) FZEmE

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk
arises primarily from bank borrowings carried
at variable rates, which exposes the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. The effective
interest rate of the bank borrowings of the
Group as at 31 December 2020 was 4.70%
(2019: 6.87%).

MEEBIESR T AN A AR
ARESREBRSATHFNER
"**Mrﬁ/ﬁz@m‘mﬁ’* RNEE T

ST BRELZEFTEMNIR
T"I{ﬁ;%’( SAEERRESRES
FERR R-ZT_ZTF+=A
=+—8 AEEMNRITERE
BRRES4T7T0% (T — N F:
6.87%) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 1% in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group’s
profit after tax for the year and retained profits
by approximately RMB2,906,000 (2019:
RMB2,935,000). Other components of equity
would not be affected by the changes in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
impact on the Group’s profit for the year and
retained profits that would arise assuming
that there is an annualised impact on interest
income and expense by a change in interest
rates. The analysis has been performed on
the same basis for 2019.

Currency risk

Individual companies within the Group have
limited foreign currency risk as most of the
transactions are denominated in the same
currency as the functional currency of the
operation in which they relate. The Group’s
functional currency is RMB as all the turnover
are within the PRC. With the natural hedging
of the revenue and costs being denominated
in RMB, the Group’s transactional foreign
exchange exposure was insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e)

Fair value

(i)

4@ Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Financial assets measured at
fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the
fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level
fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS
183, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date.

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value
measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail
to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not
available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value
measured using significant
unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e) Fair value (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets measured at
fair value (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2020, the Group has no
financial asset measured at fair value.

During the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2020, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used
in Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of wealth management
products in Level 2 is the estimated
amount that the Group would receive
at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the current
creditworthiness of the wealth
management products counterparties.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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F UAREST)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e) Fair value (Continued)

(ii) Fair value of financial assets
and liabilities carried at other
than fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s
financial instruments carried at cost
or amortised cost were not materially
different from their fair values as at 31
December 2019 and 2020.

COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at
31 December 2020 not provided for in the
financial statements were as follows:

27
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2020 2019

_— 7 —= ﬂi :ﬁ—ﬁﬁ

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREET T ARKEFIT

Contracted for SEEY 15,321 29,525
Authorised but not contracted for EXMEMERET A 81,426 51,975
96,747 81,500

In addition, the Group was not committed to enter
into a long-term lease that is not yet commenced at
31 December 2020 (2019: a lease of 5 years with
lease payments amounted to RMB1,806,000 per
annum).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group
entered into the following material related party
transactions.

(a)

Transactions with related parties

As at 31 December 2018, there were two
loans receivable from an associated company,
Huazhi Investments with principal amount
of RMB15,840,000 and RMB32,000,000,
respectively. The detail of loans receivable are
as follows:

The loan of RMB15,840,000 was unsecured,
carried an interest at 30% above PBOC base
interest rate per annum and repayable by
August 2019. Repayment date of this loan
was subsequently extended to August 2019
and further to February 2021.

Another loan with principal amount of
RMB32,000,000 was unsecured, carried
an interest of 7% per annum and repayable
by September 2019. In August 2019, the
Group agreed to extend the repayment date
to March 2020. In March 2020, the Group
and Huazhi Investments entered into an
agreement to convert the outstanding loan
repayable to the Group together with interest
accrued of RMB1,810,000 up to March 2020
as a deposit from the Group to purchase part
of an office premises which is held by Huazhi
Investments and is under construction as
of the date of this report. The selling price
of the property will be determined with
reference to 95% of a valuation provided
by an independent appraiser. According to
the agreement, the Group has discretion
to acquire the property upon completion or
demand a full repayment of the outstanding
balance of the loan with the interest due from
Huazhi Investments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

4@ Cabbeen Fashion Limited  Annual Report 2020 @

Transactions with related parties
(Continued)

In September 2019, the Group lent
another loan of RMB10,000,000 to Huazhi
Investments, which was unsecured and
with an interest rate at 7% per annum and
repayable by March 2020. This loan was
settled in January 2020.

None of the above related party transactions
falls under the definition of connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The operating lease charges in respect of
properties paid and payable to Shishi City
Junyuan Development Co., Ltd. (“Junyuan
Development”) (AfmERERARA
Al) amounted to RMB787,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2019, which constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However
those transactions are exempted from the
disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules as they are below the de
minimis threshold under Rule 14A.76(1).

On 17 May 2019, Cabbeen China entered
into the equity transfer agreement with
Precise Investment Limited (“Precise
Investment”), Junyuan Development and Mr.
Yang Ziming, pursuant to which Cabbeen
China agreed to acquire from Precise
Investment the entire registered capital of
Junyuan Development for a consideration
of RMB107,607,000. The equity transfer
agreement was approved by the independent
shareholders by way of poll at the adjourned
extraordinary general meeting held on 3 July
2019. The transaction was completed in
July 2019, which constitutes a connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B E S i et ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =TTHEAZE S AN REST)

29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 29 ERBABERZ (®)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Key management personnel (b) ETEEEASHMH
compensation
Remuneration for key management personnel TEEFTZEBAEME (BIE
of the Group, including amounts paid to the S FHIESATHEMARRIE
Company’s directors as disclosed in note 8 ERMFOFEENE TR
and certain of the highest paid employees as EEMFIB)IAT :

disclosed in note 9, is as follows:

2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREEFIT
Short-term employee % R B fE A
benefits 8,701 8,035
Contributions to retirement R AR%&FI5T S5k
benefit scheme 108 364
Equity settled share-based #E it & ARG &
payment expenses EM O R 5,575 1,630
14,384 10,029
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” FasEH N [BETRA] (it
(note 6(b)). 6(b)) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the
judgements and other uncertainties affecting
application of those policies and the sensitivity
of reported results to changes in condition and
assumptions are factors to be considered when
reviewing the financial statements. The principal
accounting policies are set forth in note 1. The
Group believes the following critical accounting
policies involve the most significant judgements and
estimates used in the preparation of the financial
statements.

(@) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. These
estimates are based on the current market
conditions and the historical experience of
selling products with similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of change in
customer preference and competitor actions
in response to the industry situation. Any
change in the assumptions would increase
or decrease the amount of inventories write-
down or the related reversals of write-down
made in prior years and affect the Group’s
net assets value. The Group reassesses
these estimates at the end of each reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

30 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of trade and other
receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowances
for trade receivables by assessing the ECLs.
This requires the use of estimates and
judgements. ECLs are based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors,
and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the
end of reporting period. Where the estimation
is different from the original estimate, such
difference will affect the carrying amounts of
trade receivables and thus the impairment
loss in the period in which such estimate is
changed. The Group keeps assessing the
expected credit loss of trade receivables
during their expected lives.

Bank acceptance bills

As set out in note 27(a)(i), the Group
considers that the credit risk associated with
bank acceptance bills issued by major banks
in the PRC to be insignificant. The Group
monitors the credit risk of issuing banks. The
judgement to derecognise bank acceptance
bills upon discounting or endorsement is
reviewed when the credit risk of issuing
banks deteriorates significantly.

(b)

(c)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 31 2 @Kk RE
FINANCIAL POSITION
2020 2019
—EEHF —T-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®T T AREEFIT
Non-current asset kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB ARIMKRE 15 14,065 8,490
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H b U FRIE 293,688 256,928
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBFEEFEEY 137 585
293,825 257,513
Current liability nEEE
Other payables and accruals H At < 5RIE &
fEETE A 253,634 195,078
253,634 195,078
Net current assets REBEEFE 40,191 62,435
NET ASSETS EEEE 54,256 70,925
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B #EE 26(a)
Capitals B 5,214 5,214
Reserves & 49,042 65,711
NET ASSETS EEFE 54,256 70,925

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 8 February 2021.

Mr. Ziming Yang

KEEeN_E-_—F-_AN\BHER

BT -

Mr. Ronggin Ke

BEPELE R EE
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director Executive Director
TR FHNTTEE HITEE
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33

34

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD

The directors believe consumer sentiment will be
recovered from Covid-19 epidemic eventually amid
the expectation of vaccine will be available for
extensive distribution later in 2021. However, there
were new Covid-19 cases lately. The Group will be
cautious and stay vigilant and react to the evolving
situation.

ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

As at 31 December 2020, the directors consider the
ultimate controlling party of the Company to be Mr.
Ziming Yang.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the IASB has issued a number of amendments,
and a new standard, IFRS 17, Insurance contracts,
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2020 and which have not been adopted
in these financial statements. These developments
include the following which may be relevant to the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MR B o (4R)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF 34
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(Continued)

E-2-ZH+ZA
=t+—HLEFECHEME
o RAERAIEET - FETZERIR
RENTEXE @

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RTH B8z z2#&
BRI S IR £

Amendments to IFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022

BURR B 15 5 YE RIS BSRAERT AN - SIABLRAESR

Amendments to IAS 16, Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

B &5 ERIFE16SRIEFT AN - ¥ - BE KR

BT B2 Prigak B

Amendments to IAS 37, Onerous Contracts-Cost of
Fulffilling a Contract

BIRR & 5 2ERI S 37 SRASET AN -
BRRIEEH — BITEAZ KA

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

—F-—_#%#—H—H
1 January 2022
T _F—H—H
1 January 2022
T -F—H—H

1 January 2022

- \FE_T_TFRYZBEVHHREEL 2 FENRE —E__&—H—H

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
developments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

AEBIEFEZFER] ~ e R M2
BREXERYRMELZRE - R
AR BRI E ] BE B4R B M TR
RBREATE -
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FIVE YEARS SUMMARY

HFEHE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“EC2F “E-NF “E-N\F “E+F ZEN
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFTL
Revenue e 1,288,422 1,274,966 1273473 1,089,106 1,160,799
Cost of sales HENA (679,957) (714,875) (694,730) (551,493) (604,829)
Gross profit 7 608,465 560,001 578,743 537,613 555,970
Personal protective EAEE G
equipment revenue 526,091 - = = =
Personal protective EAFTERERA
equipment cost (485,189) - = = =
Other income B A 84,015 66,777 58,100 42,786 51,709
Seling and distribution HERNHRAX
EXpenses (201,073) (218,915) (179,423 (163,392) (160,425)
Administrative and other ~ {TRURE M EERY
operating expenses (239,465) (164,513) (146,388) (125,671) (194,198)
Profit from operations il 292,844 243,440 311,032 301,336 253,056
Finance cost BERA (19,307) (21,608) (19,891) (16,555) (5,848)
Share of loss of an ME—EHE AR
associate NER (154) (46) (190) - -
Profit before taxation Bt AR 273,383 221786 290,951 284,781 247,208
Income tax FiEH (78,342) (63,644) (80,708) (81,568) (65,519)
Profit for the year ER A 195,041 158,142 210,243 203,213 181,689
Farnings per share GREHN
Basic (RMB) EX(ARE) 0.29 0.24 0.32 0.29 0.26
Diluted (RMB) BE(ARE) 0.29 0.24 0.32 0.29 0.25

o —ET-TEEH  FERHERAT @*



FIVE YEARS SUMMARY (CONTINUED)

=
AEHE (H)
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“ECEF “T-NE “F-N\E “F+F TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT ARET T ARETT \R¥FTT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties pEmEx 103,012 128,753 39,607 - -
Property, plant and equipment #1% - B Rkl 205,123 176,016 50,326 73,076 57,521
Interests in leasehold mEMETHERRZ
land held for own use ME iR
under operating lease i - - 22,811 23,312 23,319
Intangible assets BV EE 38,295 33,299 37,393 40,218 34,848
Prepayments for acquisition BBz R &E.2 BITIR
of plant and equipment , 40,213 8,460 1,039 9,744 -
Other loans receivables AR ER = - S 64,118 -
Interest in an associate R—RRE R AR 49,149 49,303 49,349 S -
Deferred tax assets BERHEEE 40,562 32,455 33,257 26,158 37,786
476,354 428,286 242,782 236,626 153474
Current assets REBEE
Inventories F& 388,293 383,716 383,578 337,052 328,813
Trade and other receivables % RE MM 613,346 738,863 506,393 445,829 465,086
Other financial assets A oREE - - 60,000 263,159 21,400
Deposits with banks REMRB={EAN
with original maturity FITER
date over three months . 293,357 303,254 443,944 452,860 275,400
Pledged bank deposits BERRTEN 92,307 119,824 240,485 105,015 239,068
Cash and cash equivalents & RREEFEN 529,037 266,992 220,484 134,593 222,885
1,916,430 1812,649 1,854,884 1,728,508 1,562,652
Current liabilities RBaE
Bank borrowings FITER 93,612 354,737 52,566 16,636 127,095
Trade and other payables E%&EW@H?@ 651,785 591,510 597,395 500,042 555,696
Current tax payable FERBNERIR 49,494 46,673 34,895 19,929 30,041
Lease liabilities HEARE 2,903 1,380 - - -
797,794 994,300 684,856 626,607 712,832
Non-current liabilities k=N
Bank borrowings RITER 258,532 = 234,386 271,461 -
Lease liabilties HEAE 6,663 6,037 - - -
Deferred tax liabilties ERHBEaR 63 3,876 4,168 11,770 11,577
265,258 10,813 239,054 283,231 11,577
Net assets EEFE 1,329,732 1,235,822 1,173,756 1,055,296 981,717
Capital and reserves EoRfE
Share capital A 5,214 5,214 5,214 5,203 5,583
Reserves 1 1,316,421 1,199,527 1,112,743 1,018,653 976,134
1,321,635 1,204,741 1,117,957 1,023,856 981,717
Non-controlling interests  FEREx 8,097 31,081 55,799 31,440 =
Total equity BiEn 1,329,732 1,235,822 1,173,756 1,055,296 981,717
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